October 18, 2021 Zoning Hearing Meeting Packet
e 424 E. Elm Street, Conshohocken, PA 19428 — Page 3
e 200 Block Washington Street, Conshohocken, PA 19438 — Page 268
e 450 Colwell Lane, Conshohocken, PA 19428 — Page 339

e 701 Fayette Street, Conshohocken, PA 19428 — Page 399



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN

ZONING HEARING BOARD

AGENDA
October 18*, 2021 - 7:00 PM

This meeting is being held using a Go to Meeting platform and will be recorded.
Monthly Zoning Hearing Board Meeting

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/972846509

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679

Access Code: 972-846-509
The public is asked to please keep their phones on mute. There will be time for public comment that will be announced by the

Zoning Hearing Board Chairman. During the meeting, you may submit written comments by e- mailing them to
Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Please provide your name, address, and property reference.

1. Call to Order
2. Appearance of Property

PETITIONER: SK Elm, LLC.
PREMISES INVOLVED: 424 E. Elm St, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Borough Residential 2 District

PETITIONER: Millennium Waterfront Associates, II, LP.
PREMISES INVOLVED: 200 Block of Washington St., Conshohocken, PA 19428
Specially Planned District 2

PETITIONER: Dryden Court Development, LLC. C/O David Brosso
PREMISES INVOLVED: 450 Colwell Ln., Conshohocken, PA 19428
Limited Industrial District

PETITIONER: CGEM, LLC, Mun Chung, Member
PREMISES INVOLVED: 701 Fayette St., Conshohocken, PA 19428
Business Commercial

**** Persons who submitted an entry of appearance application for a specific property will be called upon at the appropriate
time.

3. Public Comment - (state your name, address, and property reference)

4. Announcements/Discussion

5. Adjournment

The Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board thanks you in advance for your cooperation during the remote meeting. If you
encounter problems participating during the meeting, or have questions regarding the above prior to the meeting, please contact
the Borough at zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.
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BOROUGH COUNCIL
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Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

ZONING NOTICE
August 16th, 2021, ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING TO OCCUR VIA REMOTE MEANS

ZONING HEARING Z-2021-14

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will conduct a public hearing
on August 16th, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. prevailing time via remote means. The public is encouraged to participate
as set forth below.

This meeting will be held using a Go-To-Meeting Platform. To the extent possible, members of
Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board and Borough staff/professionals will participate via both video and
audio. (INSTRUCTIONS ON SECOND PAGE)

At this time, the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will hear testimony and accept evidence on the
following request.

PETITIONER: SK Elm, LLC.
826 Dresher Way, Wayne, PA 19087

PREMISES INVOLVED: 424 E. Elm St, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Borough Residential 2 District

OWNER OF RECORD: Jeronimos, LLC
424 E. Elm St, Conshohocken, PA 19428

The applicant is seeking a special exception from the Zoning Hearing Board per §27-703.B to permit the
change of a nonconforming use.

Persons who wish to become parties to the application must notify the Borough of their intent to ask for
party status at least five (5) days prior to the scheduled hearing by emailing the attached entry of
appearance form to zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Said persons must be available to participate in the
zoning hearing on the scheduled date and time. It is noted that submitting the attached entry of appearance
form does not guarantee that you will be granted party status. The Zoning Hearing Board decides who
may participate in the hearing before it as a party, subject to Section 908(3) of the Municipalities Planning
Code (MPC). The MPC permits party status to any person “affected” by the application. Having taxpayer
status alone is not enough to claim party status; however, a person whose property or business abuts the
property that is the subject of the appeal is affected and should qualify as a party. Ultimately, the ZHB
makes the party status determination after reviewing the request.

Thank you,
Zoning Hearing Board

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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ZONING HEARING REMOTE SESSION ACCESS INSTRUCTIONS
The public is encouraged to participate as follows:

Audio Feed Participation: You may dial-in to access the audio feed of the meeting. All participants (whether
listening or providing comments) must use this method of audio participation, even those using Go-To-
Meeting to access the video feed. To access audio, please use the below number and access code/ password
information.

We ask that you please always keep your phones on mute, unless giving a public comment as set forth in
the Public Comment section below.

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https:/ / global.gotomeeting.com/join/ 972846509

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679

Access Code: 972-846-509

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https:/ / global.gotomeeting.com/install /972846509

If you have already downloaded the Go-To-Meeting application, the link will redirect you to the
application itself. Please follow the instructions.

It is recommended that you download the application in advance of the meeting time. If you attempt to
sign in prior to the start of the meeting, the Go-To-Meeting application will inform you that the meeting
has not started. Please close the application and log back in at the time of the meeting (7:00 PM).

Public Comment: There will be a designated time on the agenda for public comment. Those with public
comment shall state their name and address. Prior to the start of the meeting, you may submit written
comments by e-mailing them to Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Similarly, during the meeting, you may
submit written comments by e-mailing them to Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.

Public comments submitted in this manner will be read by a member of Borough Administration during
the public comment period. Because the actual time of the public comment period is determined by the
pace of the meeting, please submit all comments as soon as possible, whether before or during the meeting.
Written comments shall include the submitting person’s name, address, and property in question.

The Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board thanks you in advance for your cooperation during the remote
meeting. If you encounter problems participating during the meeting, or have questions regarding the
above prior to the meeting, please contact the Borough at zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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The Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
Entry of Appearance as a Party

I/We

Request to be granted party status in Application Z-2021-14.

Applicant: 424 E. Elm St - SK Elm, LLC. - Special Exception

Please print name:

Please print address:

Please print email:

Please Sign Below:

Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than August 11th, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. - Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:
zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Zoning Application

Appiicaﬁonz*‘ZT i;\&#a\r\“*\

Date Submitted: ;“‘.r \' %

Application is hereby made for:

Date Received: ¢

m Special Exception DVariance

I:]Appeal of the decision of the zoning officer

I:konditional Use approval D Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance

I:I Other

Section of the Zoning Ordinance from which relief is requested:
Seclion 27-703B

Address of the property, which is the subject of the application:

424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken, PA

Applicant’s Name: SK Eim LLC cfe Martin Klagholz

Address: 826 Dresher Way, Wayne PA 19087

Phone Number (daytimé): &

E-mail Address; Mck@360kbs.com>

Applicant is (check one): Legal OWneru Equitable Owner; Tenant[:]

Property Owner: Jeronimo, LLC c/o Equitable Owner SK Elm LLC

Address: 424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken, PA

Phone Number: °10-337-6585

E-mail Address: ecampbell@campbeliroccolaw.com

irregular; 11,364 sq. ft, BR-2 Borough Residential 2

Lot Dimensions: Zoning District:




8.

10.

11.

Has there been previous zoning relief requested in connection with this Property?
Yes L No M: If yes, please describe.

Appiicant is unaware of any prior zoning relief.

Please describe the present use of the property including any existing improvements
and the dimensions of any structures on the property.

The site currently contains a two story non-conforming building. Each floor of the building is approximately 4,000

sf. The first floor is a yoga studio. The second floor is office space. The property has 18 parking spaces on site
and additional spaces pursuant to an easemant on an adjacent property.

Please describe the proposed use of the property.

The applicant proposes no change of use on the second floor, it will continue as office. The applicant proposes to
convert the first floor yoga studio o a mix of warehouse/storage, equipment service/maintenance and related
support and office space.

Please see addendum

Please describe proposal and improvements to the property in detail.

The Special Exception is requested in order to aliow the change of a non-conforming use to a less intense
non-conforming use. No change to the footprint of the building is proposed.

Please see addendum



12. Please describe the reasons the Applicant believes that the requested relief should be
granted.

27-7G3 Change of Use,

‘B, (1) A nonconforming use may be changed to another nonconforming use which is equally appropriate or more -
_appropriate ta the district in which the property is located

13.  If a Variance is being requested, please describe the following;:

a. The unique characteristics of the property:

b. How the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restricts development of the property:

¢. How the proposal is consistent with the character of the surrounding

neighborhood.

d. Why the requested relief is the minimum required to reasonably use the

property; and why the proposal could not be less than what is proposed.

14.  The following section should be completed if the applicant is contesting the
determination of the zoning officer.
a. Please indicate the section of the zoning ordinance that is the subject of the
zoning, officer’s decision (attach any written correspondence relating to the
determination).



b. Please explain in detail the reasons why you disagree with the zoning officer’s
determination.

15.  If the Applicant is requesting any other type of relief, please complete the following
section.

a. Type of relief that is being requested by the applicant.

Special Exception

b. Please indicate the section of the Zoning Ordinance related to the relief being
requested.

27-703 B. (1} A nonconforming use may be changed to another nonconforming use which is equally
. appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property is located.

c. Please describe in detail the reasons why the requested relief should be granted.

-Such new use is equally appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property is located.

.See Addendum

16.  If the applicant is being represented by an attorney, please provide the following
information.

E d J. Gampbell, Jr. Esqui
Attorney’s Name: dmun pbet, Jr. Esguire

a
b. Address: 2701 Renaissance Boulevard, Fourth Floor

c. Phone Number: 610-337-5585

E-mail Address: ecampbell@campbellroccolaw.com

£




1/we hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge, all of the above statements contained in
this Zoning Application and any papers or plans submitted with this application to the
Borough of Conshg

glrocker rue and cefTedt.
SK Elm LLC by Edmyse bed, ;%4 authy Ged repr
Applicant % { f é/ 7 8 4
Sh Lany, L0

Legal Owner

Ve // Ze 2/

Date

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

As subscribed and sworn to before me this / / 725’/ day of
V LAE ,20 42

Gommonwealth of Pennsyivania - Notary Seal
(Seal) ‘ Harry A. Reichner, Notary Public
Philadelphia County
My cammission expires November 13,2022
Commission number 1194882

Member, Pennsylvania Association of Notaries

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 [ www.conshohockenpa.org



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Decision

(For Borough Use Only)

Application Granted [ Application Denied  [J

MOTION:

CONDITIONS:

BY ORDER OF THE ZONING HEARING BOARD

Yes No

O oo oo
0 oo

DATE OF ORDER:

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 Phone: (610} 823-1092 | Fax: (610) §28- 0920 | wwww. conshohockenpa.org



ADDENDUM TO ZONING APPLICATION
SKElm LLC
Requesting a Special Exception

424 East Elm Street

The Applicant, SK Elm LLC intends to operate its related business, Key Business Solutions {KBS) at 424
East Elm Street in the Borough of Conshohocken {the “Property”). The Property is located in the BR-2
zoning district. There is a 2 story building located on the Property and it is currently used for office and
a yoga studio. Those uses are not permitted in the BR-2 district.

KBS is in the business of providing mail room equipment supplies and support services. KBS proposes to
move its current operations to the Property. There will be no change of use on the second floor as it
will be used as office by KBS administration. The first floor will be used for storage of mail room
equipment such as postage meters, scales, printers, etc. and supplies used with such equipment. The
first floor will be used to prepare this equipment to be delivered to customers. The first floor will also
be used to service this type of equipment. The first floor will also contain office space supporting these
activities.

The service and maintenance of this mail room equipment does not involve any process that creates
noise, dust or fumes. The service and maintenance of this mail room does not involve hazardous
materials.

KBS employs approximately 20 full-time individuals, however only 10 employees will regularly work at
the Property.

No changes are proposed to the footprint of the building or the exterior of the Property.

Deliveries to the KBS Elm Street facility are made by standard “fed-ex” style box trucks. Typically there
are 1-2 such trips per day at KBS's existing facility and that is not expected to be any different at the
Property. Other than the initial move in, no full size trailer deliveries are anticipated.

The exterior sighage will be changed to reflect KBS. The size and location of the existing signage will not
change.
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6/18/2021

PARID: 050005906008
JERONIMOS LLC

Montgomery, Pennsylvania

Parcel

TaxMapID 05023 035

Parid 05-00-05900-00-8
Land Use Code 4100

l.and Use Description

Property Location

C - RETAIL, OFFICE, APTS. ~ MULTT-USE
424 E ELM ST

424 EELM 5T

Lot # 14

Lot Size 11364 SF

Front Feet 114

Municipality CONSHOHGCKEN
School District COLONIAL
Utilities ALL PUBLIC//
Owner

Name(s) JERONIMOS LLC
Name(s)

Mailing Address 424 E ELM ST

Care OF
Mailing Address
Mailing Address

Current Assessment

CONSHOHOCKEN PA 19428

Appraised Value Assessed Value Restrict Code

634,000 634,000

Estimated Taxes

County 2,303

Montco Community College 247

Municipality 2,853

Schoct District 14,813

Tota 20,216

Tax Lien Tax Claim Bureau Parcel Search

Last Sale

Sale Date 23-MAY-14

Sale Price $1,000,000

Tax Stamps 10000

Deed Book and Page 5914-01065

Grantor APEX REALTY LLC

Grantee JERONIMOS LLC

Date Recorded 28-MAY-14

Sales History

Sale Date Safe Price Tax Stamps  Deed Book and Page Grankor Grantee Date Recorded
05-23-2014 41,000,006  1000C 5914-01065 APEX REALTY L1C JERONIMOS LLC 05-28-2014
12-24-2012 31 o 5860-01623 424 ELM STREET ASSOCIATES LP APEX REALTY LLC 01-08-2013
04-26-2006  $1,530,000 5600-02637 TR-SUBURBAN LP 424 ELM STREET ASSOQCIATES P

06-10-1996  $0 0 5279-01803 TR-SUBURBAN LP TR-SUBURBAN LP 07-19-1999

https://propertyrecords.montcopa. org/pt/Datalets/PrintDatalet. aspx ?pin=050005900008&gsp=PROFILEAL L &taxyear=20218jur=046&ownseq=08&card...  1/3



6/18/2021 Montgomery, Pennsylvania

08-30-1990  $200,000 2000 4956-01968 COMER EDWARD A & ELAINE K 05-05-1990
09-11-1980  $35,000 350 - KALBACH JAMES C & PAULAF
04-26-1978  $37,000 0 - HOME ASSN OF UNITED RUBBER

Lot Information

Lot Size 11364 SF

Lot # 14

Remarks 114 X IRR 11364 SF
Remarks

Remarks

Commercial Parcel Summary

No. of Cards 1

Land Use Code 4100
Gross Building Area (Total of all Cards) 8,404

Total Living Units

Commercial Parcel Summary

Lise Area
WAREHOUSE 7,404
MULTI-USE OFFICE 1,000

Commercial Card Summary

Card 1

Imp Name

Structure Code 398

Structure WAREHOUSE

Sprinkler N

Units

Identical Units 1

Year Buitt 1971

Gross Building Area 8,404

Elevator/Escalator N

Permits 1af4
Permit Date 16-NOV-2018

Permit Number 18-01136

Amount

Purpose ELECTRICAL/MECHANICAL

Notes REPLACE QLD CONDENSSING UNIT WiITH NEW UNIT
Notes

Notes

Status CLOSED

Assessment History

Appraised Vaiue Assessed Value Restrict Code Effective Date Reason Notice Date

634,000 634,000 01-JAN-15 COURT STIPULATION 18-DEC-15

295,340 295,340 01-JAN-07 APPEAL 24-0CT-06

295,340 295,340 01-JAN-06 SUBDIVISION 06-MAR-06
295,340 01-JAN-06 SUBDIVISION

hitps://propertyrecords, montcopa.org/pt/Datalets/PrintDatalet. aspx?pin=050005900008&gsp=PROFILEALL 8taxyear=20218jur=046&ownseq=0&card...  2/3



6/18/2021
83,650
60,800
1,100
6,200

https://propertyrecords.montcopa.org/pt/Datalets/PrintDatalet. aspx 7pin=0500059000088gsp=PROFILEALL &taxyear=202 1 &jur=046&ownseq=0&card. ..

Montgomery, Pennsylvania

01-JAN-01 APPEAL
01-JAN-98 REASSESSMENT
01-JUL-96 DEMOLITION
01-JAN-87

3/3
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RECORDER OF DEEDS
MONTGOMERY COUNTY

Nancy J. Becker

One Montgomery Plaza

Swede and Airy Streets ~ Suite 303

P.O. Box 311 ~ Norristown, PA 158404

Office: (610) 278-3289 ~ Fax: (610) 278-386%

DEED BK 5914 PG 01065 to 01069
INSTRUMENT # : 2014032347
RECORDED DATE: 05/28/2014 11:34:34 AM

3080427-0012K

MONTGOMERY COUNTY ROD

OFFICIAL RECORDING COVER PAGE

Page 1 of 5§

Document Type: Deed Transaction #: 3059668 - 3 Doc(s)
Document Date: 05/23/2014 Document Page Count: 4

Reference Info: Operator Id: dcane

RETURN TO: (Simplifile) PAID BY:

Bryn Mawr Abstract, L1.C
10 Campus Blvd
Newtown Square, PA 19073

BRYN MAWR ABSTRACT LLC

* PROPERTY DATA:

Parcel ID #: 05-00-05900-00-8
Address: 424 E ELM §T
PA
Municipality: Conshohocken Borough
(100%)
School District: Colonial

* ASSOCIATED DOCUMENT(S):

CONSIDERATION/SECURED AMT:
$1,000,000.00

TAXABLE AMOUNT:
$1,000,000.00

FEES / TAXES:

Recoirding Fee:Deed $83.00
State RTT $10,000,00
Conshohocken Borough RTT $5,000.00
Colonial School District RTT $5,000.00
Total: $20,083.00

DEED BK 5914 PG 01065 to 01069
Recorded Date: 05/28/2014 11:34:34 AM

S
I hereby CERTIFY that (S0t 50,
this document is SR T
recorded in the Seifd Y
Recorder of Deeds %ﬁ’a LN g
Office in Montgomery %”//&‘2’&“3@‘5‘\\\*&}"
County, Pennsylvania. D

AT

Nancy 1. Becker
Recorder of Deeds

PLEASE DO NOT DETACH

THIS PAGE IS NOW PART OF THIS LEGAL DOCUMENT

NOTE: If document data differs from cover sheet, document data always supersedes,
*COVER PAGE DOES NOT INCLUDE ALL DATA, PLEASE SEE INDEX AND DOCUMENT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

Digitally signed 06/18/2021 by monigomery.county.rod@kofile.com

Certified and Digitally Signed

Valldalion mav reauire Adoba "Windaws Intearation”

eCertified capy of recorded # 2014032347 (page 1 of 5)
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds




05/28/2014 11:34:34 AM DEED BK 5814 PG 01086 MONTCO

Prepared by and Return to:
Bryn Mawr Abstract, Inc.
10 Campus Blvd MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGISTRY
Newtown Square, PA 19073 05.00-05900-00-8 CONSHOHOCKEN BOROUGH
(610) 355-8107 424 E ELM 8T

. APEX REALTY LLC $15.00
File No. 14-5698 B023 L14 U039 4100 05/28/2014 JG

UPI # 05-00-05900-00-8

Whis Inbenture, made the 231 day of May, 2014,
Tetiveen

APEX REALTY, LLC
(hercinafter called the Grantor), of the one part, and
JERONIMOS, LLC

(hereinafter called the Grantee), of the other pazt,

Witnessetl), that the said Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of One Million And 00/100
Dollars ($1,0600,000.00} lawful money of the United States of America, unto it well and truly paid by the
said Grantee, at or before the sealing and delivery hereof, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged,
has granted, bargained and sold, released and confirmed, and by these presents does grant, bargain and
sell, release and confirm unio the said Grantee

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and improvements
erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of Conshohocken, County of
Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, bounded and described according to a
plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E. Hector Street by Momenee and Associates,
Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised October 26, 2005, and recorded in Montgomery
County in Plan Book 25 Page 276, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166.36 feet to a common
corner with Lot 15, thence from said point of beginning leaving the northerly side of Elm
Street and along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West 100.00 feet to a common corner of Lots 15, 8 and 9, thence along a common line
with Lots 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 113.64 feet
to a common corner with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premises C, thence along
said line South 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00 feet to a point along the
northerly side of Elm Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along said line South 85
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 113.64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of
beginning.

eCertified copy of recorded # 2014032347 (page 2 of 5)
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds




05/28/2014 11:34:34 AM DEED BK 5914 PG 01067 MONTCO

PARCEL NO. 05-00-05900-00-8

BEING the same premises which 424 Elm Street Associates, L.P., by Deed dated
12/24/2012 and recorded 01/08/2013 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for
the County of Montgomery in Deed Book 5860 Page 1624, granted and conveyed unto
Apex Realty, LLC.

QWogether With all and singular the buildings and improvements, ways, streets, alleys, driveways,
passages, waters, water-courses, rights, liberties, privileges, hereditaments and appurtenances, whatsoever
unto the hereby pranted premises belonging, or in anywise appertaining, and the reversions and
remainders, rents, issues, and profits thereof} and all the estate, right, title, interest, property, claim and
demand whatsoever of it, the said grantor, as well at law as in equity, of, in and to the same.

Wo babe and fo hold the said lot or piece of ground described above, with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, hereditaments and premises hereby granted, or mentioned and intended so
to be, with the appurtenances, unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, to and for the only proper
use and behoof of the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever.

And the said Grantor, for itself, its successors and assigns, does, by these presents, covenant, grant and
agree, to and with the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, that it, the said Grantor, and its successors
and assigns, all and singular the hereditaments and premises herein deseribed and granted, or mentioned
and intended so to be, with the appurtenances, unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, against it,
the said Grantor, and its successors and assigns, will warrant and defend against the lawful claims of all
persons claiming by, through or under the said Grantor but not otherwise.

In Witness Phereof, the party of the first part has caused its common and corporate seal to be

affixed to these presents by the hand of its Vice President, and the same to be duly attested by its
Secretary, Dated the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: APE ALTY, L1LC

o ool

/Scott W. Héraild, Vice President

{SEAL}

eCertified copy of recorded # 2014032347 (page 3 of 5)
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds




05/28/2014 11:34:34 AM DEED BK 5914 PG 01068 MONTCO

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania }
88
County of Montgomery

AND NOW, this 23rd day of May, 2014, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, appeared
Scott W. Herald, who acknowledged himself/herself to be the Vice President of Apex Realty, LI.C, a
corporation, and he/she, as such Vice President being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing the name of the corporation by himself/herself as
Vice President. P

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, I hereunder set my hand and official seal.

\
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Notary Public '\,,,_,) . \ b
NOTARIAL SEAL My commission expires Loy VA \ A0
JOYCE D ORCBONO

Notary Pubtic
NEWTOWN TWP, DELAWARE COUNTY
My Commission Explres Dec 18, 2017

The precise residence and the complete post office
address of the above-named Gerantee is:

424 E. Elm Street
Conshohocken, PA 19428

On behalf of the Grantee)

eCertified copy of recorded # 2014032347 (page 4 of 5)
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
RECORDER OF DEEDS OFFICE
Jeanne Sorg, Recorder of Deeds

Office: (610) 278-3289

CUSTOMER RECEIPT

Receipt #: 21122867

Printed: 06/18/2021 01:47:05 PM
Purchase Date: 06/18/2021 01:47:00 PM
Submitter Name:  Campbell Rocco Law
Operator ID: SearchOrder

Payment Comment: Online Escrow Transaction

Charges

Certify Document
# of Pages 5

eCertification Fee $10.50

Total Charges: $10.50

Payments

Escrow Account Campbell Rocco Law $10.50

Totals

Total Amount Due: $10.50
Total Amount Paid: $10.50
Refund : $0.00

Please note: If a credit card was used, the credit card company’s
convenience fee of 2.65% has been charged separately at the time
of this transaction. This fee is not shown on this receipt.

Jeanne Sorg
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds



AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE

THIS AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE (this “Agreement™) is made as of’

. 2021 (the “Effective Date™), by and between SK ELM, LL.C, a Pennsylvania
limited liability company, having an address at 826 Dresher Way, Wayne, PA 19087, (“Buyer”™),
and JERONIMOS LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability company with an address of 30 Cooper
Beech, Lafayette Hill, PA 19444 (“Seller”).

In consideration of the covenants and provisions contained herein, and intending to be
legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Agreement to Sell and Purchase. Seller agrees to sell {o Buyer, and Buyer agrees
to purchase from Seller, subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all of
Seller’s right, title and interest in and to the following property located at 424 E. Elm Street,
Conshohocken Borough, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, consisting of the following

(collectively, the “Property™):

(a) Real Property. All of that certain tract of Jand mare fuily described on
Exhibit A-1 to this Agreement commonly known as 424 E. Elm Street, tax parcel # [05-00-
05900-00-8] [to be confirmed], together with all improvements thereon including a iwo-story
building (the “Improvements™), and all appurtenances thereto including all easements, rights of
way, water rights, and privileges, and subject to any burdens and obligations set forth in any
recorded easements, declarations and covenants; together with all rights, title and interest of Seller
in and to any land lying in the bed of any street, opened or proposed, in front of or abutting or
adjoining the aforesaid tract of land, and all right, title and interest of Seller in and to any unpaid
award for the taking by eminent domain of any part of the aforesaid tract of land or for damage to
such tract of land by reason of a change of grade of any street (collectively, the “Real Property”).
Buyer acknowledges that the Real Property is located within the Bella Square Townhomes
Planned Community and subject to one or more recorded Declaration and association rules and
regulations.

(b) Personal Property. All fixtures, furniture, equipment, supplies and olher
tangible personal property attached or appurtenant to, or located in or on the second floor of the
building, or used solely in connection with the Real Property, which are owned by Seller, and all
intangible personal property owned by Seller and related solely to the Land and Improvements,
including, without limitation: any trade names; any and all plans and specifications and other
architectural and engineering drawings for the Land; any and all assignable warranties; any and
all assignable contract rights related to the Real Property; and any and all assignable
governmental permits, approvals and licenses (collectively, the “Personal Property™), with the
exception of the following items which Seller shall retain and remove from the Real Property:
butcher block table and associated stools in the open area, exercise equipment, spring leaf lamp
and two (2) office chairs.

(c) Leases. Seller’s interest in all leases, tenancies, licenses and other
agreements for the use or occupancy of any portion of the Property in effect on the date of this
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MAYOR
Yaniv Aronson

BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN e
Offce o the Brogh Mansgr
MEMORANDUM B
Date: July 9, 2021
To: Stephanie Cecco, Brittany Rogers
From: Eric P. Johnson, PE
Re: 424 E. Elm Street - Zoning Determination

History of the Site:

424 E. Elm Street is an existing non-conforming, mixed use property, developed with a 2-story, 8,000
square-foot structure. The property contains parking spaces around the building perimeter and
maintains access to additional parking spaces on the adjoining property pursuant to an easement
agreement. The ground floor is currently occupied by a yoga studio and the second floor is occupied by
commercial office space. The property is located in the BR-2 - Borough Residential Two zoning district.

Current Request:

The applicant, SK Elm, LLC, proposes to relocate their business, Key Business Solutions (KBS), to the
subject property. KBS is a mail room equipment and support company. KBS proposes to convert the first
floor of the building from the current yoga studio use to a mix of office space and storage, preparation,
and servicing of mail room equipment. The second floor of the building will remain office space. No
exterior building modifications are proposed except for the replacement of the existing signage to reflect
KBS. The applicant indicates KBS has 20 full-time employees, but only 10 employees will regularly work
at the subject property. The applicant also indicates that 1 or 2 box truck deliveries are anticipated per
day.

In November 2005, the subject property was granted a special exception to convert the first floor from an
office and warehouse use to the yoga studio use that currently occupies the space. As part of the special
exception approval, an easement agreement was signed with the abutting property for the use of parking
spaces for the benefit of 424 E. EIm Street.

Zoning Determination:

Per 27-703.B(1), a nonconforming use may be changed to another nonconforming use which is equally
appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property is located and is no more
detrimental than the existing nonconforming use as a special exception by the Zoning Hearing Board.
The existing property is a nonconforming mixed-use commercial property in the BR-2 residential zoning
district. The proposed change of use on the ground floor from a yoga studio constitutes a change of a
nonconforming use, requiring a special exception granted by the Zoning Hearing Board.

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov



July 9, 2021 Page 2
Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager 424 E. Elm Street Determination

The applicant should provide additional details on how daily box truck deliveries to the property will
be handled, the anticipated parking demand for the proposed use, and if the change of use will impact
the parking easement on the adjoining property.



Exhibit 1
Aerial Photos of Site
11 Fayette Street to River

1.2 Zoom in photo
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Exhibit 2
Ground Level Photos
2.1 South Fagade / West Facade

2.2 North Fagade / East Fagade
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Exhibit 3

Site Plan
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Exhibit 4

2005 Easement
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DE OF COVE
THIS DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND EASEMENTS (“Declaration”)

made this J@* " day of () (-Fobewr . 2005 by TR-SUBURBAN, L.P., a Pennsylvania

limted partnership, with offices at 424 E Elm Street, Conshohocken, Montgomery County,
Pennsylvania (hereinafier referred to as the “‘Declarant™)
asis of Declaration

A Declarant 1s the owner of certain properties located in Conshohocken Borough,
Montgomery County, Pennsylvama, more fully identified as Tax Parcel Identification Numbers
05-00-05896-003, Block 023 and Umt 038, and 05-00-05900-008, Block 023 and Unit 039
(collectively, the “Property”), and as depicted on a Record Plan prepared for Declarant by
Momenee and Associates, Inc , dated March 8, 2004, a true and correct copy of which 1s attached
hereto as Extubit A and made a part hereof (the “Plan™)

B The said Property i1s beng subdivided into twenty-one (21) townhouse lots
(“Townhouse Lots”) and a single one and one-half (1'4) story office building lot (“Lot 14”) The
Townhouse Lots are identified as Lots 1 through 13 and Lots 15 through 22 on the Plan

Heretnafter, the Townhouse Lots and Lot 14 are sometimes collectively referred to as the “Lots ™

(Htw Ay o (o "f’f_W




C Declarant desires that all of the Lots shall be developed and mantaned 1n such
manner so as to protect the value, attractiveness and desirability of the Property

D Declarant hereby further reserves for the benefit of any Owner, and such Owner's
tenants, agents, employees and invitees, the nght of full and uninterrupted use of the parking
spaces located within Lot 14, as depicted on the Plan, for the purpose of parking of automobiles
at all imes other than Normal Business Hours

E Declarant or Declarant's Successor has created or mtends to create a planned
community which will govern the Townhouse Lots by recording a Declaration of Bella Square
Townhomes Planned Commumnity 1n the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Montgomery County
(the “Association Declaration”)

EFINI NS.

Unless otherwise expressly provided, the following words and phrases when used herein
have the following meaning hereinafter specified

A “Association” shall mean and refer to the Bella Square Townhomes Community
Association

B “Cherry Street Dnveway” shall mean the common driveway located on the
Property that runs from Cherry Street beind Townhouse Lots 1 through 9 and 15 though 22 and
serves the Townhouse Lots and Lot 14 and is depicted on the Plan

C “Commututy Property” shall mean the portion of the Property which 1s subject to
the terms of the Association Declaration

D “Declarant” shall mean and refer to TR-Suburban, L P

E "Declarant's Successor" shall mean and refer to Ava Landholding, Inc
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F “Elm Street Driveway” shall mean the common dniveway located on the Property
that runs from Elm Street through Lot 14 and serves the Townhouse Lots and Lot 14 and 1s
depicted on the Plan  Herenafter, the Cherry Street Driveway and the Elm Street Driveway shall
sometimes be referred 1o collectively as the “Dnveways ™

G “Lot 14" shall mean and refer to the office building lot 1dentified as Lot 14 and as
shown upon the Plan

H “Lot 14 Owner” shall mean and refer to the person or persons or other legal
entity or entities, including Declarant, holding fee simple interest of record to Lot 14, including
sellers under executory contracts of sale, but excluding those having an interest merely as
security for the performance of an obligation

I “Lot 14 Parlang Easement” shall mean the parking easement located 1n the nine
(9) parking spaces within Lot 14 as identified and shown on the Plan

J “Normal Business Hours” shall mean from seven (7) o’clock am to six (6)
o’clock p m , Monday through Friday

K “Owner” shall mean and refer to the person or persons or other legal entity or
entities, including Declarant, holding fee simple interest of record to any Townhouse Lot,
including sellers under executory contracts of sale, but excluding those having an interest merely
as secunty for the performance of an obligation

L “Parking Easement” shall mean the Parking Easement located within the seven
(7) parking spaces adjacent to Lot 14 and within the rear portions of Townhouse Lots 9 through
13, as :dentified and shown on the Plan

M “Person” shall mean a natural individual or any other entity with the legal nght to

hold title to real property
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A Subject to the covenants set forth herein, Declarant hereby reserves for the benefit
of the Lot 14 Owner, its tenants, agents, employees and invitees, a nght-of-entry, full and
umnterrupted use, nght-of-way, liberty and privilege of and passage on and along all portions of
the Cherry Street Driveway as shown on the Plan for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicular
mngress and egress to and from Lot 14 and Cherry Street This easement area shall not be hmited
to the portion of the Cherry Street Driveway adjoimng Lot 14 but shall extend throughout the
entire Cherry Street Dnveway

B Subject to the covenants set forth herein, Declarant hereby reserves for the benefit
of any Owner, 1ts tenants, agents, employees and invitees, a nght-of-entry, full and umnterrupted
use, right-of-way, hiberty and privilege of and passage on and along all portions of the Elm Street
Driveway as shown on the Plan for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress to
and from the Townhouse Lots and Elm Street This easement area shall not be limited to the
portion of the Elm Street Driveway adjoimng Lot 14 but shall extend throughout the entire Elm
Street Dnveway

C Declarant hereby further reserves for the benefit of the Lot 14 Owner, its tenants,
agents, employees and invitees, the right of full and uminterrupted use and easement in and
through the Parking Easement, as depicted on the Plan, for the purpose of pedestnan and
vehicular access and the parking of automobiles 1n the seven (7) parking spaces shown on the
Plan on that portion of the Property The Parking Easement 1s vahid at all times, provided,
however, that during Normal Business Hours, the Parking Easement shall be specifically

reserved for the exclusive use of the Lot 14 Owner, its tenants, agents, employees and invitees
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At all other imes, the Parking Easement may be used by any Owner of Lots 9 through 13 and
his, her or their tenants and invitees

D Declarant further reserves for the benefit of the Owners, their tenants, invitees,
herrs, successors and assigns, the full nght and uninterrupted use and easement in and to the nine
(9) parking spaces located on Lot 14 for the purpose of parking automobiles 1n those nine (9)
parking spaces in common with the owner, invitees, employees and tenants of Lot 14 except
during Normal Business Hours (the "Lot 14 Parking Easement") The Lot 14 Parking Easement
1s vald at all times, provided, however, that during Normal Business Hours the Lot 14 Parking
Easement shall be specifically reserved for the exclusive use of the Lot 14 owner and its tenants,
invitees and employees At all other times, the Lot 14 Parking Easement may be used by the
Qwners and their invitees and tenants

E The Association and its successors or assigns, or anyone on its behalf, shall bear
the exclusive responsibiity for snow removal, mantenance and repair of the Driveways,
Parking Easement and Lot 14 Parking Easement (the "Driveway and Parking Maintenance")

F The Lot 14 Owner will be responsible for reimbursing the Association for a
proportionate share of the cost of the Driveway and Parking Maintenance (the “Reimbursement
Obligation™), the balance of such costs shall be the responsibility of the Association Said
Reimbursement Obligation shall be calculated as twenty-five percent (25%) of the total costs of
the Driveway and Parking Mantenance as itemized i the annual budget of Association (the
“Driveway and Parking Maintenance Share®) The Association shall provide a copy of the
annual budget of the Association every year, within thirty (30) days of its approval of same, to
the Lot 14 Owner The Lot 14 Owner shall pay to the Association one-twelfth (1/12th) of the

Driveway and Parking Maintenance Share on a monthly basis, payment to commence on the first
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day of the first month following occupancy of the office building on Lot 14 In the event the
amount for Driveway and Parking Maintenance itemized in the annual budget of the Association
1s msufficient to maintain the Dnveways, Parking Easement and Lot 14 Parking Easement, the
Association may assess the Lot 14 Owner for twenty-five percent (25%) of any additional costs
for Driveway and Parking Maintenance

G Further, 1n addition to the Driveway and Parking Maintenance Share, the Lot 14
Owner shall pay to the Association an annual contribution in the amount of twenty-five percent
(25%) of the reserve for the replacement of the dniveways and parking areas as itemized in the
annual budget of the Association (the “Annual Contnbution™) Such sum shall be paid within
thirty (30) days of receipt by the Lot 14 Owner of the annual budget of the Association

H Declarant hereby further reserves for the benefit of the Associanon, its successors
and assigns, an easement of access, ingress and egress over such portions of the Townhouse Lots
and Lot 14 as 1s necessary for the Driveway and Parking Maintenance

I In the event that the Association fails to properly maintain the Driveways, Parking
Easement or Lot 14 Parking Easement in a commercially reasonable manner, the Lot 14 Owner
shall have the right to maintain that portion of the Driveways, Parking Easement and Lot 14
Parking Easement necessary for access to the public street, Elm Street, after written notice has
been given to the Association and the Association has failed to cure the problem within thirty
(30) days of said written notification, provided, however, that the Lot 14 Owner may proceed
with reasonable diligence to correct any condition requiring immediate corrective action

J In the event that the Lot 14 Owner shall fail or refuse to make payment to the
Association pursuant to the Reimbursement Oblsgation and Annual Contribution, as described

herein, the Association shall be deemed to have advanced funds on behalf of the Lot 14 Owner,
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and shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Lot 14 Owner, including interest at the rate of
fifteen percent (15%) per annum

K In the event that either the Association or the Lot 14 Owner undertake corrective
action due to the failure of the respective responsible party to either properly maintain certain
improvements or make required retmbursement payments as provided herein, the party taking
corrective action shall be entitled to rembursement from the defaulting party of all costs
expended for corrective action including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and court
costs
SECTION 3. CONSTRUCTION NOTICE AND ACCEPTANCE. These restnctions and
casements shall be deemed covenants running with the land and shall bind and nure to the
benefit of the Lot 14 Owner, any Owner and the Association and their respective assigns and
successors 1n title Every person who owns, occupies or acquires any right, title, estate or
interest 1n and to any of the Lots does and shall be inclusively deemed to have consented and
agreed to every limitation, restriction, condition, and covenant contained herein, whether or not
any reference to these restnictions is contained 1n the instrument by which such person acquired
an interest 1n the Property, or any portion thereof
SECTION 4. ENFORCEMENT. This Declaration may be enforced by appropnate legal
proceedings by any Owner, the Lot 14 Owner or by Conshohocken Borough Nothing herein
shall be deemed, however, to require Conshohocken Borough or to indicate any intent on the part
of Conshohocken Borough, to mantain the Driveways and the Parking Easement
SECTION 5, INTERPRETATION. The provisions of this Declaration shall be hberally
construed 1n accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania The section

headings have been inserted for convenience only and shall not be considered or referred to in
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resolving questions or interpretation or construction Unless the context requires a contrary
construction, the singular shall include the plural and the plural the singular, and the masculine,
femimne, and neuter shall each include the masculine, fermmne and neuter
Declarant has executed this Declaration on the date first above written
TR-SUBURBAN, L.P.,
a Pennsylvana limited partnership,

By 1ts General Partner,
TR-ILLLC

Witness Q@“!’*&éf /M By

Anthon Rufo, Memb
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
s5
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

%\ -
On the AU day of Oarolgg Je— , 2005, before me, the subscriber, a Notary

Publsc, personally appeared ANTHONY M RUFO, who acknowledges himself to be a Member
of TR-III, LLC, and that he, as such Member, being authonzed to do so, executed the
foregoing instrument by signing the name of the Company by himseif as and for the act and deed
of said Compeny for the uses and purposes theremn contained and that he desires the same might
be recorded as such

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have hereunto set my official hand and seal

E otary Pubhc

ODMMOWLE__ALT -1 OF PENNSYLVANIA

Notanal Seal

Viclet A Summs Notary Public
Conshohacken Boro 2

Monigomery County
My Commission Expres Nov 8 2007
Member, Penraytvans Asscciauon Of Notanes
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THE PLAN
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Exhibit 5

2006 Easement
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THIS DECLARATION, made this 21st day of Apnil, 2006 by TR-Suburban, LP.,a
Pennsylvania limuted partnership whose mailing address is 424 E. Elm Street, Conshohocken,
Pennsylvania (*Declarant™).

WITNESSETH

A Declarant 18 the owner 1n fee of two parcels of land located 1 Conshohocken
Borough, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, and descnbed by the metes and bounds
descniption contamned m Exhibyt “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Entire
Prenuses”). The Entire Premuses is depicted on the Plan prepared by Momenee and Associates,
Inc. and attached hereto as Exlybit “B”.

B Declarant intends to convey a portion of the Entire Prermises denoted as Lot 14 on
the Plan and described by metes and bounds on Exhibit “C” attached hereto (“Lot 14”). Prior to
the conveyance of Lot 14, Declarant destres to create certmn easements which wall benefit Lot 14
and burden the parcel descibed by metes and bounds on Extubit “C? attached hereto and
depicted as “Prenuses C” on the Plan (“Lot C”).

C. Declarant desires to create certamn perpetual easements for the benefit of Lot 14
which will burden Lot C

NOW, THEREFORE, for and 1n consideration of benefits accruing to Declarant by
reason of this Declaration, and intending to be legally bound, Declarant for itself, its successors
and assigns, hereby declares as follows:

1 Defimtions. w

(=]

(8  “Occupant” means any person entitled to the use, occupancy or enjoymen =

of all or any portion of Lot 14, E

(b)  “Owner” means the then current holder from tume to time of fee simple p

title to any portion of the Entire Premises =

(c)  “Parking Easement Parcel” means that certaih portion of Lot C cross- g

hatched on the Plan. =
(d)  “Permittees” means the following persons

1) an Occupant, and

n) the officers, directors, employees, agents, contractots,
subcontractors, customers, patrons, clients, visitors, heensees and mvitees of any Occupant
and/or of any Owner, 1ts successors and assigns

TR SUBURBAN LP
BO23 UO0BL

E ELM ST

(¢)  “Person” means mdividuals, partnerships, firms, associations,
corporations, trusts and any other form of legal entity.

2 Grant of Easements

(a) Declarant hereby grants and declares that Lot C shall be held, sold,
transferred, conveyed, leased, mortgaged and used subject to the followng perpetual eascments

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGISTRY
05 00-05900-00-8 CONSHOHOCKEN
14

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGISTRY
05-00 05904-00-4 CONSHOHOCKEN
PHILA 1124546561 441 E HECTOR ST Ub

TR-SUBURBAN LP éeﬂiﬁe%py of recorded # 2006047903 (page 1 of 9) J/ik=
RECEWED AFR 2 4 2@. B 023 U 040 L 3348 DATE 04/24/06 Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds s 'i‘

Only valid with epm-signature on cover page === =




which shall be appurtenant to Lot 14 and which are granted to and for the benefit of any Owner,
his heirs and assigns, of all or any portion of Lot 14, and all Permittees with respect to Lot 14,

1) an easement to use the Parking Easement Parcel, in common with
Permittees of Lot C, for the parking and passage of motor vehicles and passage by pedestrians.
Tt 18 further provided that Permittees of Lot 14 shall have the exclusive right to post signs that
designating the three (3) spaces denoted on Exhibit “B” with double hatch marks as “Reserved
Parking Spaces” as parking spaces reserved for the Permittees of Lot C

1i) an casement to usc the Parking Easement Parcel for ingress and
egress, by vehicle or on foot, in, to, upon and over the Parking Easement Parcel for all purposcs
for which roadways, driveways and walkways are commonly used

3 Not Affected by Change 1n Use. The easements granted by this Declaration shall
continue 1n full force and effect as perpetual easements and shall be unaffected by any change in

the use, whether such change 18 in the nature of use or the intensity of use, of Lot 14 or any
portion thereof

4 Division of Lot C or Lot 14 If Lot C and/or Lot 14 are divided into multiple
parts by separation of ownership or by lease, to the extent an easement hereby created benefits
Lot 14, the benefits or the easements hereby created shall continue to attach to and run with, and
benefit and burden, as the case may be, each part so divided

5. Use of Parking Easement Parcel. Use of the Parking Easement Parcel is not
confined to present uses of the Entire Premises, the present buildings thereon (1f any) or present
means of transportation Declarant, 1ts successors and assigns as Owner of Lot 14, expressly
reserves the night to use the Parking Easement Parcel for the purposes set forth herein, and for
any other use that does not unreasonably mterfere with the use of the Parking Easement Parcel
for the purposes set forth herein

6 Maintenance. The Owner(s) of Lot C shall be responsible for, and shall bear all
costs for the construction, cleanliness, upkeep, maintenance, snow removal and repair of the
Parking Easement Parcel

T Running of Benefits and Burdens It1s intended that all provisions of thus
Declaranon, including the benefits and burdens, shall attach to and run with the Entire Premuses,
and each portion thereof, and shall be binding upon and mnure to the heirs, assigns, successors,
tenants and personal representatives of Declarant and all Owners of any portion of the Entire
Premuses

8 Rescission; Amendment. The provisions of this Declaration may be rescinded or
amended 1n whole or n part only by the joinder of all Owners of all or any portion of the Entire
Premises m such rescission or amendment. No other party or parties n mterest shall have the
nght to rescind or amend, in whole or in part, ts Declaration; nor shall the effectiveness of any
rescission or amendment of this Declaration be dependent on the consent or approval of any
other party or parties 1n interest

PHILA 2454656\
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF Declarant has caused this Declaration of Cross Easements to
be exccuted as of the date and year first above written

DECLARANT

TR ~ SUBURBAN, L.P., a Pennsylvama hmited
partnership, by its general partner

BY: TR-0OLLL.C

S
Anthony M Ruto, Member

PHILA1\2454656\1
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Ape!

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTY OF _ﬁ”.\a\ﬁganmf&\

On the &‘5\- day of % ! , 2006, before me, the subscriber, a Notary
Public for the Commonwealth of Penndylvama, residing in the County aforesaid, personally

ap| who acknowledged lumself/herself to be the managing member of
TR - III, LLC, as general partner of TR — Suburban, L P., a Pennsylvania limited parmershup,
and that he/she as such _pagw pr , being authonzed to do so, executed the foregomng
instrument for the purposes therein contamed by sigmng his/her name on behalf of said
partnership

Witness my hand and notanal seal the day and year aforesaid.

Notary Public

My Commussion Expires

PHILA1\2454656\]
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JOINDER

This Joinder of Susquehanna/Patriot Bank, Mortgagee, for Lot C, is an acknowledgement that
their encumbrance will be subordinate to this Easement,

Susquehanna/Patniot Bank
By Q. Pl e Ylai\o
J . Erb, Vice President Date
-5.
PHILA1\2454650\] LTla
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EXHIBT “A”

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Premises “C’, Situate in the Borough
of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc, dated March 8, 2004, last revised
October 26, 2005, as follows, to wit

BEGINNING at a pornt, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the casterly side of Cherry Street, (50 00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Flm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 280 00 feet to a common
corner with Lot 14 marked by a spike to be set, thence from said point of beginning
leaving the northerly side of Elm Street and along & common line with Lot 14 North 05
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 200,00 feet to a point marked by an iron pin to be
set along the southern side of Hector Street (50 00 feet wide) 8 common corner with Lot
13, thence along the southem side of Hector Street North 85 degrees 00 munutes 00
seconds East 180 00 feet to a point at the intersection with the northedy side of Elm
Street, thence along the northerly side of Elm Street the following four courses (1) South
05 degrees 11 minutes 00 seconds East 90 53 feet to a point, (2) South 84 degrees 49
minutes 38 seconds West 0.50 feet to & point, (3) along the arc of circle curving to the
right with a radius of 110.00 feet and an arc length 172,38 feet to a point, (4) South 84
degrees 53 minutes 31 seconds West 70 00 feet to the first mentioned point and place of
beginning

CONTAINING 33,455 SF (0 7680 acres) of land more or less

BEING Parcel #05-00-05904-00-4

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buldings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of
Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E

Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised
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October 26, 2005, and recorded 1n Montgomery County in Plan Book 25 page
276, as follows, to wit

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an 1ron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50,00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Elm Street North B5 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166 36 feet to a common
comer with Lot 15, thence from said point of beginning leaving the northerly side of Elm
Street and along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West 100 00 feet to 2 common comner of Lots 15, 8 and 9, thence along a common line
with Lots 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 113 64 feot
to a common corner with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premises C, thence along
said line South 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100,00 feet to a point along the
northerly side of Elm Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along said line South 85
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 113.64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of

beginning
CONTAINING 11,364 SF (0 2609 acres) of land more or less

BEING Parcel #05-00-05900-00-8

BEING as to part, the same premises which Edward A Comer and Flaine K Comer, his
wife by Deed dated 6/10/1999 and recorded 7/19/1999 in the County of Montgomery in
Deed Book 5279 page 1803, conveyed unto TR-Suburban, L P., a Pennsylvania limited

partnership, in foe
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EXHIBIT “C”

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and improvements
thereon erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of Conshohocken,
County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvama, bounded and
descnbed according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E. Hector Street
by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised October 26,
2005, and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book 25 page 276, as follows, to
wit

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from an
iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet wide),
and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side of Elm
Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166.36 feet to a common comner with
Lot 15, thence from said point of beginming leaving the northerly side of Elm Street and
along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 100.00 feet
to a common corner of Lots 15, 8 and 9, thence along a common line with Lots 9, 10, 11,
12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 113.64 feet to 2 common comer
with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premuses C, thence along said line South 05
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00 feet to a point along the northerly side of Elm
Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along seid line South 85 degrees 00 minutes 00
seconds West 113,64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of beginning,

CONTAINING 11,364 SF (0 2609 acres) of land more or less.

BEING Parcel #05-00-05900-00-8.

BEING as to part, the same premises which Edward A Comer and Elaine K. Comer, his
wife by Deed dated 6/10/1999 and recorded 7/19/1999 1n the County of Montgomery in

Deed Book 5279 page 1803, conveyed uanto TR-Suburban, L.P., a Pennsylvama limited
partnership, in fee.

W‘S’#’&"’
/' &’

030231.D14
02-24-06 ,
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Exhibit 6

Parking Summary

Existing Parking - 49 Spaces

18 spaces on site

3 Elm Street (exclusive)

15 Elm Street (non-exclusive)
13 Elm Street (non-exclusive)
49 Total

Existing Parking Demand - 34 Spaces
17 spaces for Second Floor Office (4,200 sf office at 4/1,000 sf = 17)
17 spaces for Yoga Studio

84 students (20-50 sf per “student” 4,200sf /5 students = 84 maximum students)
-IBC Max capacity is 50 sf per student
-Industry standard is 20 sf per student

84 students / 5 = 17 spaces

Proposed Use Parking Demand —
17 spaces for Second Floor Office - No change proposed
16 spaces for First Floor
1,050 sf of service/storage/warehouse @ 1/450 sf = 2.3 spaces

3,200 sf of office @ 4/1000 sf = 12.8 spaces

Excerpts from § 27-2002 re Off-site Parking:

Studio for dance, art, music or photography - 1 space per 5 students, and/or 1 space per 300 square
feet of gross floor area for nonstudent patrons.

Indoor sports facility -1 1/2 spaces per person for maximum court and exercise equipment capacity.
Business or administrative offices - 1 space per 250 square feet of gross floor area.

Laboratory or industry - The larger of 1 space per employee or per 450 square feet of gross floor area.

{00358472;1}



Exhibit 7

Excerpt from Chapter 10 Means of Egress, 2021 International Building Code
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7/19/2021 CHAPTER 10 MEANS OF EGRESS, 2021 International Building Code (IBC) | ICC Digital Codes

NN DIGITAL : Search acr. ..

= Menu ARWN CODES
AEE

Q

@ 2. Sign In HH

Section 1005.6, the occupant load from separate stories shall not be added.

Search Type @

Title
1004.3 Multiple function occupant load.

Where an area under consideration contains multiple functions having different occupant
load factors, the design occupant load for such area shall be based on the floor area of

each function calculated independently.

1004.4 Multiple occupancies. «uv#

Where a building contains two or more occupancies, the means of egress requirements
shall apply to each portion of the building based on the occupancy of that space. Where
two or more occupancies utilize portions of the same means of egress system, those
egress components shall meet the more stringent requirements of all occupancies that are

served.

1004.5 Areas without fixed seating. «

The number of occupants shall be computed at the rate of one occupant per unit of area

as prescribed in Table 1004.5. For areas without fixed seating, the occupant load shall be
not less than that number determined by dividing the floor area under consideration by the
occupant load factor assigned to the function of the space as set forth in Table 1004.5.
Where an intended function is not listed in Table 1004.5, the building official shall establish
a function based on a listed function that most nearly resembles the intended function.

Exception: Where approved by the building official, the actual number of occupants
for whom each occupied space, floor or building is designed, although less than those
determined by calculation, shall be permitted to be used in the determination of the

design occupant load.

TABLE 1004.5 MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA ALLOWANCES PER OCCUPANT

OCCUPANT
FUNCTION OF SPACE LOAD
FACTOR?
:(:)cr:ssory storage areas, mechanical equipment 300 gross
Agricultural building 300 gross
Aircraft hangars 500 gross

Airport terminal

https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/IBC2021P1/chapter-10-means-of-egress

FEEDBACK

LIVE CHAT
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— -
Waiting areas L 15 gross
Assembly Title i cgtem
Gaming floors (keno, slots, etc.) 11 gross
Exhibit gallery and museum 30 net
Assembly with fixed seats Sefoiic-:gon
Assembly without fixed seats
Concentrated (chairs only—not fixed) 7 net
Standing space 5 net
Unconcentrated (tables and chairs) 15 net
Bowling centers, allow 5 persons for each lane 7 net
including 15 feet of runway, and for additional areas
Business areas 150 gross
Concentrated business use areas See Section
1004.8
Courtrooms—other than fixed seating areas 40 net
Day care 35 net
Dormitories 50 gross
Educational
Classroom area 20 net
Shops and other vocational room areas 50 net
Exercise rooms 50 gross
Group H-5 fabrication and manufacturing areas 200 gross
Industrial areas 100 gross
Institutional areas
Inpatient treatment areas 240 gross
Outpatient areas 100 gross i‘,
Sleeping areas 120 gross §
Kitchens, commercial 200 gross §
Library
Reading rooms 50 net E
Stack area 100 gross 5
Locker rooms 50 gross %
Mall buildings—covered and open SECIEEETh
402.8.2

https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/IBC2021P1/chapter-10-means-of-egress 71122
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Residential Search Tvoe @ 200 gross
Skating rinks, swimming pools Title Cortent
Rink and pool 50 gross
Decks 15 gross
Stages and platforms 15 net
Warehouses 500 gross

For Sl: 1 foot = 304.8 mm, 1 square foot = 0.0929 m?,

a. Floor area in square feet per occupant.

1004.5.1 Increased occupant load. <o»

The occupant load permitted in any building, or portion thereof, is permitted to be
increased from that number established for the occupancies in Table 1004.5, provided
that all other requirements of the code are met based on such modified number and
the occupant load does not exceed one occupant per 7 square feet (0.65 m2) of
occupiable floor space. Where required by the building official, an approved aisle,
seating or fixed equipment diagram substantiating any increase in occupant load shall
be submitted. Where required by the building official, such diagram shall be posted.

1004.6 Fixed seating.

For areas having fixed seats and aisles, the occupant load shall be determined by the
number of fixed seats installed therein. The occupant load for areas in which fixed seating
is not installed, such as waiting spaces, shall be determined in accordance with Section
1004.5 and added to the number of fixed seats.

The occupant load of wheelchair spaces and the associated companion seat shall be
based on one occupant for each wheelchair space and one occupant for the associated
companion seat provided in accordance with Section 1109.2.3.

For areas having fixed seating without dividing arms, the occupant load shall be not
less than the number of seats based on one person for each 18 inches (457 mm) of
seating length.

FEEDBACK

The occupant load of seating booths shall be based on one person for each 24 inches
(610 mm) of booth seat length measured at the backrest of the seating booth.

LIVE CHAT

1004.7 Outdoor areas. 0¥

https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/IBC2021P1/chapter-10-means-of-egress 8/122
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7/19/2021 schedule - online with Yoga Home

about oo events meditation privates * practice online *

Our schedule includes classes Online and Outdoors!

Our Summer Schedule is now LIVE! Please note: New schedule starts 6/1. Please click
below to confirm Outdoor class location and teacher. Join us for your first 5-Days on
OMM, FREE!

To register for online and outdoor classes, click

here.
MONDAY Style Teacher
7-8am Outdoor - All Levels @ Sutcliffe Jenn/Steph (see Namasiream for details)
12 — 12:45pm Basics Nicole
6 —7pm Power Flow Kerri
7:30 -8 pm Live Monthly Meditation Maura (1%t Sunday of month)
TUESDAY
12 - 12:45pm Community Care Maura
6 — 7pm Outdoor — All Levels @ A field Kerri
6-7pm Slow Flow Alicia
7:30 - 8:30pm Prenatal 4-Wk Series* Allison
WEDNESDAY
7-8am Outdoor — All Levels @ Sutcliffe Kristin
12— 12:45pm Vinyasa Gaby
8-9pm Yin Maura
THURSDAY
12— 12:45 pm Community Care Kerri
5:45 - 6:45 pm Outdoor — All Levels @ A field Candace
8 —9pm Gentle Meghan
FRIDAY
12 — 12:45pm Outdoor — All Leveis @ B field Maura
12 — 12:45pm Vinyasa Kerri
SATURDAY
9 - 10am Outdoor — All Levels @ A field Kristie
9:30-10:45 am Vinyasa & Meditation Candace
SUNDAY
9 - 10am QOutdoor — All Levels (@ A field Alicia thru 6/27, then Steph
10:15 — 11:15am Gentle Gaby/Rose (see Namastream for details)
8 — 9pm Monthly Yoga Nidra or Restorative | *check schedule for dates & teachers

At Yoga Home, we believe yoga is for everyone and all should have access to yoga.
We proudly offer community tiered pricing to make yoga more accessible & equitable for all.

https://ouryogahome.com/schedule/

blog
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BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Zoning Application

Apph‘caﬁon:* —&""}3\“\“&

Date Submitted:\ >« \- ;3

Application is hereby made for:

Date Received: \ ¢

mSpecial Exception DVariance

DAppeal of the decision of the zoning officer

DConditional Use approval D Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance

I:I Other

Section of the Zoning Ordinance from which relief is requested:
Seclion 27-7038

Address of the property, which is the subject of the application:

424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken, PA

SKEIm LLC ¢/o Marlin Klagholz

Applicant’s Name:
826 Dresher Way, Wayne PA 19087

Address:
Phone Number (daytimé): &
E-mail Address; Mc@360kbs.com>

Applicant is (check one): Legal Owneru Equitable Owner; Tenaul[j

Jeronimo, LLC c/o Equitable Owner SK Elm LLC

Property Owner:
Address: 424 East Elm Street, Conshahocken, PA

Phone Number: ©10-337-5585

E-mail Address:

ecampbell@camphbellroccolaw.com

Lot Dimensions: irregular; 11,364 sq. ft. Zoning District: BR-2 Borough Residential 2




10.

11.

8.

Has there been previous zoning relief requested in connection with this Property?
Yes i_; No| v/ ; If yes, please describe.

Applicant is unaware of any prior zoning relief.

Please describe the present use of the property including any existing improvements
and the dimensions of any structures on the property.

The site currently contains a two story non-conforming building. Each floor of the building is approximately 4,000

sf. The first floor is a yoga studio. The second floor is office space. The property has 18 parking spaces on site
and additional spaces pursuant to an easement on an adjacent property.

Please describe the proposed use of the property.

The applicant proposes no change of use on the second floor, it will continue as office. The applicant proposes to
convert the first floor yoga studio to a mix of warehouse/storage, equipment service/maintenance and related
support and office space.

Please see addendum

Please describe proposal and improvements to the property in detail.

The Special Exception is requested in order to allow the change of a non-conforming use to a less intense
non-conforming use. No change to the footprint of the building is proposed.

Please see addendum




12.  Please describe the reasons the Applicant believes that the requested relief should be
granted.

27-703 Change of Use.

‘B. {1) A nonconforming use may be changed to another nonconforming use which is equally appropriate or more .
_appropriate to the district in which the property is located

13.  If a Variance is being requested, please describe the following:

a. The unique characteristics of the property:

b. How the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restricts development of the property:

c. How the proposal is consistent with the character of the surrounding

neighborhood.

d. Why the requested relief is the minimuin required to reasonably use the

property; and why the proposal could not be less than what is proposed.

14.  The following section should be completed if the applicant is contesting the
determination of the zoning officer.
a. Please indicate the section of the zoning ordinance that is the subject of the
zoning officer’s decision (attach any written correspondence relating to the
determination).




b. Please explain in detail the reasons why you disagree with the zoning officer’s
determination.

15.  If the Applicant is requesting any other type of relief, please complete the following
section.

a. Type of relief that is being requested by the applicant.
Special Exception

b. Please indicate the section of the Zoning Ordinance related to the relief being
requested.

27-703 B. (1} A nonconforming use may be changed to another nonconforming use which is equally
.appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property is located.

c. Please describe in detail the reasons why the requested relief should be granted.

.Such new use is equally appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property is located.

.See Addendum

16.  If the applicant is being represented by an attorney, please provide the following
information.

Attorney’s Name: Edmund J. Campbell, Jr. Esquire

a
i d, F
b. Address: 2701 Renaissance Boulevard, Fourth Floor

Phone Number: ©19-337-5%6%

E-mail Address: ecampbell@campbellroccolaw.com

o

-




I/we hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge, all of the above statements contained in
this Zoning Application and any papers or plans submitted with this application to the

Borough of Conshghocken afe frue and gofredt.
SK Elm LLC by Edmupdd7Cern ;% authg@ repn ymﬁe‘
Applicant % ( / 7 1 4

v
Sk Sfem, AL

Legal Owner
Vowe /F, ZeZ/
Date <

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

As subscribed and sworn to before me this / / 7:/ day of
puE 0.2/

Ith of Pennsylvania - Notary Seal
(Seal) ' ComT{oanr:v;}a\' Reichner.yNotary Public
Phitadelphia County
My commission expires November 13,2022
Commission number 1194882
Mombar, Pennsylvania Association of Notarles

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092| Fax: (610) 828- 0920 | wwiw.canshohockenpa.org




BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Decision

(For Borough Use Only)

Application Granted [ Application Denied [

MOTION:

CONDITIONS:

BY ORDER OF THE ZONING HEARING BOARD

Yes No

0o o o oo
O O o g

DATE OF ORDER:

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohacken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) §28-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920] www. conshohackenpa.org



ADDENDUM TO ZONING APPLICATION
SK Elm LLC
Requesting a Special Exception

424 East Elm Street

The Applicant, SK Elm LLC intends to operate its related business, Key Business Solutions (KBS) at 424
East Elm Street in the Borough of Conshohocken (the “Property”). The Property is located in the BR-2
zoning district. There is a 2 story building located on the Property and it is currently used for office and
a yoga studio. Those uses are not permitted in the BR-2 district.

KBS is in the business of providing mail room equipment supplies and support services. KBS proposes to
move its current operations to the Property. There will be no change of use on the second floor as it
will be used as office by KBS administration. The first floor will be used for storage of mail room
equipment such as postage meters, scales, printers, etc. and supplies used with such equipment. The
first floor will be used to prepare this equipment to be delivered to customers. The first floor will also
be used to service this type of equipment. The first floor will also contain office space supporting these

activities.

The service and maintenance of this mail room equipment does not involve any process that creates
noise, dust or fumes. The service and maintenance of this mail room does not involve hazardous

materials.

KBS employs approximately 20 full-time individuals, however only 10 employees will regularly worlk at

the Property.
No changes are proposed to the footprint of the building or the exterior of the Property.

Deliveries to the KBS Elm Street facility are made by standard “fed-ex” style box trucks. Typically there
are 1-2 such trips per day at KBS's existing facility and that is not expected to be any different at the
Property. Other than the initial move in, no full size trailer deliveries are anticipated.

The exterior signage will be changed to reflect KBS. The size and location of the existing signage will not

change.




EXHIBIT “B”




BEFORE THE BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN

ZONING HEARING BOARD

In Re: SK Elm, LLC
for the Property at 424 E. Elm Street

A Public Hearing was taken via
GoToMeeting video conferencing by and before
Edward T. McKenna, Professional Reporter, on

Monday, August 16, 2021, commencing at 7:12 p.m.

BEFORE:

RICHARD D. BARTON, Chairman
MARK S. DANEK

GREGORY SCHARFF

MARLOWE DOMAN

ALAN CHMIELEWSKI

APPEARANCES:

ALEXANDER M. GLASSMAN, ESQ., Solicitor

EDMUND J. CAMPBELL, JR., ESQ., for the Applicant
ERIC B. FREEDMAN, ESQ., for TRDS 441 Hector
Associates, LP

ERIC JOHNSON, Zoning Officer

BOBBI JO MYRSIADES, Administrative Assistant

ALL POINTS REPORTING
723 Erlen Road
Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462
(610) 272-6731

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731




I N D E X

Fiona Jamison 18
Frank Tavani 41, 102
Michael Barrist 73
Anthony Rufo 88

EXHIBTITS
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Number Description

Zoning application

Agreement of sale

Declaration of easement

Prior zoning hearing board decision
Jamison entry of appearance

TRDS entry of appearance

Zoning determination 7/9/21

Jamison entry of appearance
Kellerman entry of appearance
Talone entry of appearance

Zoning notice

Rerial site photographs

Ground level photographs

Site plan

2005 easement

2006 easement

Parking summary

International Building Code excerpt -
Yoga studio schedule

Letter dated 8/12/21
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CHAIRMAN BARTON: So now we will
continue to the top of the agenda, and our first
application this evening is for 424 East Elm
Street in Conshohocken. This is Zoning Hearing
Z-2021-14.

The petitioner is SK Elm, LLC, of
826 Dresher Way, Wayne, PA 19087. Premises
involved is 424 East Elm Street, in Conshohocken,
and the property is zoned Borough Residential 2.
The owner of record is Jeronimos, LLC, 424 East
Elm Street, Conshohocken.

The applicant i1is seeking a special
exception from the zoning hearing board, per
Section 27-703.B to permit the change of a
nonconforming use, and we have a number of
exhibits that I will read into the record.

And we'll start with P-1, which is
the zoning application. That includes an
addendum and a deed for the property; P-2, the
agreement of sale; P-3, a declaration of
easement; P-4 1s a copy of the prior zoning
hearing board decision; P-5 is an entry of
appearance as a party for Fiona Jamison of 442

East Elm Street; P-6 is an entry of appearance

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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for TRDS Hector Associates, LP, at 441 East
Hector Street. That is through their counsel,
Eric B. Freedman; P-7 is a zoning determination,
dated July 9th, 2021, by Eric P. Johnson, PE, to
Stephanie Cecco and Brittany Rogers of
Conshohocken Borough; P-8, an entry of appearance
by Fiona Jamison, dated August 16th; P-9, an
entry of appearance by Richard Kellerman of 414
Fast Elm Street; P-10, an entry of appearance by
Russell Talone. Once again, P-10 is an entry for
Russell Talone of 510 East Hector Street; P-11
will be the zoning notice.

And then we have the following
exhibits submitted by the applicant: A-1, aerial
photos of the site; A-2, ground level photos;
A-3, a site plan; A-4, a 2005 easement; A-5, 2006
easement; A-6, a parking summary; A-7, an excerpt
from Chapter 10, Means of Egress, 2021,
International Building Code; and A-8, a yoga
studio schedule.

(Exhibits P-1 through P-11 marked

for identification; Applicant's

Exhibits A~1 through A-8 marked

for identification.)

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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CHAIRMAN BARTON: And before we
speak about the entries of appearance, I'm goin@
to confirm with Mr. Johnson, have all of the
notices been mailed for this hearing tonight?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, they have.

CHATIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

And, Alex Glassman, if you would,
let's go over these entries of appearance --

MR. GLASSMAN: Yes.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: -- seeking party
status.

MR. GLASSMAN: Yes, Mr. Barton.
As you stated, there are five of them, although
two of them are for the same person. That was
P-5 and P-7 or P-8.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: P-8, vyes.

MR. GLASSMAN: If you recall, last
month, before we continued the hearing, even
though we did not take any testimony, we did
discuss, I believe, an attorney protestant. The
next door neighbor was here, along with the
property owner of the subject property.

With that being said, I know

Mr. Campbell is going to mention that he is --

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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the application has been slightly tweaked in
terms of who his client is.

I would like to go through and
deal with the regquest for party status from
Mr. Kellerman, and we have marked that P-9.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Please do.

MR. JOHNSON: So, Mr. Kellerman,
are you present? I'm not seeing you on my
screen.

MR. KELLERMAN: Yes, Mr. Kellerman
is present, 414 East Elm Street.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Kellerman, I
just want to confirm that you are seeking to be a
party to this application, you have not simply
submitted your letter because you have some
questions or you want to listen into it.

You do, in fact, want to be a
party, and that you want to have the same rights
to cross—-examine any witnesses, and ha&e appeal
rights, if you believe you are aggrieved by the
decision?

MR. KELLERMAN: Yes.

MR. GLASSMAN: Okay. And

approximately how far is 414 East Elm Street from

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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the subject property that we're here for this
evening?

MR. KELLERMAN: It is directly
adjacent to the property. So it's essentially

the next door neighbor.

MR. GLASSMAN: And I'm assuming --

MR. KELLERMAN: So 15 feet.

MR. GLASSMAN: I'm assuming you
received notice of the hearing this evening?

MR. KELLERMAN: Yes.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Campbell, any
objections to Mr. Kellerman? He's at 414, the
subject property is at 424.

MR. CAMPBELL: No objection.

MR. GLASSMAN: Okay.

MR. CAMPBELL: Given the proximity
to the property, no objection.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Barton, I'd
recommend that we approve party status for
Mr. Kellerman as P-9.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Okay.

MR. GLASSMAN: And if we move
forward to P-10, Russell Talone, T-a-l-c-n-e.

Mr. Talone, are you present?

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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Mr. Talone?

Mr. Barton, seeing that he has not

replied or responded, I'm not seeing his name on

the participant list, I would recommend that we

at this time do not grant party status, but if he

calls in later or 1if this hearing is continued to

another date, that we could revisit this issue
later.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Understood.
Thank vyou.

MR. GLASSMAN: And I believe we
did, at the last hearing, although I'm not
positive on the exhibit number, since I didn't
see the transcript, but I believe we did allow
for party status of Eric Freedman, through his
client, TRDS 441 Hector Associates, LP.

And, Eric, you're present, I
believe?

MR. FREEDMAN: That's correct.
Yes, I'm here.

MR. GLASSMAN: And, Mr. Barton,
we did not previously, I believe at the last
hearing, we did grant party status.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: I believe we

if

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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did, yes.

MR. CAMPBELL: They're a
neighboring property. No objection.

MR. GLASSMAN: And,‘Mr. Campbell,
I'll go back to you, 1if you want to explain the
change in who the applicant is?

MR. CAMPBELL: Sure. So I made an
application on behalf of SK Elm, LLC, the
equitable owner of the property, pursuant to an
agreement of sale.

When we filed the application,
Fiona Jamison, who 1s the sole member of the
owner of the property, entered her appearance on
her behalf, on behalf of the owner. So I wrote
to -- I've spoken with Ms. Jamison since that
time, and I wrote to Mr. Barton entering my
appearance on behalf of the owner, Jeronimos,
LLC. They have standing under the MPC, and I
would ask that the application be amended to
reflect Jeronimos as a co-app.

MR. GLASSMAN: And Jeronimos,“LLC,
was listed as the owner of record on the zoning
hearing notice that was sent out and mailed out.

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes.

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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MR. GLASSMAN: And, Mr. Campbell,
to clarify, has any of the zoning relief changed
at allv»

MR. CAMPBELL: No, 1t's the same
exact request. There is =-- the property is
nonconforming, and the application is to change
the first floor use from a wellness/yoga center
to office, ‘which was the use back in 2005. i
think Mr. Barton referenced in one of the
exhibits in the record is that prior special
exception.

MR. GLASSMAN: And, Mr. Chairman,
hearing that and reviewing documents, I would
feel comfortable proceeding with the applicant
now being Jeronimos, LLC, rather than SK Elm,
LLC.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: I will agree and
we should proceed.

So said that, Mr. Campbell, are
there any witnesses that you wish to introduce up
front or do you want to introduce the case at
this time?

MR. CAMPBELL: So, Mr. Barton,

I'll present two witnesses tonight. Fiona

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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Jamison is here, and Frank Tavani, who's a
traffic engineer, 1is here.

You reviewed the exhibits that
were submitted in anticipation of the last
hearing. I submitted a letter to Mr. Tavani --
from Mr. Tavani to the board earlier today. I
believe Bobbi Jo has it. So I'd like to refer to
that as Exhibit 9.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Okay. So that
will be A-9.

(Exhibit A-9 marked for

identification.)

MR. CAMPBELL: And if I could give
a brief summary or overview, and then swear our
witnesses in, and we'll go through the exhibits?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Before you begin
with that, the letter that we're calling A-9 is
from your engineer?

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, Frank Tavani
and Associates. He's a traffic engineer. The
letter is dated August 12th.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you. Yes,
please proceed.

MR. CAMPBELL: Thank vyou.

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731
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So the property is located at 424
East Elm Street. The property is in
Residential -- it's BR-2 Residential Zoning
District. It is nonconforming. It is a
two-story office building. Each floor 1is
comprised of approximately 4,420 sguare feet.

I say approximately because the
records are slightly different whether or not you
include the stairwells or not. It's
approximately 4,000 square feet per floor.

This office —-- this building was
previously an office on both floors. In 2005,
the board approved a special exception to change
that nonconforming use on the first floor to a
wellness center/yoga studio, and it's operated
like that since the last 16 years.

Candidly, probably because of
Covid and for other reasons that are sort of
beyond our relevance, it's -- the yoga studio and
wellness center are not viable, and the owner
would like to return to the office use.

The standard that the borough's
ordinance permits a change of nonconforming use

to another nonconforming use, so long as the
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second nonconforming use is equal or no less
burdensome‘on the community, and I think the
testimony we will provide today will establish
that returning it to an office is equal or eithe
an improvement on the burden that this
nonconforming use has on the community.

There are currently 18 parking
spaces on the property. The property benefits
from an easement, which provides it with the
exclusive right to use three parking spaces on
the immediately adjacent building, and 29
non-exclusive parking spaces on the adjacent
building.

So the total number of spaces
available to the property is approximately 49.
would note that the property -- the parking
spaces that are on the space are also subject to
an easement that the townhouse owners in the
immediate vicinity have a right to use on
non-office hours.

So what Bobbi Jo has just put up
is my Exhibit 6, which is sort of a parking
summary that I think is helpful to understand

what we're talking about, 18 spaces on-site,

r

I
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three spaces on Elm Street. I think there's a
typo. It should be 16 on Elm and 13 on Hector
for a total 49 or 50 spaces.

The existing parking demand, if
you -- one way to calculate it would be to use
the borough's parking provisions, which require
four spaces per thousand, which would require 17
spaces for the second floor. The first floor is
a yoga studio. Depending on how you calculate
it, but aggressively calculating it, it's also 17
parking spaces.

So if you convert the first floor
from yoga to office, it's essentially no change
in the parking demand. There will be a
significant reduction in the number of trips that
come to the site by converting it from office to
a yoga studio. Fiona Jamison will testify to
that. That's a guick overview.

Bobbi Jo, can you go to Exhibit 17

Exhibit 1 is actually two sheets
that show the location of the property from an
aerial perspective. There's 1.1 on the top and
1.2 on the bottom. The property is located with

a red dot on the building. That's simply to put
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the location of this property in context.

Can you go to Exhibit 27

These are photographs of the
building from the ground level, and they're
marked as the southern facade is 2.1. The west
facade is the bottom half of that page.

Go to the next page.

The northern facade and the
eastern facade. It's hard to see on my computer,
but i1if you had that picture physically in your
hand, in that photograph are the three exclusive
parking spaces available to this property that's
located on the adjacent property.

Can you go to Exhibit 37

So Exhibit 3 is a site plan,‘and
it's actually recorded in the Montgomery County
Recorder of Deeds Office, and it was recorded as
part of a subdivision for the townhouses.

What I've done 1is marked in red
the 18 parking spaces that are on the site,
marked in green the three parking spaces, which
are exclusive to the site, for the site's
exclusive use on the adjacent property, and then

the yellow parking spaces are non-exclusive
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parking spaces, 16 off of Elm and 13 off’of
Hector, which are available to my client's
property, pursuant to the 2006 easement.

Go to Exhibit 4.

I just want to get in the record,
2005, this 1is the 2005 easement, which 1s the
easement that was recorded when the townhouse
development was built, and it provides the
townhouse owners with the right to park on the
spaces, on the subject property during off hours,
meaning from 6:00 p.m. in the evening until
8:00 a.m., the neighborhood townhouse residents
are allowed park there.

Go to exhibit -- what am I up to
now -- six. I'm sorry. Exhibit 5.

This is a 2006 exhibit, which
provides my client with the exclusive use of
three parking spaces on the adjacent, the Freeman
property, and 29, use of 29 spaces on fhe Freeman
spaces, non-exclusive. So three exclusive and 29
non-exclusive.

Go to the next exhibit.

So I forgot, I'll probably ask

Eric Johnson a simple question, whether or not
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the borough adopts and uses the Internal Building
Code.

This is an excerpt from the
Internal Building Code, and the value is that it
shows the occupancy load of a yoga studio, and
that's one way to calculate the number of parking
spaces that would be available.

Can you go to the next exhibit?

So if you were to go online and
you were to look today at the yoga studio that's
there —-- this 1s their website, and that's an
indication of their schedule, and that was posted
online, to give you, the board, a sense of,
essentially, before Covid, what the traffic in
and out was like, in terms of number of classes

per day and on the weekends.

Next exhibit. The next exhibit is
probably the parking -- yeah.
That's Mr. Tavani's letter. T

think the only exhibit is the parking summary,

which we have discussed.

So that's it. That's an overview
of the application, and a review of those

exhibits.
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I would ask that Ms. Jamison and

Mr. Tavanili be sworn in.

FRANK TAVANI, having been duly

sworn, was examined and testified

as follows:

FIONA JAMISON, having been duly

sworn, was examined and testified

as follows:

MR. CAMPBELL: I'm going to start

with Ms. Jamison.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q. Ms. Jamison, what's your relationship to
Jeronimos?

A. I am the owner of Jeronimos.

Q. And as the owner of Jeronimos, you operate
your business at the property?

A. Jeronimos 1s a real estate holding company
that owns the building. |

Q. Right, but you operate your -- your office
on the second floor?

A. That's correct.

Q. And how long have you run your business on

is
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the second floor?

A. Since 2007, I believe.

Q. Is that when you bought the property?

A. It is.

Q. So when you bought the property, was the
first floor already the wellness center and the
yoga studio?

A. It was a yoga studio/cafe.

Q. So you heard my summary of our application?

A. I did.

Q. And you heard me review the exhibits with the
board?
A. I did.

Q. Okay. So is there anything that you would
take issue with in terms of my summary? Anything
that I said incorrectly or anything that you
would want to supplement?

A. The only thing I would add is that the yoga
studio schedule that was displayed was for online
and outdoor classes, which is since they have
been closed. When they were indoor and operating
in the facility, they would have five to six
classes a day in both rooms, so significantly

more classes than they're currently operating.
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So I think what was active in the
studio is different than how they're operating
now outside, in the parking lot and parks.

Q. So let's first talk about the actual on-site
parking. I indicated that there are 18 parking
spaces on-site; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And pursuant to the easement you have with
your adjacent neighbor, you have the right to use
three parking spaces exclusively on your
neighbor's property, correct?

A That's correct.

Q. And also pursuant to that easement, you have
the right to use 29 parking spaces on that same
adjacent property owner's parking lots, correct?
A. That's correct.

Q. We have also discussed the fact that there's
an easement on your property, which allows your
neighbors to use the parking spaces on your
property, correct?

A. That's correct, during off hours. So after
6:00 p.m. and up until 8:00 a.m. in the morning.
Q. Has that ever been a problem from an

operation standpoint?
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A, No, we operate normal business hours. So
once my employees and office workers leave, the
residents occasionally use those spots, but
they're never fully occupied.

Q. So i1t's never been a conflict or a problem
where you can’t‘use spaces because they're full,

where neighbors come to you and complain that

you're -—--

A No.

Q. -- staying late?
A. No.

Q. Let's talk about the yoga studio. So it was

in operation when you purchased the property in

200772
A. It was, yes, and has been the entire time,
until June, the last week of June, 2020. Because

of Covid, they couldn't operate indoors with
sufficient people because of the use regulations.
Q. So during that six-year period, let's say
from 2000 -- sorry. More than six years. From
2007 to 2020, what would you describe the typical
weekday number of classes that were held on the
first floor for yoga?

A. So I would say typically there are at least
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five or six classes, and they typically were
either early in the morning, before work, during
lunch hour and after work hours, because that's
when people do yoga.

They could fit up to 30 people in
each of the two yoga rooms. So at max capacity,
they would have maybe 60fpeople, but often those
rooms overlapped, and those were sort of every
hour. So every hour you may have somewhere
between 20 or 30 people coming in and out on the
hour to go into classes and do the various yoga
things.

Q. In addition to having two large yoga rooms on
the first floor, there's also a number of other
offices, correct?

A. There 1is. There's an office space, a kitchen
area, a private yoga studio, which was Jjust a
small office space, and then the reception area
that had sort of a guasi cafe, where people could
sit and have a bottle of water, purchase a yoga
mat or T-shirt. So a gathering, yeah.

Q. Is it fair to say that at times, in addition
to the yoga studio holding classes, there was

other activities in those other offices?
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A. Yes, they always have staff in thefe who were -
either on the reception desk or in the back
office, and then there's two bathrooms in there,
too, for the showers, and, you know, changing.
Q. How about can -- you described the activity
during weekdays. What was the weekend activity
like?

A. So they usually had fewer classes on the
weekends. I think between three and four, but
they were operational seven days a week. So
there were cars there, you know, Saturdays and

Sundays as well.

Q. And you operate an office on the second
floor?

A. That's correct.

Q. If the first floor were to be converted to

office, and it were to be used at its full
capacity, based on your experience of occupying
the building as office, and observing the use as
a yoga studio, which has a greater intensity of
use?

A. Definitely a yoga studio. We have
approximately 12 people up there with the same

size space with 12 offices, and so basically you
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have maybe -- right now we have four people
coming in and out because of the Covid.

But at max capacity we had
somewhere between 10 and 12 coming in in the
morning, and then leaving, you know, bétween 5:00
and 6:00, and I would estimate the same if
downstairs was office space, office hours.

Q. Since you've been there for 15 years, do you
think the change -~ the first use from yoga
studio to office will have a negative impact on
the character of the neighborhood?

A. No, I don't think so. I think it would have
less impact, because there's less cars coming and
going. There's less public in and out, less
street parking, you know, less busyness, in
general. I mean, you'd have people come in,
work, and then pecple leave, which is different
than people coming in and out every hoﬁr.

0. What type of deliveries does your office use
typically receive?

A. Other than like Grub Hub lunchtime, maybe
FedEx or an Amazon package, toilet paper.

Q. Would you expect the office use on the first

floor to be consistent or inconsistent with that
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occasional type of delivery from an Amazon or
FedEx?

A. Yeah, I think it would be typical office
deliveries.

MR. CAMPBELL: Those are the
questions that I have for Ms. Jamison.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Freedman, do
you want to ask any questions of this witness?

MR. FREEDMAN: Yes, please. Thank
you.

BY MR. FREEDMAN:

Q. Ms. Jamison, my name 1s Eric Freedman. I'm
just going to ask you a couple followup
questions.

Ms. Jamison, you represent --
you're a representative of the party that is
seeking to sell this property; 1s that correct?
A. That's correct, yes.

Q. And you're looking to lease the first floor
of the property to a company? Is it KBS360; 1is
that right?

A. We're looking to lease that office space.
Q. Right. To KBS360; is that right?

A. As of right now, that buyer has pulled out
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because of this issue.

Q. Okay. Is there a new tenant that is already
lined up to occupy that space?

A. Other than my myself, I may take my own
office downstairs, Spring International to the
first floor, and potentially lease the upstairs.
So, again, for the same purpose as what I'm using
it now, which is an employee research company,
that's it.

Q. Okay. So since the July 19th hearing, the
proposed use has -- for the floor has changed
because KBS360 is no longer interested in leasing
the space?

A. Because of this zoning issue, yes. Correct.
Q. Because of the zoning issue being the
adjournment from July 19th?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And you said it's your company that's
going to be leasing the first floor?

A. That is what I'm considering doing right now,
yes.

Q. Okay. And KBS360 has given you written
notice that they're no longer interested in this

space; 1s that correct?
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A. Because of this issue, yes.

Q. OCkay. Can you tell us about the office space
that's going to be occupying the first floor?
That's your business. Can you tell us about what
type of operations are going to be taking place
there?

A. So we are an employee research company. We
do large scale employee surveys online for a big
employer, like Walmart and Staples, and so we
have researchers and computer programmers, who
sit in offices on computers and work.

Q. Okay.

A. What else would you like?

Q. No, that's enough. And how many employees do

you have?

A I have a dozen.
Q. You have 12, so it would be 12 employees
between the upstairs -- excuse me —-- between the

first floor and the second floor, 12 employees
total?

A. Probably less than that, because half of my
team is remote. So they're working from home.
Q. Okay. And part of the employee research, it

doesn't involve anybody coming on-site to visit
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your organization?

A. No, we do not have clients come to us. We go
to them.
Q. Okay.

A. Uh-huh. We do not have public access.
Q. Okay. And your current office space, it
doesn't have a loading dock on-site; is that
correct?

A. No.

Q. Okay. And there's no space for a dumpster in
the shared parking space or your designated
parking spaces?

A. There are two dumpsters on the property.

Q. Uh-huh.

A. One is on the back of my property, on the
property line, which is the recycle dumpster, and
right next to it.

Q. Okay.

A. That's been there since I purchased the
building in 2007, and that will not be changed.
Q. Now, you had indicated that there are one or
two FedEx deliveries a day. Is that still going
to be the case with this new proposed use?

A. We don't have that many.
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Q. Okay.

A. We get them once a week or less.

Q. Okay. All right. I'm going to ask you a
little bit about the yoga studio and some of your
observations.

First of all, is there -- there's
nobody from the yoga studio here tonight; is that
correct?

A. Not that I'm aware of.

Q. Okay. And the yoga studio, you indicated,
operates seven days a week; 1s that right?

A. They did. I don't know 1f they still do, but
they're out.

Q. And the yoga studio leased the space directly

from you?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you were familiar with the terms of the
lease?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And when did the yoga studio vacate
the space?

A. It was the end of June.

Q. End of June of?

A. 2020.
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Q. 2020. Okay. So the lease ended in June, at
the end of June of 2020. Do you know when the
classes at the yoga studio stopped?

A. Yeah. I mean, once =-- their lease didn't
end. I mean, they exited. Their lease was for
another three years and they broke the lease.

Q. And why did they break the lease?

A. Because they could no longer operate because
of Covid. They couldn't -- due to the
restrictions, based on you had to be six feet
apart, they needed -- they couldn't fit enough
people in a room to generate enough income to pay
the rent.

Q. Okay.

A. They needed that occupancy of 30 people in a
room to generate the revenue in order to cover
the rent, so with the new rules they couldn't.
Does that make sense?

Q. Yes. So, effectively, they were unable to

bring enough people into the classes to

support -- to sustain the rent. Is that --
A. That's correct.

Q. -—- an accurate statement?

A. Yes.
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Q. Okay. Now, you had testified that you worked
on-site, that you do work on-site. Were you

there consistently throughout 20207

A, No. So we were remote starting March.
Q. Okay.
A. I would go in maybe once a week or twice a

week, just to check on the building.

Q. Okay.

A. Then I went back when the rules -- I forget
what date the rules reopened Montgomery County,
but whenever the rules reopened, I went back into
the office full time, because I have teenagers at
home, and then my team came back, I think, in
like March of this year, at least half of them
did, approximately. Don't hold me to that.

Q. So you were there once a week until March of
this year, right?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Okay.

A. Yes, Jjust to check on the building and make
sure nothing was --

Q. And so when you say something along the lines
of there were 60 people at any given class, 1is

that based on your observations or is that based
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on information that the yoga studio was conveying
to you?
A. I mean, that was based on when they were at

full capacity, pre-Covid, and people coming and

going every hour, right. I mean, I never counted
them. It wasn't my business.
Q. Right.

A. But I know that people were in and out all

day long.
Q. I'm just curious about where the figure 60
came from, 1f that's an estimate, I assume. And

that's per class; is that right?
A. So they informed me that they could have up
to 30 people in one studio, right. So they have
two big studios. So my assumption is, at max
capacity, they could have -- now, those classes
overlapped.

They were not necessarily
concurrent. So, you know, maybe there was 30
come in, and then they left, gnd, you know, there
was some overlap, but at busy times there were a
lot of people. |
Q. So the figure 60 people per class or session,

that's based on their overall capacity, right?
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A. Their capacity, yes.

0. And you had confirmed, I believe, earlier
that as of March of 2020, most of their classes
were online or digital; is that right?

A. No. No.

Q. Online or outside. Excuse me.
A. No, June. When their lease ended is when
they stopped holding interior classes. I don't

know when they stopped. I don't know when
exactly they shifted from virtual to -- I‘just
know that when the lease ended, they no longer
had people coming in. It's been an empty space
since that July, '20, which is when I put the
property on the market.

Q. I'm calling -- I'm referring to the date that
they exited the lease as the end of their lease.
I understand that it extended longer, but did
they vacate prior to the end of the lease, as
they terminated?

A. They left the building the end of June, 2020.
Q. So the lease ran up to the end of the month
in June of 2020. Did they --

A. Yes.

Q. Did they remain in the property until the end
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of June, 20202

A. Yes.
Q. Okay.
A. Now, they were holding very small classes,

one-on-one at that point.

Q. And that's based on what? They told you that
or that's based on an observation?

A. A combination. So, I mean, part of their
reasoning for closing out the lease was they
couldn't have enough people in the building.

Q. Okay.

A. So.

Q. All right. You had indicated at one point
that you were there every day. Did you observe
individuals from the neighboring residences
walking to the studio rather than driving?

A. I'm not looking out the window at who's
coming in and out of the yoga studio. So they
may have had local residents using the studio.
I'm guessing they must have, but I'm not familiar
with their customer base.

Q. Okay. All right. So you weren't necessarily
sitting by the window looking outside, seeing

who's coming and going, right?
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A. No, I was not.

Q. I got 1it. And by the same measure, you were
not sitting by the window, watching the yoga
studio to see how many people they had come into

each class, correct?

A. That 1is correct.
Q. Ckay.
A. Those membership numbers you would have to

get from them.

Q. Right. You had testified that you did not
think converting this to office space would not
change the character of the neighborhood; is that
right?

A. Yes. I do not see how it would change the
impact or the nature of what is going on there
upstairs.

Q. OCkay. And just to clarify, is it still
conditional that KBS360 could be a tenant on the
first floor or has that already been terminated?
A. The buyer of this property that was lined up
to purchase this property pulled out as a
function of this meeting being postponed last
month.

Q. Okavy. And the new buyer would be leasing the
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space back to you on the first floor; is that
right?
A. That would be the assumption, unless I have a
buyer who wants the whole building, and to use as
an office. I need a buyer. I cannot predict
what a future buyer will be, but it is being used
and it is being listed as an office space.
Q. So you're seeking this change in
nonconforming use today for your own use, not in
connection with a sale, right?
A. Not at this time, no.
Q. Ckay. Got it. I'm just going to ask you
briefly about the parking easement, the 2006
easement. Your building at 424 East Elm Street
is referred to as lot -- I'm representing to you
it's referred to as Lot 14 in the 2006 easement.
Excuse me.

I just want to clarify the record.
You have 18 parking spaces that belong to your
property, correct?
A. Ed has that in front of him, I believe, so
yeah. I don't have the document in front of me,
but that sounds correct.

Q. And then there's three designated spaces in
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addition, under the terms of the 2006 easement,
correct?

A. That 1s correct.

Q. And the remainder, all remaining parking
spaces are shared; 1s that right?

A. That's correct, with the property next door.
Q. So the tenants and occupants of 441 East
Hector Street also rely on the shared parking

spaces as well, correct?

A I'm not sure which is the property you're
referring to. Is that the residential property?
I don't know the numbers. I'm sorry. Is that

the residential or the office building next door?
Q. It's 441 East Hector. It's next door.
A. That's the Freeman building? Yes, the office
building, they use that.

MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. All right.
Those are all of the guestions I have. Thanks.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Kellerman, do
you have any guestions?

MR. KELLERMAN: No guestions for
me . Thank you.

MR. GLASSMAN: Thank you.

Mr. Barton, I'11 turn it over to
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you for board gquestions.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank vyou.

Turning to zoning board members,
starting with Mark Danek.

Mark, do you have any gquestions of
this witness?

MR. DANEK: Yes, just one.

Ms. Jamison, when the yoga studio
was in use, do you know how many of their
students, potentially, were, say, walkers, where
they didn't rely on cars or parking spots?

MS. JAMISON: I do not, I'm
afraid. I don't know how many were local. I
know that the owner -- all I know is the

pathways, because the yoga studio said they do

have walkers. That's all I know. I don't know
how many. That could have been one. I have no
idea.

MR. DANEK: Thank you.
Nothing further for me.
CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.
Greg Scharff, do you have any

questions?

MR. SCHARFF: No further. No
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questions. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

Marlowe Doman, any questions for
Ms. Jamison? Marlowe?

MR. DOMAN: Sorry. No, not as of
right now.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

Alan Chmielewski, do you have any
gquestions for Ms. Jamison?

MR. CHMIELEWSKI: No, I do not.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: I do have a
question, Ms. Jamison. ‘Pre—Covid, when the yoga
studio was working at full capacity, is it your
recollection that the parking lot was full or
were spaces available?

MS. JAMISON: I would say it was
probably full, because I know that some people
park along where the community garden 1is,
opposite the building. So there's free parking,
street parking, and I know that there -- I used
to watch or see people crossing the street
holding yoga mats. So I know that some people

parked in front. Now, they would only park there
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if the lot was full. So, yes, I'm assuming.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Okay. Thank
you.

That's all the guestions I have.

Checking with staff, Eric Johnson,
do you have any questions?

MR. JOHNSON: I do not.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: And
Mr. Glassman?®

MR. GLASSMAN: I do not. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Okay. Bobbi Jo,
have you received any questions from the public?

MS. MYRSIADES: No, I have not.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you. And
those of you who may be viewing or listening to
this hearing, i1f you are a member of the public,
and you would like to ask a question, please
identify yourself, name and address, and you may
ask your question.

And, apparently, there are no
further guestions.

So we'll turn it back to

Mr. Campbell, if you would like to present your
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next witness.

MR. CAMPBRELL: Thank you.
Frank Tavani.

MR. TAVANI: Hello.

FRANK TAVANI, having been duly
sworn previously, was examined and

testified as follows:

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q.

Can

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

Frank, Mr. Tavani, you have been sworn in.
you, for the record, state your name?

My name is Frank Tavani, T-a-v-a-n-i.

What do you do for a living?

I'm a traffic engineer.

Have you provided testimony before to boards,

such as this zoning hearing board?

A.

Q.

Yes.

How about have you presented testimony to

this board before?

A.

I believe I have.

Are you a licensed engineer?

I am.

Where did you get your college degree?

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in Troy, New
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York.

MR. CAMPBELL: I can ingquire
further, but I would offer Mr. Tavani as an
expert in traffic engineering.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Freedman, do
you have any gquestions regarding Mr. Tavani's
qualifications?

MR. FREEDMAN: Has a copy of his
CV been submitted to the board or no?’

MR. CAMPBELL: I think I have one.
I can submit one or I could ask to leave the
record open to do that. Mr. Tavani's —-- I know
that he has offered testimony before for this
board and other boards in the borough, and he's
been accepted as an expert.

MR. GLASSMAN: For a complete
record, I would like a copy of his CV in the

record.

Mr. Freedman, pending receipt of a
CV, do you have any questions for him on his
qualifications or do you want to defer until you
receive a copy of the CV and we can --

MR. FREEDMAN: I would like to

defer, if there's one forthcoming.
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MR. CAMPBELL: One moment.

MR. GLASSMAN: As this is a break,
and you're loocking for this, Mr. Campbell, I
would like to take a quick recess of this case,
because the -- and ask 1f the applicant who's
present for 450 Colwell Lane Dryden Court
Development, LLC, if they would be interested in
continuing the case to September 13th, at
7:00 p.m., rather than sitting around and waiting
for us to finish this case and the other cases
that we have scheduled after this?

(Recess.)

MR. GLASSMAN: Okay. So we're
back on the record on this case.

Mr. Campbell, were you able to
find a Cv?

MR. CAMPBELL: I was, and I've
sent it to Mr. Freedman, I've sent it to you, and
I CC'd Mr. Johnson and Bobbi Jo via e-mail.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Mr. Freedman,
have you received it?

MR. FREEDMAN: I have. May I

request a ten-minute recess, since I just
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received this?

MR. GLASSMAN: As you've just
received it, I don't want to go any further.

Mr. Barton, I would be okay with a
quick ten-minute recess to allow him to quickly
review, so we can continue the hearing this
evening and continue to move forward.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: That's fine.
I'm seeing a time of 8:07, so we will take a
recess until 8:17 p.m.

(At 8:07 p.m., a recess was taken

until 8:17 p.m.)

CHAIRMAN BARTON: So it is 8;17.
We'll resume the hearing for 424 East Elm Street.

And are you there, Mr. Freedman?

MR. FREEDMAN: I'm here. Thank
you for the -- thank you for indulging me.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Mr. Glassman,
would you like to proceed?

MR. GLASSMAN: Yeah.

Mr. Freedman, so now that you've
had a few minutes to look at the CV that's been

provided, do you have any questions about his
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qualifications or would you like to ask him any
questions?

MR. FREEDMAN: Just a few
guestions to establish the record.

BY MR. FREEDMAN:

Q. Mr. Tavani, can you hear me?

A. Yes.

0. Okay. I've had an opportunity to take a look
at your CV provided by counsel here.

Just real quick, have you been
terminated from any of the projects listed on
your CV here?

A. No.

Q. Okay. And taking a look at the projects .that
you've listed on your CV, have you been
terminated from any projects that are not listed
on your CV with respect to your services as a
traffic engineer?

AL No.

Q. Okay. Have you testified on behalf of a
client represenﬁed by Mr. Campbell before?

A. By other clients represented by Mr. Campbell?
Q. Correct.

A. Yes.
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Q. Okay. Have you ever testified in opposition
to a client represented by Mr. Campbell or one of
the members of his firm?
A. I'm not sure.
Q. Not that you recall?
A. Not that I recall.

MR. FREEDMAN: OCkay. I have no
other questions.

I'm sorry. I have one more.
BY MR. FREEDMAN:
Q. Mr. Tavani, did you ~- have you actually .
visited the site that is the subject of this
report?
A. Yes.

MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I have
nothing further then.

MR. GLASSMAN: Do any board
members ~- sorry.

Mr. Kellerman, do you have any
guestions on his qualifications?

MR. KELLERMAN: No questions for

MR. GLASSMAN: Do any of the board

members have any guestions about the
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qualifications of Mr. Tavani?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: I have none.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Barton, hearing
testimony and reviewing the CV, I'd recommend
that we approve Mr. Tavani as an expert in
traffic engineering.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Yes. Let's do
that.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Campbell, you
can go ahead and start with your direct
examination.

MR. CAMPBELL: Sure.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q. Mr. Tavani, what were you hired to do in
relation to this application?

A. I was hired to investigate the potential
impacts of the proposal to substitute office
space for the first floor of 424 East Elm Street,
and, specifically, in substitution for the most
active use there, which was a yoga studio.

Q. And what did your investigation focus on in
terms of the impact?

A. Mainly traffic, also parking.

0. Okay. Did you reach conclusions about what
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the impact would be if the use was changed from
office to a yoga studio -- I'm sorry -- from a
yoga studio to office?

A. Yes.

Q. With regard to traffic, share with the board
what your analysis and what your conclusion is.
A. Certainly. So my analysis culminated into a
written report, which was dated 12 August, 2021.
I'm not sure 1if it's been marked as an exhibit
yet, but it is a four-page report, and I believe
it is on the screen right now. We would --

0. It's Exhibit 9.

A. Thank vyou. So A-9 1s four pages, and as we
heard from counsel, as well as the previous
witness, the subject property is approximately
8,400 sguare feet of the two stories. The top
story 1is currently occupied by an office, and the
bottom story was most recently occupied as a yoga
studio.

As the board members have probably
heard from other traffic engineers in the past,
one of the go-to resources that traffic engineers
use 1s a publication from ITE, which is not very

creatively titled "The Trip Generation Manual."
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I'm holding it up right now, for purposes of the
record. It's actually one of the four volumes of
the current 10th Edition.

Although it is a long document, it
does not include every conceivable land use
category. While it does contain office, it does
not contain yoga studios.

Fortunately, this pafticular yoga
studio hasdbeen in operation at this site for a
good number of years, and the prior witness has
had some opportunity to observe not only the
space that the tenant was occupying, and has some
knowledge how many people can fit in the studio
space, but also has on occasion seen the
activities going to and from the site.

So as shown on Page 2 of A-9, in
bullet format, there were a number of things that
I highlighted from my conversations with the
first witness, and as the first witness also
testified during her direct previously, namely
that the first floor has two large rooms that are
each used as studio space, or was used as studio

space.

Each room could host up to 30
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pecple. The studio was opened -- again, I'm
reading from the second page of the report right
now. The studio was open seven days a week,
typically had up to six classes per day, and
classes typically had 15 to 20 participants.

As you also heard from the
witness, the classes were offered at times that
were convenient to people, namely before work,
before the typical weekday workday, after work
and during lunch.

Oftentimes classes were scheduled
to be back to back, and since there were two
studios, there could also be an overlap to afford
maximum versatility to the clients of the studio.
So as indicated in a rather long footnote on the
bottom of this page, what that means is that, if
the first studio, for example, offered a claés
from 5:00 to 6:00 p.m., and only had 20
participants, even though the capacity of the
room was 30, at around 6 o'clock those 20 people
might be leaving, and 1f another class was
offered in that same room for 6:00 to
7 o'clock during that approximate same timeframe,

another 20 people could be arriving. So that's
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40 right there.

Now, traffic engineers tend to
focus on peak hourly flows. That's how all of
our computer programs are set up, and what I was
just talking about was literally a 10 or
15-minute period of time arouﬁd 6 o'clock, when
one class ends and another class begins in one
studio.

If the second studio had a
30-minute stagger to it, so classes from 5:30 to
6:30, and then 6:30 to 7:30, and they were
equally occupied, there would be another 20
people coming and 20 people going at around 6:30.

So that means in the one-hour
period from, say, 5:45 to 6:45, there could be as
many as 80 people coming and going to patronize
the site of those two studiocos, and that's not
even at the capacity of the studios. That's
assuming about 66 percent of capacity. So
needless to say, there's a lot of traffic
activity that could be occurring at the studios.

If you turn to Page 3 of A-9, the
next thing I did was investigate what the

potential trip making of the office could be.
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Now 1s not the greatest time to be making traffic
observations because of Covid, and a lot of
people in offices are working remotely.

But, fortunately, the Trip
Generation Manual has an abundance of data
regarding generic office sites, and as shown at
the top of Page 3 of A~9 in Table 1, the equation
for either peak hour, either the arriving peak
hour in the morning or the departing peak hour in
the afternoon is about 1.5 trips for every
thousand square feet of office space.

So a 4.2 thousand or 4,200 square
feet office footprint could generate about five
trips. That's total in and out, maybe four
arriving in the morning, and four leaving in the
afternoon, with one person going the other
direction for whatever reason.

Table 2 is where I summarize
everything that I just said, but I added some
conservative measure to provide some added
assurances from this analysis. So, mainly, what
I did here was, rather than relying on many as 80
people coming and going from the yoga studio, as

you can see in Table 2, in the fourth column, I
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just cut that in half, and said that there could
be as many as 20 people entering and leaving
during either peak hour, for a total of 40 trips.

And then the office, even though
ITE data was very well documented and robust, and
suggests 4,000 sguare feet would only generate
five peak hour trips, as a measure of
conservativeness, I doubled that estimate to ten,
and even in doing so, we still have a tremendous
reduction in how much traffic -- how much less
traffic there may be at this site, 1f this
request 1s approved.

And the numbers speak for
themselves. It's a substantial reduction, and
this is just during one hour in the morning, and
one hour in the afternoon. Of course, there's
other times of the day where traffic may be
coming and going. It will be less than these
peak hours. There will be some traffic during
those hours as well.

So all told, you know, 1it's a
significant impact to go back to an office use,
which I understand had previously at one time

been in this building in 2005.
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Another publication I looked at,
that I mentioned earlier or another investigation
I made was regarding parking. ITE, once again,
makes a publication, "The Parking Generation
Manual." According to it, an office generates a
peak parking demand of about 2.4 spaces per
thousand square feet.

Now, I know that's less than what
the ordinance requirement is, but it's worth
noting, because ITE data is always updated every
few years. My experience, a lot of township
ordinances can stagnate for decades, andlmight
not really reflect what's going on in the world
today, whereas ITE is constantly collecting real
world empirical data in deciding whether or not
to include it in subsequent editions of its
manuals.

And according to its data, which
is technically pre-Covid as well, the peak is
about 2.4 spaces per thousand. So that means
that the first floor would generate about ten
spaces of demand, and about ten spaces, that's

peak.

And second floor would be an

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

55

eguivalent number. So that means about 20 spaces
would be reguired, although, unfortunately, "The
Parking Generation Manual," once again, does not
have the yvoga studio land use category. We could
see from the traffic analysis that the parking
demand associated with the yoga studio is likely
significantly higher than the office. In fact,
it could be an order of magnitude greater at peak
times.

What's on the screen now is Page 4
of A-9, which really just summarizes that -- I
took a significantly higher than expected
approach to the office trip generation, as
recommended by ITE. I doubled it, and I took a
significant lower than expected potential yoga
studic peak trip generation. I cut it in half.

I also did not include any
potential reduction in traffic or parking, as it
may be associated with transit usage, bike trips.
There are sidewalks in the area. There are
nearby transit opportunities, including bus and
rail, and that could certainly have some effect
on traffic and parking. Of course, it would have

pretty much the same effect regardless of the
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use, and that's it.

Q. Just a couple of gquestions, Mr. Tavani.
First, to the extent that your report includes
information that you received from Ms. Jamison,
is it your opinion that what's in your report is
consistent with what she testified to?

A. Yes.

Q. And so to summarize, doing your traffic
analysis, in terms of determining the number of
trips, you cut in half what the ITE manual would
expect an office to generate -- I'm sorry. You
doubled what the ITE manual would expect an
office would generate. You cut in half what
would -- what the testimony would demonstrate the
yoga studio would generate; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And so you did that to come up to use more --
you used a more conservative estimate?

A. Yes.

Q. So based on those more conservative
parameters, do you have an opinion as to whether
or not change from a yoga studio to office would
have an effect or an impact, a detrimental effect

or impact on the site and the immediate
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neighborhood?
A. I do have an opinion.
Q. And what's that opinion?
A. My opinion 1s that it would improve
conditions, and would be a benefit to the
community.
Q. Do you have an opinion as to how the change
of use from a yoga studio to office would impact
parking demand on the site and on the adjacent
properties in the immediate area?
A, Yes.
Q. What's that opinion?
A. The same as I Jjust stated.
Q. To the extent that your opinions today are
within the purview of your expertise, are they to
a reasonable degree of scientific and
professional certainty?
A. They are.

MR. CAMPBELL: Those are the
questions I have for Mr. Tavani.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Mr. Glassman,
would you like to gquestion the parties to this
case please?

MR. GLASSMAN: Yes.
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Mr. Freedman, do you have any

gquestions for cross?
MR. FREEDMAN: Yes. Thank vyou.
BY MR. FREEDMAN:
Q. Mr. Tavani, you indicated that you visited
the site in -- to aid in your preparation of this

report; 1s that right?

A. Yes, I drove by the site over the weekend.
Q. You drove by this weekend?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. You didn't get out of the car?

A, Correct.

Q. OCkay. Did you stop your car?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And how long did you sit there?

A. I do not know.

Q. Okay. Was it less than ten minutes?

A Yes.

Q. Okay. Your report indicates that the
Institute of Transportation Engineers publication
compiles empirical data, which is collected on a
national basis. Is that correct? Did I state
that correctly?

A. Yes.
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Q. OCkay. So is the data that is collected and
used in your report, is that based on data that
has been consolidated from various regions across
the country?

A. For the office use, yes.

Q. Okay. And you also indicated in your report
that if local and empirical data can be gathered
for a particular proposed site, it is likely
comparable to national data in terms of
usefulness. Is that -- am I stating your report
correctly?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there any local empirical data that was
gathered or was that gathered from your car?

A. There was no empirical data that was gathered
because of the Covid pandemic. There was no
ability to collect, for example, traffic counts
or make parking observations relative to the
studio --

Q. You coﬁld not -- I'm sorry. Continue please.
A. Relative to the yoga studio or t; the office
for that matter.

Q. I'm just confirming what you just said. You

said you were unable to make local -- collect
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local empirical data as to the parking and
traffic flow because of Covid restrictions? Is
that correct?

A. And because the studio was not functioning.
Q. Right. Okay. So the observations you made
with respect to the yoga studio's traffic flow,
what you had just indicated, were long after the
yoga studio had ceased operations, correct?

A. False. I made no observations relative to
the yoga studio. The traffic analysis relative
to the yoga studio was based on my understanding
from conversations with Ms. Jamison.

Q. Okay. So all of the data that you collected
with respect to the yoga studio came from your
conversations with Ms. Jamison, correct?

A. Correct, and that was tempered with an
element of common sense and understanding of
space as well.

Q. Okay. Can you give me an example of this
common sense that -- something that you pieced
together in your report that was common sense
that you did not hear from Ms. Jamison?

A. Well, I did not say that it was something I

didn't hear. I said it was —-- the conversation
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was tempered with common sense, and I can
certainly give an example.

So I'm currently sitting in a room
that measures about nine by 12 feet. So it's
roughly 100 square feet. I'm currently by
myself, but I can certainly be here with more
than one person, and if I was having some sort of
a physical activity, I can probably fit two or
three people comfortably in here.

Knowing that the floor plan of the
building is over 4,000 square feet, which is
equivalent to practically 30 or 40 of these
rooms, I felt that the numberé that she relayed
to me made sense, that they passed the common
sense test, and, i1f anything, they would be
conservative.

Q. Got it. And you indicated in your report
here that yoga studios are not available?
There's no data in the ITE that pertains
specifically to yoga studios; is that right?

A. That's right.

Q. And am I reading your report correctly that
you did use the figures in the ITE to prepare

Tables 1 and 2 or am I misreading that?
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A. For the office in Table 2.

Q. Okay. And what about for the yoga studio in
Table 27

A. No, counselor. As I stated, it's not
available, and as you just stated, it's also not
available.

Q. So the figures that you used in Table 2 for
the yoga studio came from Ms. Jamison?

A. They came from my analysis, based on the
numbers that she supplied to me.

Q. Okay. Now, 1f I told you that the yoga
studio had between two and four classes per day,
would that have an impact on the ultimate
conclusion in your report?

A. It may.

Q. Okay. And that conclusion, presumably, would
be less perhaps decisive with respect to the
overall impact that a change in nonconforming use
would have; 1s that a fair assumption?

A. It would depend on more details relative to
whether it was two or four classes per day, what
days per week, and what times per day. There's
certainly the possibility that the conclusions

and the spirit of Table 2 would still be
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satisfied.

Q. Okavy.

A. More classes.

Q. And, again, hypothetically, if I told you
that there were fewer than 15 to 20 participants,
same results? It may change your analysis with
respect to your ultimate conclusion as to the
overall impact on the change in nonconforming

use, correct?

A. It could have an impact, yes.
Q. Ckay. I want to make sure I heard your
testimony correctly. The empirical data that's

collected throughout the United States, that's
data that's collected from various regions, 1in
various cities and of different sizes across the
country; 1s that right?

A. Yes. My understanding is what typically
happens 1is a property owner or another traffic
engineer or any other qualified individual will
collect traffic data, traffic counts, and compare
that to some variable, like the number of
residential units or thousands of square feet of
gross floor area, put together a short report,

and offer it to ITE for consideration in future
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publications.

So, essentially, Mr. Jamison could
offer her own observations of traffic data by
conducting traffic counts, comparing it to some
variable, and submitting it to ITE for
consideration.

Q. Got 1it. Based on the -- and I apologize if
I'm misstating your report here, but based on
your Table 2 here, on Page 3, when you're
referring to a trip, 1s that an individual
entering the property?

A. Or exiting the property, yes.

Q. Or exiting the property. And is the
presumption with respect to your report that
every individual that is listed as a, quote,
unquote, trip, that that individual is getting to
the property by car?

A. Yes.

Q. And is the presumption that every individual
that is getting to that property by car is taking
a separate car?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Have you had personal occasion to

prepare any expert reports with respect to yoga

ALL POINTS REPORTING (610) 272-6731




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

65

studios before, prior to today?

A, No.

Q. No?

A No.

Q. Okay. In general, do your traffic reports
account for any -- could you restate your
testimony with respect to -- let me Jjust start
over. Sorry about that.

With respect to individuals
visiting the site in your traffic report, do you
account for individuals entering the property by
walking, biking or public transit?

A. No, that is made clear from Page 4 of A-9.
Q. Ckay. So the numbers that you used account
for a certain percentage of individuals walking
to the property or not?

A. I think this is the third time you have

restated the same question. They do not.
Q. Okay. Got it now. In general, do you
typically -- do you typically prepare in these

reports your personal observations with respect
to traffic flow or is it common to do so, based
on information from third parties?

A. Whichever source gives the most reliable and
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and knowledgeable set of data is typically used.
Q. Okay. And in this scenario, because the yoga
studio is no longer operational, you were relying
on the information from Ms. Jamison, correct?
A. Correct.

MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I have
nothing further for this witness. Thanks.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Kellerman, do
yvou have any questions?

MR. KELLERMAN: No guestions for
me . Thank vyou.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Campbell, any
redirect?

MR. CAMPBELL: Real quick.
BY MR. CAMPBELL:
Q. Mr. Tavani, the manuals that you referenced,
the ITE traffic manual and the ITE parking
manual, are they customarily used by traffic
engineers to perform traffic impact studies and
parking analyses?
A. Yes, they are customarily the first —-- among
the first resources consulted.
Q. Have you had occasion to prepare reports and

analyzing traffic and parking or uses that aren't
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called out in either of the ITE manuals?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that customarily done and accepted in your

industry?

A, In my experience, yes.

MR. CAMPBELL: Those are the

questions that I have. Thanks.

want to take

that.

questions of

Mr. Tavani.

time. Thank

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Barton, if you
over for any board guestions?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Yes, let's do

And, Mr. Danek, do you have any
this witness?

MR. DANEK: Neo, none for
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

Mr. Scharff?

MR. SCHARFF: No, none at this
you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

Mr. Doman, any. qguestions?

MR. DOMAN: None. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

And, Alan Chmielewski, do you have
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any guestions?

MR. CHMIELEWSKI: No questions for
me. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Mr. Tavani, if
ITE, as you say, does not have numbers for a yoga
studio, would it have had numbers, say, for an
indoor exercise studio, that type of use?

MR. TAVANI: There are
recreational uses, but there's not a use as you
described, indoor exercise studio.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank vyou.

Bobbi Jo, have you received any
questions online for this witness?

MS. MYRSIADES: No, I have not.

CHATIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

Any members of the public, if
viewing or listening, if you have a question for
Mr. Tavani, please identify yourself by name and
address and ask your gquestion.

And seeing none.

Then I'1ll ask Mr. Campbell, is
there anything else that you would like to
present at this time?

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Barton, I did
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want to ask Mr. Johnson one quick gquestion as the
borough zoning officer, if that's permitted.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Please do.

MR. CAMPBELIL: Mr. Johnson, I
marked Exhibit 7, a chapter from the
International Building Code relating to building
occupancy and loads. Am I correct that the
borough has adopted the International Building
Code for use?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, the
International Building Code has been adopted by
the borough.

MR. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Mr. Glassman,
would this be the time to ask for any statements
on the record for or against the application?

MR. GLASSMAN: Well, Mr. Freedman,
do you have any cross on what was Jjust asked of
Mr. Johnson, I guess?

MR. FREEDMAN: I do not.

MR. GLASSMAN: Okay.

Mr. Campbell, do you have other witnesses?

MR. CAMPBELL: We do not.

MR. GLASSMAN: OCkay.
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Mr. Freedman, do you have any witnesses?

MR. FREEDMAN: I do. I have two
witnesses. I will also make a brief
introduction, and then have my witnessés sworn
in, if that's all right with the board and
Chairman.

MR. GLASSMAN: That is fine.

(Discussion off the record.)

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Okay. Very
well.

So I believe then we can proceed
with Mr. Freedman.

MR. FREEDMAN: Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

The objections of TRDS 441 Hector
Associates, LP, the neighboring property of 441
East Hector Street can effectively be divided
into two subcategories: One, the restrictions,
the special exception request here for the
nonconforming use violates the restrictions in
the code, and by extension Pennsylvania law, and,
two, it violates the terms of the 2006 easement.

Referring first to the
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restrictions contained in the code, there is not
any authority that allows a transfer from one
nonconforming use to effectively any
nonconforming use. It can't be detrimental or
less appropriate to the character of the

neighborhood.

Here we have a yoga studio that is
low impact, it's non-retail, and now we're moving
into an office space with potentially full-time
employees, commuters, things of that nature.

The parking restrictions also do
not meet the requirements contained in the code.
I disagree with the applicant's assessment
contained in the revised parking summary found in
Exhibit 6.

What we have here are two separate
4,000 sgquare feet units, one on the first floor,
one on the second floor, and they actually only
own 21 parking spaces. The remainder of the
parking spéces are shared. They're subject to
this 2006 easement that allows my client to have
equal access to these spaces during certain

periods of time.

And, last, but certainly not
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least, but with respect to the code and law-
issues, the current nonconforming use, as far as
we can tell, was abandoned, as that is defined
under Section 27-703, and I would offer to the
board that this would actually, in fact, reqguire
an application for a variance.

The 2006 easement specifically
references at Paragraph 5 that it prohibits any
change that would interfere with the parking
easement. I'm going to offer some testimony as
to the relatively low impact that the yoga studio
has created in the parking easement, and will
allow the board to take that into consideration,
and I would just ask that I have the opportunity
to conclude, after my witnesses provide their
testimony, with some additional argument for
consideration.

So with that I'1ll call or I'1ll
have my witnesses sworn in, Michael Barrist and
Anthony Rufo.

MR. GLASSMAN: Let's have them

sworn in together please.

MICHAEL BARRIST, having been duly
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sworn, was examined and testified

as follows:

ANTHONY RUFO, having been duly
sworn, was examined and testified
as follows:
MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I'm going to
start with Michael Barrist.
BY MR. FREEDMAN:
Q. Mr. Barrist, could you tell the board what
your connection is to 441 East Hector Street?
A. Yes. I am the sole owner of TRDS 441 GP,
LLC, which is the general partner of TRDS 441
Hector Associates, LP, which is the owner of the
property at 441 East Hector.
Q. Okay. And what connection does =-- I'm going
to call it TRDS for shorf. What connection does
TRDS have to 424 East Elm?
A. We are a party to a parking easement from
2006 that we inherited when we bought the
property in 2012.
Q. Okay. So you bought it in 2012, and you've
had occasion to visit the site prior to your

purchasing the property; is that right?
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A. I did.

Q. Okay. And tell me about that. When you were
purchasing 441 East Hector Street, what steps did
you take to observe the parking conditions?

A. I visited the property the week prior
multiple times in early morning, midmorning,
afternoon, lunchtime and after hours, as well as
on the weekends to see what the parking condition
was, primarily in the back lot, because that's
where people from the yoga studio would park, but
the entire parking condition, because there's
limited parking at the property, as is. Thefe's
a lot of street parking, but very little parking
at the property.

Q. And why did you do that? Why did you want to
observe the parking situation at the property?

A. Because I wanted to be sure that the yoga
studio and the office on the second floor would
not over-park the parking lot.

Q. Okavy. And based on your observations in
2012, obviously, you moved forward with the
purchase, right?

A. Correct.

Q. And what were your observations at the time,
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if you can remember? I know it's been some time.
A. There was very limited use of the parking
lot. There Was, you know, five, six cars, maybe
ten on a rare occasion, but very limited use.
Many people -- it's a very young neighborhood
with lots of apartments. Many people actually
walk to the yoga studio.

So I was actually pleasantly
surprised there was not an over-parking of the
lot, and a lot of the cars that were there early
morning, in the evening and on the weekends.

Q. Ckay. And since 2012 to present, how often
were you at the property?

A. I'm probably there, I would say, five or six
times a month, sometimes more, sometimes less,
depending if there's a tenant being put into a
space, but I'm there all different times for
meetings and other reasons.

Q. Ckay. I'm going to ask you to recall back to
January of 2020, if you can, before the Covid
shutdowns. Do you have any recollection of
visiting the property in January of 202072

A. I don't have specific recollection, but I'm

there all the time. So I would have been there.
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Q. Let me rephrase. Did you have occasion to
visit the property shortly before the Covid
shutdowns?

A. Yes, before, during and after.

Q. Okay. And what were your dgeneral
observations with respect to the traffic flow and
parking that was required or utilized through the
yoga studio immediately preceding the Covid
shutdown?

A. The yoga studio was not adversely impacting
our parking lot at all. The condition really
didn't change from 2012, when I bought the
property through and just prior to shutdown from
the pandemic.

Q. And during that general area of time, during
that duration immediately preceding Covid, did
you observe individuals from the neighborhood and
community walking up and biking to the yoga
studio?

A. Yes. Primarily in the morning and the
evening, yes.

Q. OCkay. Ckay. And after -- I'm going to ask
you, after Covid, March of 2020 and later,

presumably there was even less of a use of the
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parking easement; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. When was the last time you observed

individuals going to the yoga studio for its use?

A. I would have to say first to second guarter
of 2020.

Q. Okay.

A. I don't remember the exact date, you know,

but when everything shut down, everything shut
down. I think there was a mandate they had to
shut down, but I would observe people going in
and out and walking there prior to that.

Q. Okay. And throughout 2020 you observed
members of the community and neighborhood walking
up . Did you also observe elderly individuals
going to classes designed for the elderly?

A. I did not particularly notice that they were

young or old.

Q. Okay.

A. Yoga is a pretty -- my wife does it. It's a
pretty eclectic group. It ranges from young to
old.

Q. Okay. Now, you currently use the parking

area that is the subject of the 2006 easement,
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correct?

A. The tenants of my building use it, yes.
Correct.

Q. And describe the makeup of those tenants.
A. The first floor of the building 1is the
Edwards-Freeman Nut Company, which is a retail
candy operation, and then the remainder of the
building is Jjust general office use.

Q. Okay. And do patrons of the Freeman Nut

Company use that parking lot?

A. They do from time to time, yes.

Q. And the employees of Freeman use that parking
lot?

A. I think actually he has an arrangement with

the Polish~American Club across the street, where
he parks employee cars. I also have an
arrangement with them to cover Christmas and
Easter, to make sure that there's plenty of
parking for the store, so people don't have to
park in the parking lot, quite frankly.

Q. Okay. And aside from the Freeman Nut
Company, what are the other -- describe the other
tenants that use the parking lot as well.

A. There's been several tenants over the years.
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The top floor is a health insurance brokerage
firm. The second and third floor is company that
manages and lends money to veterinarians. On the
first floor, other than the nut company, Mr. Rufo
has an office, a small office, and then there's
technology consulting that has a firm small
office.

Q. Okay. And do you know how many employees are
at the health insurance company, approximately?
A. I do not.

Q. Okay. How about the company that does the
loans to vets?

A. I'm sorry. I do not know the exact number of
them.

Q. Okay. But all four of these individual
tenants are permitted to use the parking lot
that's the subject of the 2006 easement, correct?
A. Correct. Correct.

Q. All right. Out of curiosity, do you have any
indication, any testimony you can offer as to how
many people appeared were going into any
individual yoga class?

A. I do not have specific testimony. I don't

think I ever saw 40 people walk in the door, but,
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you know, again, I was there certain times, but I

don't have specific testimony.

MR. FREEDMAN: Ckay. I have
nothing else for this witness.

THE WITNESS: Can you give me one
second? I have to plug in my computer. I'm
sorry.

MR. GLASSMAN: When he comes back,
Mr. Campbell, feel free.

THE WITNESS: My apologies. This
will just take me one second.

OCkay. I'm back.

MR. CAMPBELL: Thanks.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q. Good evening, Mr. Barrist.

A. Good to see you.

Q. Mr. Barrist, this is a four-story building,
right?

A. Yes.

Q. And if I look on LoopNet, it says that the
average floor size or floor plate says each floor
is about 7,000 sguare feet; 1is that right?

A No. I don't know what LoopNet says about the

floor plate. The second, third and fourth floor
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is a little shy of 4,500 feet each, and the first
floor has the candy store, which would be
approximately the same size, the lobby, and
approximately 4,000 feet that covers the
technology company and Mr. Rufo's office. So I
guess about 8,400 feet on the first floor.

Q. Okay. So i1if I do the math, about 22,000
square feet between the four floors; is that
right?

A. I'm adding it up right now. 2,160 I come up
with.

Q. And you purchased the property in 20127

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And what was the tenant mix when you
purchased the property in 20127

A. The tenant mix was similar. The space that
the technology consulting firm is in, it was
Rufo's office, and was a warehouse space at the
time.

0. And was there any manufacturing relating to

the confectioner on the second, third and fourth

floor?
A. No, it was office space.
Q. And when did the warehouse space on the first
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floor change over to office?

A I don't know the exact dates. I know that
part of it turned to office several years ago. I
don't know the exact date, and a piece of it
turned into office space, I believe in either
late '20 or early '21.

Q. Did you get a special exception when you
converted that warehouse space to office?

A. I don't believe so. I believe it was the
whole building was office space at the time.

Q. If I were to tell you that warehouse space,
under the borough's code, reqguires less parking
than an office space, would you be surprised at
that?

A. I wouldn't be surprised, but, again, I'm not
so sure that space wasn't set up to be office
space originally. Maybe Mr. Rufo, who did the
original land development on the building, would
enlighten us on that.

Q. I guess I misunderstood. I thought you said
that in the last few years the first floor had
warehouse space that was converted to office.
Are you changing your testimony?

A. I'm not changing my testimony. I bought the
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building. Mr. Rufo did the original land
development for this building, and for the 424
Elm Street building and for the townhouse
development. He may recall how the area of the
building was zoned. I do not have personal
knowledge.

Q. I'm not asking your personal knowledge about
the zoning when Mr. Rufo owned 1it. I'm asking
you about the tenant mix since you've owned the
property.

Is 1t your testimony that it's
always been office or some of it was once
warehouse when you owned 1t?

A. My testimony 1s that approximately 4,000 feet
of it was warehouse, and has since been converted
to office with township approval. I don't know
the specifics of that approval.

Q. Why do you say that? First of all, why do
you say that the borough approved for that
conversion?

A. Because we were 1issued permits and a U&O
after it was converted.

Q. But you don't recall coming to this bocard

asking for permission to do that, right?
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A. I do not.
Q. Okay. We have talked about the easement
that's Exhibit 6, the easement from 2006. You
would agree that my client has the right to use
the 29 parking spaces that are on your property,
right?
A. Yes, as long as she does not interfere with
our parking.
Q. Understood. And that's the only parking you
have on-site, right, to support your 22,000
square feet of office?
A. Across the street parking on Hector Street,
and I pay the Polish-American Club, I think, $200
a month to allow for overflow parking during busy
retail hours, primarily Christmas and Easter, so
that the people going to the candy store have a
place to park.

MR. CAMPBELL: Those are the
questions I have for Mr. Barrist. Thank you.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Kellerman,
sorry. Do you have any questions?

MR. KELLERMAN: No questions for

me. Thank you.

MR. GLASSMAN: Any redirect,
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Mr. Freedman?

MR. FREEDMAN: Just one last

question.

BY MR. FREEDMAN:

Q. Mr. Barrist, we Jjust talked about whether
the -- we just talked about the 2006 easement
with respect -- with specific reference to
Paragraph 5, which you -- I'm sorry. I'm trying
to go down here. Am I clicking this? I guess I
don't have control.

Paragraph 5, which you paraphrased
something along the lines of, the neighboring
parcel cannot exacerbate the existing parking
conditions, right?

A. Yes, that's what I was referencing.

Q. Okay. And for the last, I believe, year and
a half, you said that there have been virtually
no yoga classes on-site; is that right?

A. Correct.

Q. So, effectively, for the past year and a
half, any -- up to present, the addition of any
new office space would exacerbate the existing
parking, right?

A. Correct.
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MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I have
nothing further. Should I call my next witness?

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Campbell, do
you have any recross -—-

MR. CAMPBELL: No.

MR. GLASSMAN: -~ based on that?

Yes, please call your next

witness.
MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I call --
MR. GLASSMAN: I apologize. I
forgot. I skipped over board questions.

Mr. Barton, if you want to take
over board guestions?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: We'll check with
the board.

Alan Chmielewski, do you have any
questions of this past testimony of this witness?

MR. CHMIELEWSKI: No, I do not.

Thank you.

MR. GLASSMAN: Thank you.

Mr. Doman, any guestions?

MR. DOMAN: No, I do not. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.
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Mr. Scharff, do you have any
guestions?

MR. SCHARFF: No, none at this
time. |

CHAIRMAN BARTON: And Mr. Danek?

MR. DANEK: No guestions from me.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: And I have no
questions.

Bobbi Jo, have you received any
gquestions on the line for this witness?

MS. MYRSIADES: No, I have not.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Okay. And,
again, members of the public, if you would like
to ask a gquestion of Mr. Barrist, please identify
yourself, give us your name and address.

And we see no questions there.

So I believe we can go to the next
witness.

MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I'm going to

call Mr. Rufo, who's been sworn in.

ANTHONY RUFO, having been duly

sworn previously, was examined and
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testified as follows:

BY MR. FREEDMAN:

Q. Can you hear me, Mr. Rufo?

A. Yes, sir. Yes, sir. Can you guys hear me?
My phone -~

Q. We can hear vyou. We can hear you.

A. Ckay. Okay.

Q. Okay. Mr. Rufo, what connection do you have
to 441 East Hector Street?

A. I'm a tenant.

Q. And what connection do you have to 424 East

Elm Street?

A. I have no connection currently.
Q. Okay. Were you ever the owner of either
property?

A. Yes, both.

Q. Okay. And were you the owner of the propert
at the time that the 2006 easement was granted?
A I was.

Q. Okay. Can you tell the board a little bit
about the underlying basis for that easement,
what the discussion was and what the need for it
was?

A. Sure. I think that, basically, that was

y
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driven at the time because the buyer, when I was
in the midst of selling, were very concerned that
there be enough. I always assured them that
parking -- it didn't seem to be an issue.

I had commercial tenants in the
four-story building also, and I guess to fulfill
their wishes, we went through the steps of
creating cross-collateralization, and these
easements were necessary to entice them to
purchase the building.

I want to say there's three
premises, A, B and C. The townhomes down the end
also were able to use the space, which would be
on the west and the north side of 424 East Elm.
Does that answer your guestion?

Q. Yes. Now, even though you're no longer an
owner of either property, you've maintained

office space consistently; is that correct?

A. Yeah, up to -- excuse me -- maybe April of
2020 to about -- maybe for about ten months. I
moved across town temporarily. Of course, during

ten months, I also had to fit out the space we
now occupy, which would be on the first floor

space of 441 building.
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Q. So you moved out —-- so you were in the
property from 2006 to 2020 as a renter, and then
recently reentered the property as a tenant,

correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. So how often were you in the office?
A. Let me go back a second.

Q. Sure.

A. Michael's company purchased in '12. So,
really, I was a tenant of -- I was the owner, so

in 2006 to 2012, I wasn't really a tenant. I
occupied the building with my offices. Once
Michael became owner, I rented off of him.

Q. But you were an occupant consistently from
2006 to 2020, correct?

A Correct.

Q. And you've had occasion to observe the
traffic flow and parking needs at the yoga studio
during that time?

A Correct.

Q. Now, let's just take the March and April of
2020 period out of the equation for a moment.
Can you describe how many parking spaces you

observed the yoga studio to be using on a regular
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basis, just an estimate?

A. Really hard to say. I never felt it was a

problem. I'm in and out. Understand that I'm
contracting and developing. I'm in and out all
day long.

Q. Right.

A. The parking in front of 424 Elm Street side,

the driveway, which would be just east of that

building. I have never experienced a problem
trying to park. I've never not got a spot. I
will say one thing. You mentioned three spots

designated to 424. That's where I parked for

years. Nobody ever bothered me.

Q. Ckay.

A. Playing games, I guess.

Q. And you've personally observed individuals

from the community walking up to it, to go to
yoga classes at the studio, prior to its ceasing
operations?

A. Absolutely.

Q. Okay.

A. A lot of walk-ups.

Q. You've also personally witnessed elderly

folks being driven to classes?
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A. Yes.
Q. Okay.
A. Yes. It seemed like it was a woman's class.

I'd see them getting out of there about 6:30 at
night, maybe 7:00. I'm not sure what the
schedule was, but it seemed like younger
gentlemen were dropping their wives off, and they
would take off, and that would be about when I
would be leaving at the end of the day. That's
when I witnessed that.

But they would just pull into the
lot, turn arcund, drop them off, and I guess come
back in an hour. I'm not sure how long the yoga
classes lasted.

Q. Okay. If you can recall, when was the last
approximate time you saw somebody going to a
class at the yoga studio?

A. Good gquestion. I would guesstimate maybe
January, February of 2020.

Q. Okay.

A. Really don't recall. That's a guesstimate.
Q. OCkay. And you're currently using the parking
lot that is the subject of the 2006 easement by

virtue of your leasing a commercial unit there;
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is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you have how many employees full time?
A. That work at the building?

Q. Yes, with you.

A. Five.

Q. Okay.

A. I'm one of those. I'm not there all the
time. I'm in and out all the time.

Q. Right. Okay.

A. There's about three people that stay there on
a daily basis, all day long.

Q. How many employees, total, do you have?

A. Inside of 40.

Q. What's that?

A. Short side of 40.

Q. Okay. And how many of them visit the office
ever?

A. One or two will stop by to maybe pick up a

set of prints or something. Very, very seldom.
Q. Okay.

A. Most of the action happens on our development
sites.

MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. I have
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nothing further for this witness.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Campbell, any

cross?

MR. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:
Q. Mr. Rufo, you sold the property to

Mr. Barrist?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what was the tenant mix when you sold the
property?

A. I'm sorry. Are you referring to 441 or 4242
Q. How many properties -- well, how many

properties did you sell Mr. Barrist?

A. The one at 424, the bigger one. I'm sorry.
441 East Hector, the big one with the candy
store. 424 East Elm Street, the building that's
in question here, actually sold to the
bookstands, not Mike Barrist.

Q. So that's why I asked. I didn't realize

there was more than one property there. You sold
the -~

A. There's three premises, A, B and C. Mike
Barrist only purchased A. I'm sorry. He

purchased C. I sold A to a developer, I sold B
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to (inaudible.), I sold C to Mike Barrist.

Q. Right. So you sold the Freeman Nut building
to Mr. Barrist, right?

A. Correct.

Q. And that's where your office is, rightv?

A. Correct.

Q. My guestion was, what was the tenant mix when
you sold that to Mr. Barrist, if you recall?

A. Tenant mix? It was office space, and like
Michael had mentioned earlier, the 4,000 sguare
feet on the one-story building on the west side
of 441 was storage, was where I kept my
equipment.

Q. Okay.

A. And then it got changed. We split it in half

and we created two offices since Mike bought the

building.
Q. Okay.
A, Does that answer the guestion?

Q. Yeah. Were the second, third and fourth
floors ever used by Freeman Nut?

A. Prior to me buying the building, I understand
they were. But I believe it was Ed Comber

Corporation that were actually using those floors
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to cook candy and stuff. Freeman Nuts, I think,
is just a retail store. Let me clear that up. I
don't think so. I think the retail store never
used the second, third or fourth. There was a
time -- hold on.

Q. There was a candy confectioner that occupied

and did things on the second, third and fourth
floor, right?
A. That's correct. Before my time, that's

correct.

Q. And they stopped doing that before you bought

it?

A. That's correct.

Q. They were never a tenant of yours?
A. No, sir.

MR. CAMPBELL: Thank vyou.

THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

MR. GLASSMAN: Ed, I'm assuming
you have no further guestions then?

MR. CAMPBELL: I have no further
questions for Mr. Rufo. Thank you.

MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Kellerman, do
you have any questions?

MR. KELLERMAN: No questions.
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MR. GLASSMAN: Mr. Freedman, any

redirect?

MR. FREEDMAN: I have none. Thank
you.

MR. GLASSMAN: OCkay. Mr. Barton,
if you want to take over board questions?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Yes.

I'"ll ask Mr. Scharff, do you have
any questions of this witness?

MR. SCHARFF: I have no guestions.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.

Mark Danek, any questions?

MR. DANEK: You know, this is
probably more for Ed Campbell.

I was looking at Exhibit 3. VYou
have the color coded site plan of the parking.

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes.

MR. DANEK: You know, I don't know
if any witnesses really testified, you know, what
the colors are, what they represent, which ones
are shared, which are dedicated, as it relates to
your calculations, so.

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes. So I
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summarized that, and then I asked Fiona if my
summary was correct. If you would like, I'm
happy to do that again or I'm happy to clarify
that. The red are -- |

MR. DANEK: Sorry. Just please
clarify. Thank you.

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes. The three
boxes in red reflect the 18 spaces that are on
the property. The area in green reflects the
three parking spaces that are on Mr. Barrist's
property that my client has the right to use
exclusively.

The spaces that are designated in
yvellow, and are 13 off of Hector and 16 off of
Elm, are parking spaces that my client has the
right to use, but it's not exclusive, as
Mr. Barrist and Mr. Rufo, I think, both testified
that those spaces are available for the occupants
of 441 as well.

MR. DANEK: And then just to
clarify for me, the boxes in red, are they
exclusively for the use of the applicant's
building?

MR. CAMPBELL: They are
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exclusively for use of the applicant's building
during business hours, from 8:00 a.m. to
6:00 p.m. The box to the north and the box to
the wést, reflecting seven and nine parking
spaceé, are availilable to the residents of the
townhouse development off-peak. Mr. Rufo
testified, he made that comment, so.

MR. DANEK: Okay.

MR. CAMPBELL: Those spaces ére
avalilable to the residents off-peak.

MR. DANEK: Great. Thank you.

- That's all of the guestions I have. Thank you.

CHATIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.
Marlowe Doman, do you have any

questions for this witness?

MR. DOMAN: No, I do not. Thank

you.
"CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.
Alan Chmielewski, any questions?
MR. CHMIELEWSKI: ©No questions.
Thank vyou.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: And I have no

questions.

I'll ask Bobbi Jo, have you
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received any questions online for this witness?

MS. MYRSIADES: No, I have not.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank vyou.

If any member of the public
viewing or listening to this proceeding has a
question for Mr. Rufo, please identify yourself
by name and address.

And there are no further
questions.

So I believe, Mr. Freedman, you
wanted to offer a final argument after your
witnesses?

MR. GLASSMAN: If we're going to
do closing argument, we should let Mr. Campbell
go first, before we allow Mr. Freedman, but --

MR. FREEDMAN: That's fine. I
just want to submit one more -- actually, at this
point, it's only one exhibit in support of the
objections, and which I ailuded to in my
introduction, and I submitted them to Bobbi Jo.
It's marked Exhibit D.

Bobbi Jo, do you have access to
that, my exhibit D?

MS. MYRSIADES: Give me one second
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and I will have that pulled up there. Bear with
me. The post from the yoga?

MR. FREEDMAN: That's it. Can you
scroll down to the third page, please? That's

good.

I wanted to submit this to the
board for the board's consideration in support of
my assertion that the applicant really should be
seeking a variance today. There has been
substantial testimony from my clients to support
an abandonment of this nonconforming use for a
period in excess of one year.

I'm offering this exhibit to the
board. It's a post by Ms. Hanlon, who 1is the
owner of Yoga Home, which is the yoga studio we
have been talking about for the last two and a
half hours, and these posts suggest that they
were vacating their lease at the end of June, and
my clients offered testimony that operations had
ceased months before that. |

So with that, I'll just conclude,
and ask to reserve some time for closing
argument, after Mr. Campbell.

MR. GLASSMAN: Thank you.
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Mr. Barton, are you still there?
CHAIRMAN BARTON: Yes. Yes, I am.
We're going to begin with final
arguments.
MR. CAMPBELL: I have one guestion
to ask Mr. Tavani in rebuttal, if I can.
CHAIRMAN BARTON: Why don't we
take that?
BY MR. CAMPBELL:
Q. Mr. Tavani, are you still with us?
A Yes.
Q. And you heard the testimony of Mr. Barrist
and Mr. Rufo?
A Yes.
Q. After hearing their testimony, did it change
the opinions that you shared with the board
earlier?
A. No, I believe what the board is considering
is what the potential traffic and parking
implication of the yoga studio are. Talking
about what's happened in the last year or even
different times 1is not particularly relevant.
It's what the potential is for any operator in

this space, and I think it's considerable, as
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outlined in A-9.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's the only
gquestion I have. If there is cross of
Mr. Tavani? Otherwise, I'll sum up.

MR. GLASSMAN: Before you do, I
would like to propose to the zoning hearing ‘board
or ask 1f anyone wants to fake a short exec
session to go over anything before we conclude?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: I believe we
should. This has been a lengthy hearing, and
actually a continuation of this hearing.

I'm going to propose that we take
between five and ten minutes for an executive
session, which the board will now participate in.
It's about 9:33 p.m., and if any board members
need the phone number or the password, please
text Mr. Glassman, and he'll get that to you.

So we are now going to break for a
brief executive session, from which we will
return.

MR. GLASSMAN: And it was sent by
my assistant, Eileen, middle of last week, but
shoot ﬁe a text i1f you need the info, and please

put your cameras on -- shut off your cameras and
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turn yourself on mute before you call in.

(At 9:33 p.m., a recess was taken

until 9:53 p.m.)

MR. GLASSMAN: We had a short
executive session to go over some legal questions
with the case that's been presented to us by
Mr. Campbell and Mr. Freedman.

After discussing further with the
board, it would be the board's preference to
request findings of fact and conclusions of law
to be submitted to me and CC'd to Eric Johnson
and to Bobbi Jo by September 7th, and then the
hearing will be continued to the 13th for closing
argument, public comment and a vote.

And I forgot to ask the court
reporter, but I'm assuming -- today is the
l6th -- that you'll be able to get this back out
pretty quickly.

THEE COURT REPORTER: No problem,
Mr. Glassman.

MR. GLASSMAN: - Thank you.

Ed, Eric, are you okay with that?

MR. FREEDMAN: Fine with me.
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MR. GLASSMAN: So that's all we
have on this case this evening.

If we could have a motion from the
board to continue the hearing to September 13th,
with findings of fact being submitted by the
parties by September 7th?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Is there a
motion from board? Any board members ready tq
make that motion?

MR. DANEK: It's Mark Danek. I'1l1l
make the motion to continue the hearing until the
September 13th meeting, based upon the
representations of Alex Glassman.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: And 1is there a
second to that motion?

MR. SCHARFF: This is Greg
Scharff. I'll second that motion.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank vyou.

We have a motion and a second.

And, Mr. Johnson, please take the
vote.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Danek?

MR. DANEK: Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Scharff?
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MR. SCHARFF: Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Doman?

MR. DOMAN: Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Chmielewski?

MR. CHMIELEWSKI: Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Chairman Barton?

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Yes.

So that motion is approved, and
this hearing is being continued to September the
13th.

MR. GLASSMAN: And, Mr. Barton --
I'm sorry, Mr. Freedman, you were going to ask a
guestion?

MR. FREEDMAN: I didn't know you
were looking at me. I was going to just ask
about the Notes of Testimony. That's going to be
circulated sometime in the next couple of weeks?

MR. GLASSMAN: Yes, and you can
reach out to Bobbi Jo and Eric to inquire about
those.

MR. FREEDMAN: Okay. Got it.
Thank you, and thanks for everyone's time
tonight.

CHAIRMAN BARTON: Thank you.
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(At 9:56 p.m., proceedings were

concluded.)
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CERTIFICATION

I, Edward T. McKenna, do hereby
certify that the testimony and proceedings in the
foregoing matter, taken on August 16, 2021, are
contained fully and accurately in the
stenographic notes taken by me, and that it is a

true and correct transcript of the same.

EDWARD T. McKENNA

The foregoing certification of
this transcript does not apply to any
reproduction of the same by any means unless

under the direct control and/or supervision of

the certifying reporter.
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CAMPBELL RoOcCcoO

LAW LLC
FINS

Edmund J. Campbell, Jr, Esquire
Direct Dial: (610) 992-5885
Email: ecampbell@campbeliroccolaw com

August 16,2021

VIA EMAIL AND FIRST CLASS MAIL

Rick Barton, Chair

Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
400 Fayette Street

Suite 200

Conshohocken, PA 19428

Re:  Application for Special Exception
424 East Elm Street
Revised Exhibits

Dear Mr. Barton,
As you will recall, | represent the applicant SK Elm LLC in the above captioned matter.

Plcase accept this letter as my entry of appearance on behalf of Jeronimo LLC, the owner of the
subject property. Jeronimo previously entered its appearance via its owner Fiona Jamison. The owner
has standing to participate in this matter. Please revisc Jemonimo’s status to reflect that it is now a co-

applicant.

I previously provided the Board’s staff with eight (8) exhibits for this matter. Please find
attached a revised Exhibit 6 (parking summary) and Exhibit 9 (Letter from Frank Tavanie, P.E dated
August 12,2021,

Thank you for your time and consideration of this matter.

Respectfully submitted,
CAMPBELL ROCCO LAW, LLC
_/s/ Edmund J. Campbell, Jr.
Edmund J. Campbell, Jr., Esquire

ce: Michael Clarke, Esquire
Eric Johnson
SK Elm LLC
Jeronimo, LLC

{00356686;3} 2701 RENAISSANCE BOULRVARD © FOURTI FLOOR » KING OF PRUSSIA, PA 19406
TELEPHONT: (610) 205-1560




Revised - Exhibit 6

Parking Summary

Existing Parking - 49 Spaces

18 spaces on site

3 Eim Street (exclusive)

15 Elm Street {non-exclusive)
13 Eim Street {non-exclusive)
49 Total

Existing Parking Demand Based on IBC occupant load- 34 Spaces
17 spaces for Second Floor Office (4,200 sf office at 4/1,000 sf = 17)
17 spaces for Yoga Studio

84 students (20-50 sf per “student” 4,200sf /5 students = 84 maximum students)
-IBC Max capacity is 50 sf per student
-Industry standard is 20 sf per student

84 students / 5 = 17 spaces

Proposed Use Parking Demand Per Code —
17 spaces for Second Floor Office - No change proposed

17 spaces on First Floor Office

Excerpts from § 27-2002 re Off-site Parking:

Studio for dance, art, music or photography - 1 space per 5 students, and/or 1 space per 300 square
feet of gross floor area for nonstudent patrons.

Indoor sports facility -1 1/2 spaces per person for maximum court and exercise equipment capacity.
Business or administrative offices - 1 space per 250 square feet of gross floor area.

Laboratory or industry - The larger of 1 space per employee or per 450 square feet of gross floor area.

{00358472;2}




EXHIBIT “D”




(4T —

DE BKO5624-1088 ON-DERD MICRLLANEOUS
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19554 0024102705
D TION OF T ASEME
THIS DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND EASEMENTS (“Decleration”)
made this Q6 day of () (-fobewr | 2005 by TR-SUBURBAN, L.P., a Pennsylvania

limited partnership, with offices at 424 E Elm Street, Conshohocken, Montgomery County,
Pennsylvania (heremafier referred to as the “Declarant”)

Basis of Declaration

A Declarant 1s the owner of certain properties located in Conshohocken Borough,
Montgomery County, Pennsylvama, more fully identified as Tax Parcel Identification Numbers
05-00-05896-003, Block 023 and Umt 038, and 05-00-05900-008, Block 023 and Unit 039
(collectively, the “Property”), and as depicted on a Record Plan prepared for Declarant by
Momenee and Associates, Inc , dated March 8, 2004, a true and correct copy of which 1s attached
hereto as Exhubit A and made a part hereof (the “Plan™)

B The said Property 1s bemng subdivided mto twenty-one (21) townhouse lots
(“Townhouse Lots”) and a single one and one-half (1%4) story office building lot (“Lot 14”) The
Townhouse Lots are identified as Lots 1 through 13 and Lots 15 through 22 on the Plan

Herenafter, the Townhouse Lots and Lot 14 are sometimes collectively referred to as the “Lots ™

lo i s ot Lt 901

eCertified copy of recorded # 2005188921 {page 1 of 12) ;

Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds
Only valid with epm-signalure on cover page




C Declarant desires that all of the Lots shall be developed and mamtaned 1n such
manner so as to protect the value, attractiveness and desirability of the Property

D Declarant hereby further reserves for the benefit of any Owner, and such Owner's
tenants, agents, employees and invitees, the night of full and uninterrupted use of the parking
spaces located within Lot 14, as depicted on the Plan, for the purpose of parking of automobiles
at all tumes other than Normal Business Hours

E Declarant or Declarant's Successor has created or mtends to create a planned
community which will govern the Townhouse Lots by recording a Declaration of Bella Square
Townhomes Planned Commumity 1n the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Montgomery County
(the “Association Declaration”)
SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.

Unless otherwise expressly provided, the following words and phrases when used herein
have the following meamng heremnafier specified

A “Association” shall mean and refer to the Bella Square Townhomes Communty
Association

B “Cherry Street Dnveway” shall mean the common driveway located on the
Property that runs from Cherry Street behind Townhouse Lots 1 through 9 and 15 though 22 and
serves the Townhouse Lots and Lot 14 and is depicted on the Plan

C “Community Property” shall mean the portion of the Property which 1s subject to
the terms of the Association Declaration

D “Declarant™ shall mean and refer to TR-Suburban, L P

E "Declarant's Successor" shall mean and refer to Ava Landholding, Inc

eCertified copy of recorded # 2005188921 (page 2 of 12) ~J
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F “Elm Street Driveway” shall mean the common driveway located on the Property
that runs from Elm Street through Lot 14 and serves the Townhouse Lots and Lot 14 and 15
depicted on the Plen  Heremafier, the Cherry Street Driveway and the Elm Street Driveway shall
sometimes be referred to collectively as the “Dniveways ™

G “Lot 14" shall mean and refer to the office building lot identified as Lot 14 and as
shown upon the Plan

H “Lot 14 Owner” shall mean and refer to the person or persons or other legal
entity or entittes, including Declarant, holding fee simple tnterest of record to Lot 14, including
sellers under executory contracts of sale, but excluding those having an interest merely as
security for the performance of an obligation

I "Lot 14 Parking Easement” shall mean the parking easement located in the nine
(9) parking spaces within Lot 14 as identified and shown on the Plan

J “Normal Business Hours” shall mean from seven (7) o’clock am to six (6)
o’clock p m , Monday through Friday

K “Owner” shall mean and refer to the person or persons or other legal entity or
entitres, including Declarant, holding fes simple interest of record to any Townhouse Lot,
including sellers under executory contracts of sale, but excluding those having an interest merely
as secunty for the performance of an obligation

L “Parking Easement” shall mean the Parking Easement located within the seven
(7) parkung spaces adjacent to Lot 14 and within the rear portions of Townhouse Lots 9 through
13, as identified and shown on the Plan

M “Person” shall mean a natural individual or any other entity with the legal nght to

hold title to real property

eCertified copy of recorded # 2005188921 (page 3 of 12)

Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds
Only valid with epm-signature on cover page




A Subject to the covenants set forth herein, Declarant hereby reserves for the benefit
of the Lot 14 Owner, its tenants, agents, employees and invitees, 2 nght-of-entry, full and
unmnterrupted use, right-of-way, liberty and privilege of and passage on and along all portions of
the Cherry Street Driveway as shown on the Plan for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicular
ngress and egress to and from Lot 14 and Cherry Street This easement area shall not be himited
to the portion of the Cherry Street Driveway adjoiming Lot 14 but shell extend throughout the
entire Cherry Strect Dnveway

B Subject to the covenants set forth herein, Declarant hereby reserves for the benefit
of any Owner, 1ts tenants, agents, employees and invitees, a nght-of-entry, full and uninterrupted
use, nght-of-way, liberty and privilege of and passage on and along all portions of the Elm Street
Driveway as shown on the Plan for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress to
and from the Townhouse Lots and Elm Street This easement area shall not be himited to the
portion of the Elm Street Driveway adjoimng Lot 14 but shall extend throughout the entire Elm
Street Dniveway

C Declarant hereby further reserves for the benefit of the Lot 14 Owner, 1ts tenants,
agents, employees and invitees, the night of full and uninterrupted use and easement 1n end
through the Parking Easement, as depicted on the Plan, for the purpose of pedestnan and
vehicular access and the parking of automobiles in the seven (7) parking spaces shown on the
Plan on that portton of the Property The Parking Easement 1s valid at all tumes, provided,
however, that during Normal Business Hours, the Parking Easement shall be specifically

reserved for the exclusive use of the Lot 14 Owner, its tenants, agents, employees and invitees
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At all other imes, the Parking Easement may be used by any Owner of Lots 9 through 13 and
his, her or their tenants and invitees

D Declarant further reserves for the benefit of the Owners, their tenants, mnvitees,
heirs, successors and assigns, the full nght and uninterrupted use and easement in and to the nine
(9) parking spaces located on Lot 14 for the purpose of parking automobiles 1n those nine (9)
parking spaces in common with the owner, invitees, employees and tenants of Lot 14 except
during Normal Business Hours (the "Lot 14 Parking Easement") The Lot 14 Parking Easement
1s valid at all times, provided, however, that during Normal Business Hours the Lot 14 Parking
Easement shall be specifically reserved for the exclusive use of the Lot 14 owner and its tenants,
invitees and employees At all other times, the Lot 14 Parking Easement may be used by the
Qwners and their invitees and tenants

E The Assoctation and 1ts successors or assigns, or anyone on its behalf, shall bear
the exclusive responsibility for smow removal, maintenance and repar of the Driveways,
Parking Easement and Lot 14 Parking Eagement (the "Driveway and Parking Maintenance”)

F The Lot 14 Owner will be responsible for reimbursing the Association for a
proportionate share of the cost of the Driveway and Parking Mamntenance (the “Reimbursement
Obligation”), the balance of such costs shall be the responsibility of the Association Sad
Reimbursement Obligation shall be calculated as twenty-five percent (25%) of the total costs of
the Driveway and Parking Mamntenance as iteruzed in the annual budget of Association (the
“Driveway and Parking Maimntenance Share”) The Association shall provide a copy of the
annual budget of the Assoctation every year, within thirty (30) days of its approval of same, to
the Lot 14 Owner The Lot 14 Owner shall pay to the Association one-twelfth (1/12th) of the

Dnveway and Parking Maintenance Share on a monthly basis, payment to commence on the first
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day of the first month following occupancy of the office butlding on Lot 14 In the event the
amount for Dniveway and Parking Maintenance itemized in the annual budget of the Assocation
1s insufficient to maintain the Dnveways, Parking Easement and Lot 14 Parking Easement, the
Association may assess the Lot 14 Owner for twenty-five percent (25%) of any additional costs
for Driveway and Parking Maintenance

G Further, in addition to the Driveway and Parking Maintenance Share, the Lot 14
Owner shall pay to the Association an annual contribution in the amount of twenty-five percent
(25%) of the reserve for the replacement of the driveways and parking areas as itemized in the
annual budget of the Association (the “Annual Contnibution™) Such sum shall be paid within
thirty (30) days of recetpt by the Lot 14 Owner of the annual budget of the Association

H Declarant hereby further reserves for the benefit of the Association, 1ts successors
and assigns, an easement of access, ngress and egress over such portions of the Townhouse Lots
and Lot 14 as 18 necessary for the Driveway and Parking Maintenance

[ In the event that the Association fails to properly maintain the Driveways, Parking
Easement or Lot 14 Parking Easement 1 a commercially reasonable manner, the Lot 14 Owner
shall have the right to maintam that portion of the Driveways, Parking Easement and Lot 14
Parking Easement necessary for access to the public street, Elm Street, after written notice has
been given to the Association and the Association has failed to cure the problem within thirty
(30) days of said wnitten notsfication, provided, however, that the Lot 14 Owner may proceed
with reasonable diligence to correct any condition requirimg immediate corrective action

J In the event that the Lot 14 Owner shall fail or refuse to make payment to the
Association pursuant to the Reimbursement Obligation and Annual Contribution, as described

herein, the Association shall be deemed to have advanced funds on behalf of the Lot 14 Qwner,
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and shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Lot 14 Owner, including interest at the rate of
fifteen percent (15%) per annum

K In the event that either the Association or the Lot 14 Owner undertake corrective
action due to the failure of the respective responsible party to either properly maintam certain
improvements or make required retmbursement payments as provided heren, the party taking
corrective action shall be entitled to reimbursement from the defaulting party of all costs

expended for corrective action including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and court

costs

These restnctions and

easements shall be deemed covenants running with the land and shall bind and wure to the
benefit of the Lot 14 Owner, any Owner and the Assoctation and their respective assigns and
successors 1 title  Every person who owns, occupies or acquires any right, title, estate or
interest 1n and to any of the Lots does and shall be inclusively deemed to have consented and
agreed to every limitation, restriction, condition, and covenant contained herein, whether or not
any reference to these restrctions is contained 1n the instrument by which such person acquired
an interest 1n the Property, or any portion thereof

SECTION 4. ENFORCEMENT. This Declaration may be enforced by appropnate legal
proceedings by any Owner, the Lot 14 Owner or by Conshohocken Borough Nothing herein
shall be deemed, however, to require Conshohocken Borough or to indicate any ntent on the part
of Conshohocken Borough, to mantain the Driveways and the Parking Easement

SECTION 5 _INTERPRETATION. The provisions of this Declaration shall be hberally
construed 1n accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania The section

headings have been nserted for convenience only and shall not be considered or referred to in
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resolving questions or interpretation or construction Unless the context requires a contrary
construction, the singular shall include the plural and the plural the singular, and the masculine,
femimine, and neuter shall each include the masculine, fermmne and neuter
Declarant has executed this Declaration on the date first above written
TR-SUBURBAN, L.P.,
a Pennsylvame himited partnership,

By 1ts General Partner,
TR-IL,LLC

Witness 0{@/44«&%( /M/ By

Authon Rufo, Memb
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
85

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
¥
On the A& day of OGT’D/;SER— , 2005, before me, the subscriber, 2 Notary

Public, personally appeared ANTHONY M RUFO, who acknowledges humself to be 8 Member
of TR-II[, LLC, and that he, as such Member, being authonzed to do so, executed the
foregoing instrument by signing the name of the Company by himself as and for the act and deed
of saxd Company for the uses and purposes theremn contamed and that he desires the same might

be recorded as such

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my offictal hand and seal

%otary Public

COMMONWEALT ~ OF FENNSYLVANIA
Notaral Seal
\v'lolet.ﬁ‘:3 Sggxmms M!;‘slafy Putilic
f tgornery Coun
My Cormmission Expires Nov 8 2007 v

Member, Panraytvens Asscctatan Of Natanes
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Exhibit A

THE PLAN
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BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD OF CONSHOHOCKEN

IN RE: APPLICATION OF TR-SUBURBAN, LP.

REGARDING

424 EAST ELM STREET

DECISION OF THE BOARD

L History of the Case:

By application dated November 21, 2005, the Applicant is seeking zoning relief
from the Zoning Hearing Board (the "Board"), in the nature of a special exception (the "Special
Exception") from Section 7.3.B.1 to the Conshohocken Borough Zoning Ordinance of 2001
(together with all amendments thereto, the "Zoning Ordinance") for the change of a non-
conforming use of real property (the "Proposed Relief"), as said provision relates to real property
located at 424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken (the "Property"). The Property is presently zoned
Borough Residential -2 ("BR-2"), The Applicant is requesting that it be permitted to convert the
first floor of a building which is a non-conforming contractor office and warehouse area into a
fitness/wellness center and related offices at the Property (the "Proposed Use").

The Zoning Ordinance permits a non-conforming use to be changed to another‘non-
conforming use "which is equally appropriate or more appropriate" and is "no more detrimental
than the existing non-conforming use, as a special exception by the Zoning Hearing Board." Id.
at Section 7.3.B.1.

A public hearing was held before the Board on the evening of J anuary 9, 2006, at 7:00
pm, prevailing time, at the Borough Hall in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania. At the conclusion of

the hearing, the Board discussed the issue and rendered a decision. Due notice was given for the

public hearing.
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After the conclusion of the hearing, the Board found as follows:

1L Findings of Fact:

1. The Applicant is TR-Suburban, LP, of 424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken. The
Applicant is the owner of the Property. Said Applicant was represented By Carl Weiner, Esquire,
at the hearing.

2. The property involved is 424 East Elm Street in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania.
The Property is zoned BR-2 and is a non-conforming commercial office and warehouse in a
residential area.

3. The Applicant, through its counsel, testified that it wished to convert the first
floor from warehouse énd office space to a fitness studio/wellness center and office area.

4. Mike Rufo, representative of the Applicant testified that it intended to convert
area that had been office space and warehouse into a “wellness center” which would consist of a
Yoga and Pilates fitness studio area, as well as offices for a dietician and massage therapist
which would be affiliated with the wellness center. A nurse practitioner would also use the
office area.

5. A proposed change in non-conforming use requires Board approval that the
proposed change must be "equally appropriate or more appropriate” for, and no more detrimental
to, the neighborhood. See Zoning Ordinance Section 7.3.B.

6. The Board asked numerous questions of the Applicant regarding the hours of
operation, which the Applicant noted would be 6:30am until 10:00pm Monday through Saturday,
as well as the size of the proposed classes, which would be 25-27 at ioeak times when classes
were being taught. The Applicant also testified that no dumbbells or active workout equipment
would be at the site.

7. The Board also asked about the availability of parking at the site, as the Proposed

Use would appear to require a minimum of 55 parking spaces under the Zoning Ordinance. The
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Applicant testified that the plans for the Proposed Use included providing 56 parking spaces over
two adjoining lots. The Applicant agreed to enter into a cross-easement with the adjoining
property (also presently owned by the Applicant) to preserve the right to use of the parking
spaces in perpetuity.

8. The Applicant's counsel argued that the Proposed Use would be no more intrusive
and equally appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood than the present use, and would likely
not cause any significant change or impact fo the surrounding community.

9. No one testified for or against the Application.

10.  The Board finds that the matter was properly advertised pursuant to the Zoning
Ordinance and the Pennsylvania Municipal Planning Code ("MPC").

III.  Discussion:

The Applicant seeks the Special Exception in order to permit the Proposed Use pursuant
to Section 7.3.B to allow the change in non-conforming use of the first floor of the building at
the Property from office and warehouse to wellness center and related ofﬁces. See Zoning
Ordinance Sections 7.3.B.

Section 7.3.B of the Zoning Ordinance permits a non-conforming use to be changed to
another non-conforming use as a special exception by the Zoning Hearing Board when such non-
conforming use is "equally appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property
is located, and is no more detrimental than the existing non-conforming use." Id. Non-
conforming uses are an anomaly in zoning law, as they permit a property owner rights that all
others in the neighborhood are not permitted. This requires the Board to carefully and
deliberately balance the competing interests of a property owner whose use rights pre-dates
changes in the Zoning Ordinance with the interests of the rest of the community. Any change in
non-conforming use must be equally as appropriate or more appropriate to the surrounding

neighborhood in order to gain approval. See Zoning Ordinance at 7.3.B.
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The Board has reviewed the Proposed Relief carefully in connection with the
requirements of Sections 7.3.B as well as the MPC standards for granting the Proposed Relief.
See MPC, at 53 P.S. §10910.2. The Board has been convinced that the Proposed Use, though
still non-conforming, is equally appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood as the presently
permitted use. Further, the Board is also persuaded by the testimony offered from the Applicant
that the Proposed Relief will not cause a major increase in the number of cars seeking on-street
parking, as it is generally small classes or one on one sessions, with parking (provided a cross
easement is in placé) that exceeds the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. As a result, the
Board is willing to approve the Proposed Relief subject to the requirement that the Applicant
enter into a cross easement which permanently grants access to the parking adjacent to the
Property so that at no point there are less than 56 parking spaces available for use by the
Proposed Use (the “Condition”). Such Condition is required to be in place prior to the opening
of the Proposed Use, and must remain in place at all times in order for the Proposed Use to
continue at the site.

Therefore, the Board finds the Application meets the requirements of Zoning Ordinance
Section 7.3.B that the Proposed Use is no less appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood.
See id. As a result, the Board, upon thorough and deliberate review of the matetials submitted
and testimony offered, has determined that the Proposed Relief is proper, and hereby grants a the
Special Exception pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 7.3.B subject to the Condition.

Iv. Conclusions of Law:

1. The matter was properly presented before the Board.
2. The matter was properly advertised and the hearing both timely and appropriately

convened in accordance with the provisions of both the Zoning Ordinance and the MPC.
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3. The Zoning Ordinance and the MPC both give the Board the necessary discretion
to determine whether or not to grant the Proposed Relief as well as to qualify such grant of

Proposed Relief subject to the Condition.
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ORDER
The Board grants the Applicant's request for the Proposed Relief from Zoning Ordinance
Sections 7.3.B to accommodate a change in non-conforming use for the first floor of the
building. Such relief is granted subject to both the Condition and to the Applicant maintaining
the Proposed Use in conformity with the information pro;/idéd’ to the Board and all other

regulations of the Borough.”

CONSHOHOCKEN ZONING HEARING BOARD

%W/ Vimedl:

Arnold Martmel/x Chairman
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! Board member Vivian Angelucci was not present at the Hearing and did not vote on this matter.
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EXHIBIT “E”




DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS" -

THIS DECLARATION, made this 21st day of April, 2006 by TR-Suburban, L.P., a
Pennsylvania limited partnership whose mailing address is 424 E. Elm Street, Conshohocken,
Pennsylvania (“Declarant™).

A. Declarant is the owner in fee of two parcels of land located in Conshohocken
Borough, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, and described by the metes and bounds
description contained in Exhibit ““A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Entire
Premises”). The Entire Premises is depicted on the Plan prepared by Momenee and Associates,
Inc. and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

B.  Declarant intends to convey a portion of the Entire Premises denoted as Lot 14 on
the Plan and described by metes and bounds on Exhibit “C” attached hereto (“Lot 14™). Prior to
the conveyance of Lot 14, Declarant desires to create certain easements which will benefit Lot 14
and burden the parcel described by metes and bounds on Exhibit “C” attached hereto and
depicted as “Premises C” on the Plan (“Lot C”).

C. Declarant desires to create certain perpetual easements for the benefit of Lot 14
which will burden Lot C.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of benefits accruing to Declarant by
reason of this Declaration, and intending to be legally bound, Declarant for itself, its successors
and assigns, hereby declares as follows: : ‘

1. Definitions.

(a) “Occupant’means any person entitled to the use, occupancy or enjoyment
of all or any portion of Lot 14; ~

__.(b) __“Owner” means the then current holder from time to time of fee simple

- W ITN E S S E T H: o g M

~itle to any portion of the Entire Premises:

(c)  “Parking Easement Parcel” means that certain portion of Lot C cross-
hatched on the Plan.

(d)  “Permittees” means the following persons:
1) an Occupant; and

e £ " 4

11) the officers, directors, employees, agents, contractors,
subcontractors, customers, patrons, clients, visitors, licensees and invitees of any Ocoupant
and/or of any Owner, its successors and assigns.

(e) “Person” means individuals, partnerships, firms, associations,
corporations, trusts and any other form of legal entity.

2. Grant of Easements.

(a) Declarant hereby grants and declares that Lot C shall be held, sold,
transferred, conveyed, leased, mortgaged and used subject to the following perpetual easements
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“~which shall be appurtenantto Lot 14 'and which are granted to and for the benefit of a-xnlj}u(-)-wner,
his heirs and assigns, of all or any portion of Lot 14, and all Permittees with respect to Lot 14:

: i) ...an easement to use the Parking Easement Parcel, in common with
Permittees of Lot C, for the parkmg and passage of motor vehicles and passage by pedestnans
... 1t is further provided that Permittees of Lot 14 shall have the exclusive right to post signs that ...
designating the three (3) spaces denoted on Exhibit “B” with double hatch marks as “Reserved
Parking Spaces” as parking spaces reserved for the Permittees of Lot C.

ii) -~ an easement to use the Parking Easement Parcel for ingress and
egress, by vehicle or on foot, in, to, upon and over the Parking Easement Parcel for all purposes
for which roadways, driveways and walkways are commonly used.

3. Not Affected by Change in Use. The easements granted by this Declaration shall
continue in full force and effect as perpetual easements and shall be unaffected by any change in
the use, whether such change is in the nature of use or the intensity of use, of Lot 14 or any
portion thereof.

4. Division of Lot C or Lot 14. If Lot C and/or Lot 14 are divided into multiple -~
parts by separation of ownership or by lease, to the extent an easement hereby created benefits
Lot 14, the benefits or the easements hereby created shall continue to attach to and run with, and
benefit and burden, as the case may be, each part so divided.

5. Use of Parking Easement Parcel. Use of the Parking Easement Parcel isnot

. confined to present uses of the Entire Premises, the present buildings thereon (if any) or present -
means of transportation. Declarant, its successors and assigns as Owner of Lot 14, expressly
reserves the right to use the Parking Easement Parcel for the purposes set forth herein, and for
any other use that does not unreasonably interfere with the use of the Parkmg Easement Parcel
for the purposes set forth herein.

- 0. Maintenance. The Owner(s) of Lot C shall be responsible for, and shall bear all
costs for the construction, cleanliness, upkeep, maintenance, snow removal and repair of the
F‘arkm0 Easement Parcel

7 kS Rurmmg of Beneﬁts and Burdens. Itis 1mended that all provisions of this
Declaration, including the benefits and burdens, shall attach to and run with the Entire Premises,
and each portion thereof, and shall be binding upon and inure to the heirs, assigns, successors,
tenants and personal representatives of Declarant and all Owners of any portion of the Entire
Premises.

8. Rescission: Amendment. The provisions of this Declaration may be rescinded or
amended in whole or in part only by the joinder of all Owners of all or any portion of the Entire
Premises in such rescission or amendment. No other party or parties in interest shall have the
right to rescind or amend, in whole or in part, this Declaration; nor shall the effectiveness of any
rescission or amendment of this Declaration be dependent on the consent or approval of any
other party or parties in interest.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF Declarant has caused this Declaration of Cross Easements to
be executed as of the date and year first above written.

DECLARANT:

TR —~ SUBURBAN, L.P., a Pennsylvania limited
partnership, by its general partner

BY: TR-IIL, LL.C.

BY: &%ﬂhﬂ/« P

Anthony M. Rufo¥Member
A
e § _ o
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-~ COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA"

SS,

* COUNTY OF MoSsomes l{ |

~On the" Q:t """" day of ]ql)f [ ( --2006; before me, the subscriber; a Notary
Public fo]z‘\ the Common ealth of Pennsylvama resxdmg in the County aforesaid, personally
appeared Mo \Q}«-{ M’\ O, who ‘acknowledged himself/herself to be the managing member of
TR — III, LLC, as general partner of TR — Suburban, L.P., a Pennsylvania limited partnership,
and that he/she as such Wi frer , being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes therein contamed by signing his/her name on behalf of said

partnership.

- Witness my hand and notarial seal the day and year aforesaid.

Notary Public

; ' My Commission Expires:
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
~ NotariadSeal : el e
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This Joinder of Susquehanna/Patriot Bank, Mortgagee, for Lot C, is an acknowledgement that

JOINDER

their encumbrance will be subordinate to this Easement.

Susquehanna/Patriot Bank

By /Qrm @Q@QZP

Jagfe§ B. Erb, Vice President
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- EXHIBT “A”

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Premises ‘C’, Situate in the Borough
of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonweaith of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E.
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised
October 26, 2005, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side

. of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 280.00 feet to a2 common

comer with Lot 14 marked by a spike to be set, thence from said point of beginning
leaving the northerly side of Elm Street and along a common line with Lot 14 North 05
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 200.00 feet to a point marked by an iron pin to be
set along the southern side of Hector Street (50.00 feet wide) a common corner with Lot
13, thence along the southern side of Hector Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00
seconds East 180.00 feet to a point at the intersection with the northerly side of Elm
Street, thence along the northerly side of Elm Street the following foug courses (1) South
05 degrees 11 minutes 00 seconds East 90.53 feet to a point, (2) South 84 degrees 49
minutes 38 seconds West 0.50 feet to a point, (3) along the arc of circle curving to the

right with a radius of 110.00 feet and an arc length 172.38 feet to a pointg ) South 84
degrees 53 minutes 31 seconds West 70.00 feet to the first mentioned point and place of

beginning.

CONTAINING 33,455 SF (0.7680 acres) of land more or less.

'BEING Parcel #05-00-05904-00-4.

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of
Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E.
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised

03023LDPC
04-20-06




October 26,‘" 2005, and recorded in Mohigbmery County in Plan Book 25 ;")age' ”
276, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166.36 feet to a common
corner with Lot 15, thence from said point of beginning leaving the northerly side of Elm
Street and along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West 100.00 feet to a common comner of Lots 15, 8 and 9, thence along a common line
with Lots 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 113.64 feet
to a common corner with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premises C, thence along
said line South 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00 feet to a point along the
northerly side of Elm Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along said line South 85
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 113.64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of
beginning.

CONTAINING 11,364 SF (0.2609 acres) of land more or less.

BEING Parcel #05-00-05900-00-8.

~
~

BEING as to part, the same premises which Edward A. Comer and Elaine K. Comer, his
wife by Deed dated 6/10/1999 and recorded 7/19/1999 in the County of Montgomery in
Deed Book 5279 page 1803, conveyed unto TR-Suburban, L. P a Pennsylvania limited
parmarshlp, in fee. —

03023LDPC
04-20-06
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| CONTAINING 11.364 SF (0.2609 acres) of land more or less.

EXHIBIT “C”

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of
Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E.
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated-March 8, 2004, last revised
October 26, 2003, and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book 25 page
276, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166.36 feet to a common
comer with Lot 15, thence from said point of beginning leaving the northerly side of Elm
Street and along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West 100.00 feet 10 a common corner of Lots 15, 8 and 9, thence along a common line
with Lots 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 113.64 feet
to a common comer with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premises C, thence along
said line South 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00 feet to a point along the
~..northerly side of EIm Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along said line South 85
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 113.64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of

beginning. o ..
>

"BEING Parcel £05-00-05900-00-8.

BEING as to part, the same premises which Edward A. Comer and Elaine K. Comer, his
wife by Deed dated 6/10/1999 and recorded 7/19/1999 in the County of Montgomery in

- Deed Book 5279 page 1803, conveved unto TR-Suburban, L.P., a Pennsylvania limited
parthership, in fee.

03023LD14
02-24.06




EXHIBIT “F”




,& F. Tavani and Associates, Inc.
Traffic Engineering and Planning

248 Beech Hill Road » Wynnewood » PA « 19096 « (215) 625-3821 Phone ¢ (484) 792-9495 Fax
WWW.FTAVANIASSOCIATES.com

12 August 2021

Ed Campbell, Esq.

Campbell Rocco Law, LLC

2701 Renaissance Boulevard, 4th Fl
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406

Vi4 ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY

RE: Parking & Trip Generation Investigations,
424 E. Elm Street, Conshohocken

FTA Job # 221-015

Mr. Campbell:

F. Tavani and Associates, Inc. (FTA) performed traffic and parking investigations of an existing 8,400 SF,
two-story office building located at 424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken (the “Property”). I understand
that this building is currently approved to operate a fitness/wellness center including yoga and pilates
studios, offices for a dietician, nurse practitioner, massage therapists and a café on the first floor the
(“Wellness Center”) and an office on the second floor. I understand that the Wellness Center was
approved pursuant to a Special Exception granted in 2005 (the “2005 Special Exception”). I further
understand that consideration is being given to abandon the Wellness Center use on the first floor and
instead returning that floor to office use as well, consistent with the top floor of the building. A question
is whether or not the proposed conversion (to office) results in more intense traffic generation or parking

demand which may be burdensome to the community.

EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

The site includes one existing commercial building totaling approximately 8,400 SF over two floors, each
floor being approximately equal in size. The site has its own parking supply amounting to 18 off-street
parking spaces on the Property. In addition, pursuant to a 2006 easement agreement (the “2006
Easement”), the Property has the exclusive use of 3 spaces on an adjacent parcel. In addition, the 2006
Easement provides Property with the non-exclusive right to use 29 parking spaces on the adjacent parcel,
16 of which are off of Elm Street and 13 of which are off of Hector Street.. There is also available public
street parking in the vicinity of the site. It should be noted that the site also has an agreement with
neighboring townhomes which allows the townhomes use of “overnight” parking on the 16 of the 18
parking spaces located on the Property. (from 6 PM to 8§ AM, weekdays).

TRIP GENERATION ~ EXISTING USE

Trip generation activity for many land uses can be investigated utilizing the Institute of Transportation
Engineers’ (ITE) publication entitled Trip Generation Manual (IO‘h edition). This publication contains
formulae which can be used to predict trip (traffic) generation for various proposed facilities. Not all land
use possibilities are represented in the publication. The formulae in the publication are based on real-world




Ed Campbell, Esq.
12 August 2021
Page 2 of 4

empirical data which is collected by others and shared with the Institute. The empirical data is collected
throughout the United States. If local empirical data can be gathered for a particular proposed site, it is likely
comparable to national data in terms of usefulness. yoga studios are not an available land use in the ITE
publication, and the existing yoga studio at the site is no longer in operation, so direct measurement of its
traffic activity cannot be made. However the studio operated for a number of years and insight into its
activity was gathered from conversations with the building owner. The activity is summarized as follows:

* the studio space was 2 large rooms;

¢ cach room could host up to about 30 people;

o the studio was open 7 days a week;

¢ the studio had up to 6 classes per day;

e classes typically had 15-20 participants;

e classes were early in the morning, lunchtime, and late afternoon/early evening; and

¢ classes sometimes partially overlapped and/or were “back to back”, meaning there could
be overlap of arriving & departing participants!.

Classes were essentially timed so that participants could take a class either just before work, just after work,
or during lunch. Thus, the trip generation associated with the yoga studio occurred approximately
contemporaneously with typical office weekday ‘rush hours’ or peak periods (i.e., 7-9 AM and 4-6 PM). As
you can see from the summary, during certain times of the day, approximately 20 participants could be
arriving and approximately 20 participants could be leaving within the same hour for each room, for a total

potential trip generation of 80 or more cars at peak times'.

This trip generation does not include trips created by the dietician, massage therapy and nurse practitioner
uses also permitted at the Property pursuant to the 2005 Special Exception.

TRIP GENERATION —- PROPOSED USE

As has been previously mentioned, trip generation activity for many land uses can be investigated utilizing
Trip Generation Manual. For the proposed use, General Office, LUC 710 is available and appropriate. As
also mentioned earlier, collecting local data can be as equally useful as national data, and the 2™ floor of the
existing building is actively occupied by an office use. However, COVID is somewhat suppressing the trip-
making characteristics of that space at this time, so making direct traffic measurements is not prescribed.
From conversations with the existing tenant, that space currently has about 4 employees that report to the site
on a quasi-regular basis at this time, though the space (as currently configured) could support about 10
employees. Of course, not all employees arrive (or depart) in one 60-minute window of time (i.e., the peak
hour), though many do (some employees arrive/depart in the hour preceding and succeeding the peak hour,
for example, but in those case the trip generation is still less than the “peak hour”). The tenant description of
occupancy marries well with ITE-predicted numbers as summarized below:

! Classes at the end of the day, for example, could be offered from 5:00 to 6:00 PM & from 6:00 PM to 7:00 PM in the 1*
room. Thus around 6:00 PM there could be about 20 participants leaving from the first class and 20 participants arriving
for the second class in the I* room alone. The 2™ room could be utilized as well, and with a short staggering of time
(i.e., from 5:30 to 6:30 PM & 6:30 to 7:30 PM, or the like), to provide maximum flexibility / availability to clients. In
this instance, at around 6:30 PM there could be about 20 participants leaving from the first class and 20 participants
arriving for the second class in the 2 room alone. Traffic engineers focus on peak Aourly flows thus between, around
5:45 PM and 6:45 PM (for example) there could have been as many as 80 participants coming and going to/from the site

in each of its 2 rooms.
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TABLE 1
ITE TRIP GENERATION RATES - PROPOSED USE
Land Uée LUcC# Time Period Equations/Rates Resulta.nt Tota.l T!‘ip s
(entering + exiting)
Office 710 AM. Peak Hour T =1.16(X) 5
(4.2 KSF GLA) P.M. Peak Hour T=1.15(X) 5

T = number of site-generated vehicular trips X = independent variable (KSF GLA)

With all these various trip generation methodologies and investigations established, Table 2 summarizes
trip generation potential (actual volumes/trips) of existing (yoga studio) and proposed (office) utilization
of the first floor space.

TABLE 2
TRIP GENERATION SUMMARY
Former Use Proposed Use RS ‘
- Differ: '
Description (yoga)’ (Office)’ oo

In Out | Total In Out | Total In ‘Ou’t Total

AM Peak Hour 20 20 40 8 2 10 | =12 ‘-18  -30 ‘

PMPeakHour | 20 | 20 | 40 | 2 g | 10 | -18 | -12 ] =30

As shown, the proposed use (office) will result in substantially less traffic than the former use (yoga
studio), even with conservative assumptions as described in the footnotes on this page.

PARKING DEMAND, EXISTING vs. PROPOSED USE

Peak parking demand for many land uses can be investigated utilizing the Institute of Transportation
Engineers’ (ITE) publication entitled Parking Generation Manual (5" edition). This publication is similar to
Trip Generation, but instead of traffic activity it instead focuses primarily on predicted peak parking
demands associated with a proposed use. Once again, yoga studio is not an available land use category in
Parking Generation, but General Office (LUC 710) is. According to the publication, 4,200 SF of gross floor
area of office translates to an expected weekday average peak parking demand equal to 10 spaces. As
mentioned earlier, 17 parking spaces are provided on the site. Assuming another 10 spaces for the 2™ floor
tenant, there is a small parking shortfall, but there is also 20+ parking spaces available elsewhere (in fact,
immediately adjacent to the site) by easement, and even more publicly available on-street. Note also that this
analysis assumes all office users/visitors utilize personal auto trips, whereas there is available nearby (within
% mile of the site) mass transit opportunities both by rail (2 stations) and by bus. The site is also in a
community which is increasingly residential, meaning that some trips to the site could even be made by
walking or biking (the site is near the Schuylkill River Trail and the study area features ample sidewalks),

? Based on conversations described earlier, the weekday AM peak period yoga use was similar to the PM use as described
on the previous page, so a similar trip generation is utilized in Table 2. Even though up to 80 trips could be reasonably

expected, frip generation for either peak hour equal to half that activity was included in Table 2, to be conservative.

 ITE trip generation amounts to 5 total trips during either peak hour using the formulae found in Table 1, but to be
conservative as well as to reflect the floor space potential as explained by the existing tenant and as further described at

the bottom of the previous page, ITE trip gencration estimates were doubled inTable 2.
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further reducing parking impacts. Most importantly, the proposed use will result in considerably less parking
demand than was associated with the yoga studio use, as indicated by the trip generation analysis above.

CONCLUSIONS

The proposed substitution of office space for yoga studio space on the 1** floor of 424 E. Elm Street will
result in reduced trip generation (traffic) in the area surrounding the site as well as reduced parking
demand in the community. The reduction in both traffic and parking is considerable, and it should be

noted that the foregoing conclusions were reached using:

» a significantly-higher-than-expected office trip generation rate (doubled);
» a significantly-lower-than-expected yoga studio trip generation rate (halved);

» no assumed transit usage, despite nearby transit opportunities;
» no assumed ped or bike trips, despite some nearby bike opportunities & available sidewalks; and

e virtual non-reliance on available easement-granted parking supply in an adjacent lot as well as
viable public on-street parking near the site.

I hope this has been helpful. If you have any questions please contact me at your convenience.

Yours truly,

ce: Fiona Jamison
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13 4299 ouryogahome

| 484-344-5040
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75 likes

kerri_hanlon Beloveds,

We know that a community is a sanctuary that exists
and expands beyond the boundaries of a physical
space. That our hearts and intentions are always
connected.

We have made the difficult decision to release the
lease on our physical studio space at Yoga Home.

( Deep breath. )

We know that for so many of you Yoga Home has
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been a second home. The space has held so much
for each of us ~ life's many milestones, the
heartbreaks and the joys, the endings and
beginnings of relationships and friendships, births
and deaths. We've cried together and laughed
together inside these walls. We've shared precious
rituals, stepped into brave conversations together
and maybe even had some memorable moments on
the couch.

And we know that you've taken Yoga Home home
with you and extended our community into your own.
We hope to be able to continue to do that.

We've been lucky enough to have the opportunity to
take our business online during these uncertain
times. We know not every other small business has
the same privilege. Having not been able to operate
in the studio for almost three months and with more
uncertainty ahead, we know it’s the best decision for
the health of the business to let go of our physical
space. ( Another deep breath. )

We also know that our community exists beyond 424
East ElIm Street. Together, we've practiced and
danced on rooftops, planted flowers in the
Community Garden, helped build schools in other
countries, traveled to places near and far. We've
been together in your workplaces and at your
children’s schools. We've helped train your athletes,
have been part of your birthdays and weddings, and
most recently, you've now welcomed us into your
homes through our online studio.

This will all continue. Yoga Home will still exist and be
a part of the community and your lives. In the weeks
and months to come, we hope to collaborate with
some of our community partners to bring you special
events and classes that are at the core of who we
are, that will bring us together in a way that is both
safe, connected and fun.

Full post is on our webS|te link in bio. Gratitude to all
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and deaths. We've cried together and laughed
together inside these walls. We've shared precious
rituals, stepped into brave conversations together
and maybe even had some memorable moments on
the couch.

And we know that you've taken Yoga Home home
with you and extended our community into your own.
We hope to be able to continue to do that.

We've been lucky enough to have the opportunity to
take our business online during these uncertain
times. We know not every other small business has
the same privilege. Having not been able to operate
in the studio for almost three months and with more
uncertainty ahead, we know it's the best decision for
the health of the business to let go of our physical
space. ( Another deep breath. )

We also know that our community exists beyond 424
East Elm Street. Together, we've practiced and
danced on rooftops, planted flowers in the
Community Garden, helped build schools in other
countries, traveled to places near and far. We've
been together in your workplaces and at your
children’s schools. We've helped train your athletes,
have been part of your birthdays and weddings, and
most recently, you've now welcomed us into your
homes through our online studio.

This will all continue. Yoga Home will still exist and be
a part of the community and your lives. In the weeks
and months to come, we hope to collaborate with
some of our community partners to bring you special
events and classes that are at the core of who we
are, that will bring us together in a way that is both
safe, connected and fun.

Full post is on our WebS|te link in bio. Gratitude to all

for your support. @ 1., ¥
View all 12 comments
May 29, 2020
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Kerri_hanion
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania

13 y99 ouryogahome

| 484-344-5040

i
. ﬁww.ouryogohome,co
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78 likes

kerri_hanlon Come say hi this Saturday and Sunday
at @ouryogahome as we say farewell to 424 e elm st.
It's served us well, but time for a shift. I'm teaching
our Community Care class at noon (Free virtual
offering) and will dedicate the practice to coming
home to self. Links in bio. Hope to see you - live or on
zoom!

June 19, 2020
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outdoor yoga classes

presented in parinership by yoga home & conshohocken recreation services

oQvVv "
18 likes

kerri_hanlon It's happening! DAILY outdoor classes
through our partnership with Conshohocken
Recreation Services.

Starts Monday, July 6 with classes at both Sutcliffe
Park and The "B" Field.

I'll see you Wednesday at 6pm at Sutcliffe!

Grateful to have this incredible teaching team -
@mauramanzo @gabyborelliyoga @steph.spangler
@jennifermc3

(SHARE / TAG YOU FRIENDS!)

As always, your safety is our top priority. Please read
full details for social distancing guidelines,
registration, etc. Plus, we're offering an UNLIMITED
SUMMER PASS for a limited time only! =

https://ouryogahome.com/outdoors/
July 2, 2020
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26 likes

kerri_hanion So much to say as we say goodbye to
424 East Elm Street. Join @mauramanzo and me this
weekend for a sweet farewell. Doors will be open Frif
Sat/Sun 9-1 to say hello, scoop up some
@ouryogahome goodies and give our sacred space a
send off. Hope to see you! (In a mask...from 6'...¢3).
Xoxo

June 17, 2020
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PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Jeronimos, LLC (“Jeronimos™) is the record owner of real property located at 424 East
Elm Street, Conshohocken, Pennsylvania (the “Property”). NT p. 3

2. The Property is in the Borough’s R-2 zoning district. NT p. 3

3. On June 18, 2021, SK Elm, LLC, (“SK Elm”) submitted an application to the Zoning
Hearing Board of the Borough of Conshohocken (the “Board”) requesting a special
exception pursuant to Section 27-703.B to permit the change of a non-conforming yoga
studio use on the first floor to an office use which is also non-conforming. Exhibit P-1.

4. The Application was submitted by SK Elm in its capacity as equitable owner of the
Property. Exhibit P-1.

5. Jeronimos consented to the Application. Exhibit P-1.

6. On July 28, 2021, the Zoning Hearing convened a hearing on the Application.

7. The July 28, 2021 hearing was adjourned and reconvened on August 16, 2021 (the
“Hearing”).

8. At the Hearing Jeronimos requested permission to assume the role as an applicant for the
purpose of pursing the Application. NT p. 9-10.

9. The Board granted this request. NT p. 10.

10. The Property contains a two story building of approximately 8,000 sf. Each floor is
approximately 4,000 sf. (the “Building”) NT p. 12.

11. The Building contains two uses, one on each floor.

12. The first floor is occupied by a as a wellness center and yoga studio with a café (the

“Yoga Studio”)

{00369108;2}



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

The Yoga Studio is a non-conforming use authorized pursuant to a special exception
granted by the Board in 2005.
The second floor of the Building is used as office.
There are currently 18 parking spaces on the Property. NT p. 13, Exhibit A-3 & A-6.
The 18 on-site parking spaces are subject to an easement that permits neighboring
residents to use those spaces on non-business off-peak hours.
The Property benefits from an easement that provides an additional 3 exclusive and 29
non-exclusive parking spaces on an adjacent property. NT. P. 13, Exhibit A-3 & Exhibit
A-5.
The Property therefore has the benefit of a total of 50 parking space:

a. 18 spaces located on the Property.

b. 3 exclusive spaces located on an adjacent property pursuant to an easement.

c. 29 non-exclusive spaces located on an adjacent property pursuant to an easement.
Jeronimos purchased the Property in 2007.
At the time Jeronimos purchased the Property in 2007, the first floor was used as a
wellness center and yoga studio with a café (the “Yoga Studio”). NT p. 19.
The Yoga Sutdio was in operation until the end of June, 2020 when its lease expired. NT
p. 21, 30.
On typical week day, the Yoga Studio held five or six classes and each class had a
capacity of up to 30 people, plus staff. NT p. 22.
The Yoga Studio classes overlapped and it would not be unusual for 20 to 30 individuals

to be coming and or leaving the Yoga Studio in a single hour. NT p. 22.

{00369108;2}



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The Applicant provided testimony from Frank Tavani, a licensed professional engineer

specializing in traffic engineering.

The Board accepted Mr. Tavani as an expert in traffic engineering. His expert testimony

can be summarized as follows:

a. The conversion of the first floor office space from a Yoga Studio to office use
would result in a tremendous reduction in traffic trips to and from the Property.
Exhibit A-9, Table 2, NT p. 52-53.

b. The conversion of the first floor office space from a Yoga Studio to an office use
would result in substantially lower paring demand. Exhibit A-9, p. 4, NT p. 54-
55.

c. Mr. Tavani used conservative estimates in order to draw his conclusions regarding
traffic and parking. Exhibit A-9, NT p. 56.

d. The conversion of the Yoga Studio to office would improve traffic and parking
conditions at the Property and therefore be a benefit to the community. NT p. 57.

Mr. Tavani’s expert testimony was unrebutted.

Conclusions of Law

The Yoga Studio use was not abandoned.

The Property has 50 parking spaces available to it.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property from a Yoga Studio to an office use will
result in a decrease in the number of traffic trips coming to and from the Property.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property frim a Yoga Studio to an office use will

result in a reduced parking demand.
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31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

The proposed conversion of the Yoga Studio to office use on the first floor is equally
appropriate to the district in which the Property is located.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property from a Yoga Studio to an office use will
not result in a more detrimental use at the site.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property frim a Yoga Studio to an office use will
not result in a use that is less appropriate for the site.

The Property is suitable for an office use.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property frim a Yoga Studio to an office use is not
inconsistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property frim a Yoga Studio to an office use will
no substantially injure or detract from the use of neighboring property nor from the
character of the neighborhood and the use of adjacent properties will be adequately
safeguarded.

The conversion of the first floor of the Property frim a Yoga Studio to an office use is in
the best interest of the Borough, the convenience of the community and the public

welfare.
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SILVERANG, ROSENZWEIG
& HALTZMAN, LLC

By: Eric B. Freedman, Esquire
Attorney ID No. 319237

900 E. 8th Avenue, Suite 300
King of Prussia, PA 19406

(610) 263-0115 Attorneys for Objector,
efreedman@sanddlawyers.com TRDS 441 Hector Associates, LP
In Re: . BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN

ZONING HEARING BOARD
SK EIm LLC’s Application For a Special
Exception for the Property at 424 :
E. EIm Street, Conshohocken, PA 19428 : No. z-2021-14

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONSOF LAW
SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF OBJECTOR, TRDS 441 HECTOR ASSOCIATES LP

Objector, TRDS 441 Hector Associates, LP (“Objector”), by and through its undersigned
attorney, submit these Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as requested by the
Borough of Conshohocken’s Zoning Hearing Board (the “Board”) at the hearing on August 16,
2021.

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

The Parties.

1 The original applicant in this matter was SK Elm, LLC (“SK EIm”), as the
equitable owner pursuant to an agreement of sale by and between SK EIm, as buyer, and the
current owner Jeronimo, LLC (“Jeronimao”), as seller, for the purchase of real property located at
424 East EIm Street, Conshohocken, PA (the “Property”). The “SK Elm Application” is attached

hereto as Exhibit “A.”
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2. Jeronimo’s representative, Fiona Jamison, testified that Jeronimo was no longer
under contract with SK EIm. See August 16, 2021 Hearing Transcript (“Tr.”) at 36:8-11, a
true and correct copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B.”

3. On August 16, 2021, Jeronimo submitted an application for special exception
seeking approval for Jeronimo, independent of SK Elm, to continue the Property’s prior
nonconforming use (the “Jeronimo Application”). A true and correct copy of the Jeronimo
Application is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C.”

4, Objector, TRDS 441 Hector Associates, LP (“Objector”) is the owner of the
neighboring parcel located at 441 E Hector Street, Conshohocken, PA 19428 (the “Objector’s

Property”), and was granted party status to participate in this matter. See Tr. at 8:21-23.

[. Background.

5. The SK EIlm Application was filed on or about June 24, 2021 by SK Elm, LLC
(the “SK EIm Application”). See Ex. “A.”

6. The SK EIm Application provides that it intends to purchase the Property and
lease the space to its related business, Key Business Solutions (“KBS”). See Ex. “A” at Zoning
Application and Addendum to Zoning Application.

7. On July 19, 2021, the parties attended the public hearing.

8. At the July 19, 2021, Objector requested, and was granted, a continuance until
August 16, 2021.

9. On August 16, 2021, the Jeronimo Application was filed, which substantially
atered the Property’ s proposed use. See Ex. “C.”

10.  Jeronimo did not, however, correspondingly amend the information pertaining to

the proposed use as originally contained in the SK Elm Application. See Exhibits“A” and “C.”
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11.  Virtualy, the only similarity between the SK EIm Application and the Jeronimo
Application is that each requests a special exception to resume the Property’s prior
nonconforming use. Seeid.

12.  Jeronimo presented no testimony that is consistent with the proposed use detailed
in the SK EIm Application. See Ex. “B,” generaly.

13. At the August 16, 2021 hearing, Jeronimo’s representative, Fiona Jamison,
testified that Jeronimo was no longer under contract to sell the Property to SK Elm and that, as a
result, KBS would not be renting the space. See Tr. 25:19-27:1.

14.  Consistent with the above, the Board's solicitor, Alexander Glassman, Esquire,
indicated that the matter would be “proceeding with the applicant now being Jeronimos, LLC
rather than SK Elm, LLC.” See Tr. 10:12-16.

15.  The Board accepted this change. See Tr. 10:17-18.

16. In effect, the SK EIm Application was withdrawn. See Exhibits A, B, C, and Tr.
10:12-18; 25:19-27:1.

17.  The Jeronimo Application, which was filed on August 16, 2021, is the only
application at issue.

18. By way of background, the Property falls in a BR-2 Residential Zoning District,
where office use is not permitted by right. See Ex. “A” at Addendum; see also, Tr. 12:3-4.

19.  The Property is comprised of two floors, each containing approximately 4,420
sguare feet, for atotal of approximately 8,840 square feet. See Tr. 12:5-6.

20.  TheProperty has 18 parking spaces for its exclusive use. See Ex. “A” at 9.

21. At the August 16, 2021 hearing, it was noted that in 2005, the Board granted a

special exception to allow the first floor of the Property to be used as a yoga studio, a
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nonconforming use, upon the condition that an easement agreement be put in place to address the
potential parking issue. See Tr. 12:12-14; see also, Ex. “E” at November 21, 2005 “Decision of
the Board.”

22.  Jeronimo did not present any witnesses, evidence, or testimony from the
Property’s prior tenant, the yoga studio, pertaining to its parking needs, clientele, or the date the
prior use was discontinued. See Tr. 29:6-9.

23. The Property shares a parking lot (the “Parking Easement Parcel”) with
Objector’ s Property, the terms of use for which are governed by easements recorded in 2005 and
2006, which are attached hereto as Exhibits“D” and “E,” respectively.

24.  The 2005 and 2006 easements, collectively, provide that Jeronimo owns or has
exclusive right to use, a total of 21 parking spaces, with conditional rights to 28 additional
parking spaces owned by Objector. Seeid.

25. The 2006 Easement specifically provides that Jeronimo may not take any
measures that “unreasonably interferes with the use of the Parking Easement Parcel.” See Ex.
“E” at 6.

26. Ms. Jamison, Jeronimo’s representative, testified that the yoga studio provided
outdoor and online classes after March of 2020. See Tr. 19:20-21.

27. Ms. Jamison testified that, with the Property’s prior use as a yoga studio, there
had never been a conflict or a problem with parking spaces being fully occupied. See Tr. 20:23 —
21:11.

28. Ms. Jamison testified that the yoga studio could not operate indoors “because of

Covid.” SeeTr. 21:16-18.
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29. Ms. Jamison testified that she did not know when the classes went from in-person
to virtual. See Tr. 33:7-13.

30. Ms. Jamison testified that she did not list the Property for sale until July of 2020.
See Tr. 33:12-14.

31 Ms. Jamison testified that the Property has been an empty space the yoga studio
vacated the space. Seeid.

32. Ms. Jamison testified that she had no firsthand knowledge as to the number of
individual s attending classes at the yoga studio. See Tr. 34:13-35:7.

33. Ms. Jamison testified that SK EIm and, therefore, KBS, pulled out of the
agreement of sale as aresult of the hearing being postponed from July 19, 2021 until August 16,
2021. See Tr. 35:20-23.

34. Ms. Jamison testified that the application was being made on Jeronimo’s behalf,
and that the SK EIm Application was, in effect, withdrawn. See Tr. 36:8-11.

35. Ms. Jamison testified that she did not know how many yoga students walked,
rather than drove, to the yoga studio. See Tr. 38:8-13.

36. At the hearing, Jeronimo offered as its expert traffic engineer, Frank Tavani, who
had prepared a report dated August 12, 2021 (the “ Tavani Report”). A true and correct copy of
the Tavani Report is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “F.”

37.  The Tavani Report was produced at the August 16, 2021 hearing.

38. Mr. Tavani testified that he has served as an expert in support of Jeronimo’s
counsel’s other clients. See Tr. 45:20-24.

39. Mr. Tavani testified that he does not recall that he has ever been an expert adverse

to Jeronimo’s counsel’ s clients. See Tr. 46:1-6.
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40. Based on his analysis, Mr. Tavani concluded that Jeronimo’s proposed use “will
result in reduced trip generation (traffic) in the area surrounding the Property” See Ex. “F” at p.
4.

41. Mr. Tavani based his analysis on the assumption there was no pedestrian or bike
trips under its prior use as a yoga studio or the proposed use. Seeid; see also, Tr. 55:17-19.

42. Mr. Tavani testified that his opinions were based largely upon a“publication from
theITE. . . titled *The Trip Generation Manual,”” (the “TGM”). See Tr. 48:23-24.

43. Mr. Tavani testified that the TGM does not contain any data or research relating
to yoga studios. See Tr. 49:6-7.

44, Mr. Tavani testified that the facts upon which he relied in applying the TGM
analysis to the matter before the Board, came exclusively from Jeronimo’s representative, Ms.
Jamison. See Tr. 49:8-15.

45, Mr. Tavani testified that his analysis was based upon the assumption that there
were classes six days aweek with each class having 15-20 participants. See Tr. 50:1-5.

46. Mr. Tavani’s opinion centered on the number of individuals going to and leaving
the Property. See Tr. 53:13-20.

47. Mr. Tavani’s opinion as to a yoga studio’s parking demand is not based on any
data contained in TGM but, rather, based on the numbers generated and provided by Jeronimo’s
representative, Ms. Jamison. See Tr. 54:18-55:9.

48. Mr. Tavani’s Report is dated August 12, 2021. See Ex. “F.”

49, Mr. Tavani testified at the August 16, 2021 hearing, that the only time he visited
the Property was during the weekend after the Tavani Report was prepared, more than a year

after the yoga studio had vacated the Property. See Tr. 58:5-10.
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50.  Accordingly, Mr. Tavani’s written report is not based on any of his observations
of the Property or the Parking Easement Parcel. Seeid.

51. Mr. Tavani testified that he visited the Property for less than ten minutes, more
than ayear after the yoga studio had vacated the Property. See Tr. 58:17-18.

52. Mr. Tavani testified that the parking figures provided for office use in the TGM
were based on consolidated data compiled from al parts of the country. See Tr. 59:13-19.

53. Mr. Tavani testified that he did not use any “local empirical data” in preparing his
analysis. See Tr. 59:15-19.

54, Mr. Tavani testified that the conclusions reached in the Tavani Report could be
manipulated ssmply by modifying the number of classes scheduled per day and the number of
attendees at each class. See Tr. 62:11-64:6.

55. Mr. Tavani testified that, prior to the August 12, 2021 Tavani Report, he never
conducted atraffic analysisinvolving ayoga studio. See Tr. 64:23-65:2.

56. Michael Barrist testified on behalf of the Objector in opposition to the application.
SeeTr. 73.

57. In contrast to the purview of information upon which Mr. Tavani based his
anaysis, Mr. Barrist spent considerable time on numerous different days observing the
Objector’s Property’s parking specificaly to determine whether the Parking Easement Parcel
was strained. See Tr. 73:5-19

58. Mr. Barrist testified that during the periods he observed the Parking Easement

Parcel, “he typically saw five or six cars, and rarely ten cars at most.” See Tr. 75:2-7.
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59. Mr. Barrist testified that he was “pleasantly surprised there was not an over-
parking of the [Parking Easement Parcel]” and, based on his observations of such, decided to
purchase Objector’s Property. See Tr. 74:20-23; 75:8-10.

60. Mr. Barrist testified that, between 2012 to present, he visited Objector’s Property,
on average, “five or six timesamonth.” See Tr. 75:14-15.

61. Mr. Barrist testified that, between acquiring Objector’ s Property in 2012 through
the beginning of March of 2020, predating any COVID-19-related occupancy shutdowns, “the
yoga studio was not adversely impacting [the Parking Easement Parcel] at al.” See Tr. 76:10-11.

62. Mr. Barrist testified that he personally observed individuals from the
neighborhood and community walking and biking to the yoga studio. See Tr. 76:15-21.

63. Mr. Barrist testified that he did not see the yoga studio being used after the
COVID-19-related shutdowns. See Tr. 77:3-12.

64. Mr. Barrist testified that he rents separate office and retail space within Objector’s
Property to separate companies, each with their own employees and customers, each of whom
possess the right to use the Parking Easement Parcel. See Tr. 78:2-79:18.

65. Mr. Barrist testified that Objector's Property contains approximately 22,000
square feet of office and retail space. See Tr. 81:7-11.

66. Mr. Barrist testified that, for the last year and a half, there have been virtually no
yoga classes on site. See Tr. 85:16-19.

67.  Anthony Rufo, atenant in and former owner of Objector’s Property, testified in

opposition to Jeronimo’s Application. See Tr. 87.
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68. Mr. Rufo testified that he has occupied space in Objector’s Property and used the
Parking Easement Parcel consistently from 2006 through April of 2020, and that he never had a
problem with parking. See Tr. 90:9-91:10.

69. Mr. Rufo testified that, during the periods the yoga studio was in operation, he
personally observed “a lot of walk-up” yoga students that were not driving or using the shared
parking lot. See Tr. 91:16-22.

70. Mr. Rufo testified that he often saw yoga students being dropped off or picked up
by someone else. See Tr. 91:23-92:10

71. Mr. Rufo testified that the last time he saw someone attending a yoga class was
January or February of 2020. See Tr. 92:15-19.

72. Mr. Rufo testified that his employees also use the shared parking lot. See Tr.
92:22-93:2.

PROPOSED CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Introduction

Jeronimo has altogether failed to meet its burden of proving that its proposed
nonconforming use, whatever that may be, would not be more detrimental than the prior
nonconforming use.* Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception is untimely, and the relief
requested therein may only be obtained through applying for a variance to resume its prior
nonconforming use. Jeronimo’s derogation of its duty to provide substantive, relevant facts in
Jeronimo’s Application is suggestive of a subterfuge between Jeronimo and SK EIm to obtain the
grant of special exception by having the application subjected to less stringent off-street parking

requirements.

11 All terms defined in Objector’s Proposed Findings of Fact shall apply herein unless otherwise defined herein.
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On August 16, 2021, Jeronimo submitted the Jeronimo Application that substantively
deviated from SK EIm Application filed in June 202. Specifically, Jeronimo’s Application,
which is completely devoid of the factual background contained in the SK EIm Application,
substituted the party seeking relief from SK Elm, a prior equitable owner, for the current owner,
Jeronimo. Jeronimo’s submission as “co-applicant” without any effort to modify the abandoned
substantive facts contained in the SK EIm Application suggests Jeronimo’s intended subterfuge
with SK Elm to obtain the grant of special exception through disingenuous means. In
perpetrating this subterfuge, Jeronimo is attempting to reduce its off-street parking requirements
under the Borough Code.

Moreover, Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception is untimely, as it was filed
more than a year after Jeronimo discontinued its prior nonconforming use as a yoga studio.
Because the Jeronimo Application was filed more than a year after the prior use was
discontinued, Jeronimo’s only recourse to resume its prior nonconforming use or to change from
the prior nonconforming use to a new nonconforming use, would be to apply for a variance.
Accordingly, Jeronimo’s untimely Application for a special exception must be denied as a
matter of law.

Lastly, Jeronimo has failed to meet its burden to establish that the proposed
nonconforming use would be less detrimental to the district than the proposed used, or that it
would not unreasonably interfere with Objector's use of the Parking Easement Parcel.
Accordingly, under the Borough Code and the terms of the 2006 Easement, Jeronimo’'s

Application must be denied.
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Il. The Prior Use Was Discontinued More Than a Year Before the Application Was
Filed And, Therefore, Under the Borough Code, A Varianceis Required To Resume
the Nonconforming Use.

73. Applicant Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception should be denied
because it was filed more than a year after the Property’s existing nonconforming use was
discontinued.

74.  Section 27-703(C) of the Borough Code providesin pertinent part:

“A nonconforming use, when discontinued, may be resumed any time within one
year from such discontinuance, but not thereafter, unless a variance is granted by
the Zoning Hearing Board in accordance with Part 6 of this Chapter.”

75. In general, under Pennsylvania law, the party asserting abandonment of a
nonconforming use has the burden to prove intent to abandon. See Pappas v. Zoning Bd. Of
Adjustment, 589 A.2d 675 (Pa. 1991).

76.  Absent any evidence to the contrary, the lapse of the designated time will be
sufficient to establish an intent to abandon the use.” Seeid. (McDermott, J., dissenting).

77.  Where there is an intent to abandon “ depends upon examination of all the various
factors presented in a particular case.” See Epting v. Marion Township Zoning Hearing Bd., 532
A.2d 537, 542 (Pa. Commw. Ct. 1987).

78. The Borough Code's plain language is consistent with the Honorable
McDermott’s definition of intent to abandon the use, insofar as the Borough Code does not
reguire proving an intent to abandon. See Pappas, supra at 676.

79.  The aforementioned cases involve municipalities with zoning provisions requiring
showing “an intent to abandon.”

80.  The Borough Code does not require proving an “intent to abandon” but, rather,

just adiscontinued use. See section 27-703(C) of the Borough Code
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8l.  The application presented for the Board's consideration is Jeronimo’s Application
for a special exception to resume a prior nonconforming use, which was submitted to the Board
on August 16, 2021.

82. The cumulative testimony indicates that the prior nonconforming use was
discontinued some time after February of 2020, but not later than June of 2020.

83. Ms. Jamison testified that SK EIm’s Application was withdrawn. See Tr. 36:8-11.

84. Jeronimo did not present any witnesses, evidence, or testimony from the
Property’s prior tenant, the yoga studio, pertaining to when its nonconforming use was
discontinued. See Tr. 29:6-9.

85. Ms. Jamison testified that the yoga studio ended its lease early because nobody
was going to the studio. See Tr. 34:8-10.

86. Mr. Barrist testified that he did not see anybody attending classes after the first or
second quarter of 2020. See Tr. 77:3-6.

87. Mr. Rufo testified that he did not see anybody attending classes after February of
2020. See Tr. 92:15-19.

88.  Objector submitted to the Board for review screenshots of the yoga studio’s social
media pages, which detail that the nonconforming use within the space had been discontinued
several months prior, and that they were officially vacating in May or June of 2020. A true and
correct copy of the screenshots are attached hereto as Exhibit “ G.”

89. The yoga studio indicated on social media that they were moving out of the

Property on or before June 19, 2020. See EX. “G.”
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90. The only competent evidence before the Board originating from the yoga studio
itself confirms that the yoga studio discontinued its nonconforming use within the Property prior
to June 19, 2020. Seeid.

91. Even assuming the Board accepts June 19, 2020 as the date Jeronimo
discontinued its prior nonconforming use, the August 16, 2021 filing date for Jeronimo’s
Application would, nonetheless, be deemed filed more than a year after Jeronimo discontinued
its prior nonconforming use.

92. Even if the Board applies SK EIm’s filing date of June 24, 2021, which it should
not in light of its withdrawal of same, with a discontinuance of use date prior to June 19, 2020,
Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception still would have been filed more than a year after
it discontinued its prior nonconforming use.

93. Because Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception to resume its prior,
discontinued nonconforming use was filed more than a year after the yoga studio discontinued
operations in the space, Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception isuntimely.

94. Under the Borough Code, Jeronimo would only be entitled to resume its prior,
discontinued nonconforming use through a grant of variance. See Section 27-703(C) of the
Borough Code.

95. For this reason, Jeronimo’s Application for a special exception is untimely and
must be denied.

[1l. Jeronimo’s August 16, 2021 Application |s a Subterfuge Designed to Reduce The
Amount of Required Off-Street Parking.

96. Jeronimo’s derogation of its duty to provide the substantive facts analogous to

those provided in the SK Elm Application suggests a subterfuge between the two parties, with
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the desired effect of coordinating efforts to obtain a grant of special exception by reducing the
number of off-street parking spaces required under the applications’ proposed uses.

97.  Jeronimo’s Application was substituted for SK Elm’'s Application. See Exhibits
“A” and “C.”

98. Ms. Jamison testified that SK Elm is no longer an equitable owner and, therefore,
its application is not pending before the Board. See Tr. 36:8-11.

99. Under section 27-2002 of the Borough Code, retail stores require 1 space per 150
sgquare feet, while administrative offices require 1 space per 250 square feet.

100. SK EIm’s Application, therefore, contains a proposed use with less favorable off-
street parking requirements than the proposed use vaguely described in the Jeronimo
Application. See Exhibits“A” and “C.”

101. Under SK EIm’s Application, the Property would be rented to KBS. See Ex. “A.”

102. KBS is a company providing “Mailroom Solutions,” which involves the sale,
warehousing, and repair of mail room postage meters, folder inserters, desktop folders and
printers available for purchase.?

103. According to the SK EIm Application, the yoga studio space would be “used to
prepare equipment and deliver to customers.” See Ex. “A.”

104. KBS's business operations, unequivocally, contain a retail component, which
would result in increased traffic flow with deliveries and drive up customers.

105. Rather than subjecting the SK Elm Application to the Board' s analysis of the off-
street parking requirements found in the Borough Code, Jeronimo instead assumed the role of the

applicant, vaguely asserting that the Property would be used for office space.

2 See htps://360kbs.com
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106. Upon information and belief, members of SK ElIm and KBS were invited and
continued to attend the Zoning Hearing Board's proceedings in this matter, confirming their
ongoing interest in the Property contrary to Ms. Jamison’ s testimony.

107. Jeronimo’s Property only has 21 exclusive parking spaces.

108. Regardless of the Property’s actual square footage, Jeronimo’s Application stands
a better chance of denia due to exacerbating the Parking Easement Parcel due to its removal of
the retail component.

109. SK EIm’s Applciation contains specific details relating to its proposed use. See
Ex. “A”

110. Jeronimo’s Application contains absolutely no details as to its proposed use,
presumably because Jeronimo has no legitimate intent to use the Property as described at the
hearing.

111. With Jeronimo’s Application devoid of any detail or specific intended use, the
Board should infer that Jeronimo’s Application is the product of SK Elm and Jeronimo’s
subterfuge, perpetrated for the intent of reducing its off-street parking requirements under
illegitimate pretenses.

112.  Jeronimo’s Application should, therefore, be denied.

V. Applicant Failed to Meet |ts Burden of Proof to Establish That the Prior Use Would
be More Detrimental Than the Proposed Nonconfor ming Use.

113. Jeronimo atogether failed to meet its burden under both the Borough Code and
the 2006 Easement to establish that the proposed use would not be “more detrimental than the

existing nonconforming use” or that it does not “reasonably interfere with the Parking parcel.”
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114. Section 27-703(B) of the Borough Code provides that a nonconforming use “shall
not be changed to another nonconforming use that is less appropriate to the district in which the
property located, and/or is more detrimental than the existing nonconforming use.”

115. Paragraph 5 of the 2006 Easement provides that Applicant and Objector may only
use the Parking Easement Parcel for such “use that does not unreasonably interfere with the use
of the Parking Easement Parcel for the purposes set forth herein.” See Ex. “E” at 5.

116. Asidefrom Applicant Jeronimo’s representative, Ms. Jamison, who strongly seeks
relief under Jeronimo’s Application, Jeronimo offered no other witnesses, testimony, or evidence
asto the yoga studio’ s use of the Parking Easement Parcel.

117. Applicant’s expert, Mr. Tavani, did not have any firsthand knowledge upon which
to base his recommendation.

118. Applicant’s expert, Mr. Tavani, did not even observe the Parking Easement Parcel

until after he prepared the Tavani Report.

119. Applicant’s expert, Mr. Tavani, based his opinions solely upon information
supplied to him by Jeronimo.

120. Applicant’s expert, Mr. Tavani, based his opinions upon criteria established by
TGM inthe ITE, which contain no data as to the traffic produced by a yoga studio.

121. Prior to this matter, Mr. Tavani himself has never prepared an opinion as to the
traffic or parking produced by a yoga studio, on either a national or alocal level.

122. The opinion reached within the Tavani Report is based on information that can be
manipulated to achieve a desired resullt.

123. Theopinion set forth in the Tavani Report should be disregarded.
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124. In contrast, Mr. Rufo and Mr. Barrist testified that the yoga studio never caused
an interference with the Parking Easement Parcel.

125.  With the exception of Ms. Jamison’s opaque description of Jeronimo’s intended
use, the Jeronimo Application is entirely devoid of any specific details as to the proposed use.

126. In submitting the Jeronimo Application devoid of detail as to the proposed use,
Jeronimo has unjustifiably shifted the burden to the Board to determine whether the proposed
nonconforming use would more detrimental to the zoning district than the prior nonconforming
use.

127.  For this reason, Jeronimo has altogether failed to meet its burden under both the
Borough Code and the 2006 Easement.

128.  Accordingly, the Jeronimo Application should be denied.

Respectfully submitted,

SILVERANG, ROSENZWEIG
& HALTZMAN, LLC

By: /¢ Eric B. Freedman
Eric B. Freedman, Esquire
Woodlands Center
900 East 8" Avenue, Suite 300
(610) 263-0115
Attorneys for Objector,
TRDS 441 Hector Associates, LP

September 8, 2021
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Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than July 14, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. — Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:
zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www. conshohockenpa.gov



OROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President
Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Robert Stokiy, Hwber
Oﬂfce gfthe BOI‘OUgb M’anager James Grimn’, Maember

Jane Flanagan, Member
Karen Tutino, Member

Zoning Administration
d d Yaniv Aronson, Mayor

Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

The Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
Entry of Appearance as a Party
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Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than July 14t, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. — Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:
zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa,gov
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Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than August 11t, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. - Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:
zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | wwv.conshohockenpa.gov




BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President
Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Kb b
nita Barton, Member
Qﬁ}‘ce qfthe BOI‘Ongh /Vfanager James Griffin, Member

Jane Flanagan, Member
Karen Tutino, Member

Zoning Administration )
Yaniv Aronson, Mayor

Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

The Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
Entry of Appearance as a Party

I/We R (c\l\w \Qs \Q\L@HMW\

Request to be granted party status in Application Z-2021-14.

Applicant: 424 E. Elm St - SK Elm, LLC. - Special Exception

Please print name:

\ \ ‘.\ (W] ||
(& c\har e\ Rrymaon

Please print address:

iy & Eln G

Consgh gillen PR \OHH

Please print email:

¥ g'\CQ\f\ Ry wiaw @%Mu‘i L9

ease 5j ow: /)

Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than August 11%, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. - Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:

zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | wwuw.conshohockenpa.gov




BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, Preside

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN e Sy, e
nita Barton, Member
Oﬁjf?f? (Erffhe BOI’O{IE]!? fl’fanager James Griffin, Member

Jane Flnnag‘du, Member
Karen Tutino, Member

Zoning Administration
Yaniv Aronson, Mayor

Stephanie Cecco, B(Jr(mgh Managr.r

The Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
Entry of Appearance as a Party

I/We ZVIJ' e/ Talone

Request to be granted party status in Application Z-2021-14.

Applicant: 424 E. Elm St - SK Elm, LLC. - Special Exception

Please print name:

zk;/e// 7a~/a-46_

Please print address:

5/0 =28 //a.c'f'or' ;:/rf_ee-f

Please print email:

uss @7La-/oﬂ€;rn SU[foncg . cOM

Please Sign Below: 3 Z :

Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than August 11, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. - Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:

zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov



DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS

THIS DECLARATION, made this 21st day of April, 2006 by TR-Suburban, L.P.,, a
Pennsylvania limited partnership whose mailing address is 424 E. Elm Street, Conshohocken,
Pennsylvania (*Declarant™).

A, Declarant is the owner in fee of two parcels of land located in Conshohocken
Borough, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, and described by the metes and bounds
description contained in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Entire
Premises”). The Entire Premises is depicted on the Plan prepared by Momenee and Associates,
Inc. and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

B.  Declarant intends to convey a portion of the Entire Premises denoted as Lot 14 on
the Plan and described by metes and bounds on Exhibit “C” attached hereto (“Lot 14"). Prior to
the conveyance of Lot 14, Declarant desires to create certain easements which will benefit Lot 14
and burden the parcel described by metes and bounds on Exhibit “C” attached hereto and
depicted as *Premises C” on the Plan (“Lot C”).

C. Declarant desires to create certain perpetual easements for the benefit of Lot 14
which will burden Lot C. '

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of benefits accruing to Declarant by
reason of this Declaration, and intending to be legally bound, Declarant for itself; its successors
and assigns, hereby declares as follows:

1. Definitions.

(a) “Occupant’“means any person entitled to the use, occupancy or enjoyment

of all or any portion of Lot 14,

~(b)  “Owner” means the then current holder from time to time of fee : simple
1itle to any portion of the Entire Premises:
{c) “Parking Easement Parcel” means that certain portion of Lot C cross-
hatched on the Plan.
(d)  “Permittees” means the following persons:
i) an Occupant; and
. IS -
i) the officers, directors, employees, agents, contractors,

subcontractors, customers, patrons, clients, visitors, licensees and invitees of any Occupant
and/or of any Owner, its successors and assigns.

(e) “Person” means individuals, partnerships, firms, associations,
corporations, trusts and any other form of legal entity.

2. Grant of Easements.

(a) Declarant hereby grants and declares that Lot C shall be held, sold,
transferred, conveyed, leased, mortgaged and used subject to the following perpetual easements

PHILATR24534656M



~ which shall be eﬁpﬁﬁenant to Lot 14 and which are granted to and for the benefit of ah_j}"ﬁ\'vner,'
his heirs and assigns, of all or any portion of Lot 14, and all Permittees with respect to Lot 14;

.. i)y ... an easement to use the Parking Easement Parcel, in common with
Permittees of Lot C, for the parkmg and passage of motor vehicles and passage by pedestnans
_ It is further provided that Permittees of Lot 14 shall have the exclusive right to post signs that ...
designating the three (3) spaces denoted on Exhibit “B” with double hatch marks as “Reserved
Parking Spaces” as parking spaces reserved for the Permittees of Lot C.

ii) - an easement to use the Parking Easement Parcel for ingress and
egress, by vehicle or on foot, in, to, upon and over the Parking Easement Parcel for all purposes
for which roadways, driveways and walkways are commonly used.

3. Not Affected by Change in Use. The easements granted by this Declaration shall
continue in full force and effect as perpetual easements and shall be unaffected by any change in
the use, whether such change is in the nature of use or the intensity of use, of Lot 14 or any
portion thereof.

4. Division of Lot C or Lot 14. If Lot C and/or Lot 14 are divided into multiple
parts by separation of ownership or by lease, to the extent an easement hereby created benefits
Lot 14, the benefits or the easements hereby created shall continue to attach to and run with, and
benefit and burden, as the case may be, each part so divided.

5. Use of Parking Easement Parcel. Use of the Parking Easement Parcel is not

- confined to present uses of the Entire Premises, the present buildings thereon (if any) or present -
means of transportation. Declarant, its successors and assigns as Owner of Lot 14, expressly
reserves the right to use the Parking Easement Parcel! for the purposes set forth herein, and for
any other use that does not unreasonably interfere with the use of the Park_mg Easement Parcel
for the purposes set forth herein,

. B, Maintenance. The Owner(s) of Lot C shall be responsible for, and shall bear all
costs for the construction, cleanliness, upkeep, maintenance, snow removal and repair of the
Parkmo Easement Parcel

7.‘."’

i Running of Beneﬁts and Burdens It 1s mtended that all pI‘OVlSlonS of this
Declaration, including the benefits and burdens, shall attach to and run with the Entire Premises,
and each portion thereof, and shall be binding upon and inure to the heirs, assigns, successors,
tenants and personal representatives of Declarant and all Owners of any portion of the Entire
Premises.

8. Rescission; Amendment. The provisions of this Declaration may be rescinded or
amended in whole or in part only by the joinder of all Owners of all or any portion of the Entire
Premises in such rescission or amendment. No other party or parties in interest shall have the
right to rescind or amend, in whole or in part, this Declaration; nor shall the effectiveness of any
rescission or amendment of this Declaration be dependent on the consent or approval of any
other party or parties in interest.

PHILA 12454656\



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF Declarant has caused this Declaration of Cross Easements to
be executed as of the date and year first above written.

DECLARANT:

TR — SUBURBAN, L.P., a Pennsylvania limited
partnership, by its general partner

BY: TR ~1II, L.LC.

BY: &%ﬂhw.{ .

Anthony M. Rufo/Member

PHILA 2454656\



~~ COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

§8.

COUNTY OF Mosamer {

* On the Q\A__fm‘day of )qu (. ( , 2006, before me, the subscriber, a Notary =~ -~~~

Public foy the Commonwealth of Pennsylvama resxdmg in the County aforesaid, personally
appearedho‘(f,\gy{ l[\ O, who acknowledged himself/herself to be the managing member of
TR - III, LLC, as general partner of TR — Suburban, L.P., a Pennsylvania limited partnership,
and that he/she as such Weiw frer , being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes therein contamed by signing his/her name on behalf of said
partnership,

Witness my hand and notarial seal the day and year aforesaid.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
_COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
Viclet A Summa, Notary Pubic -
Conshchocken Baro, Moriigamery County
My Cornmission Exgiires Nov, 8, 2007 - |

Mearmbar, Pannsyivania Associstion Of Notaries

PHILATRZ4 54656\



JOINDER

This Joinder of Susquehanna/Patriot Bank, Mortgagee, for Lot C, is an acknowledgement that
their encumbrance will be subordinate to this Easement.

Susquehanna/Patriot Bank
By /@'Afk}) @%‘JP 413 ow
Jaggek B. Erb, Vice President Date

PHILA1\2454656\]



ALL THAT CERTAIN ot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Premises ‘C’, Situate in the Borough
of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E.
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised
October 26, 2005, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of EIm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side

. of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 280.00 feet to a2 common .

corner with Lot 14 marked by a spike to be set, thence from said point of beginning .
leaving the northerly side of Elm Street and along a common line with Lot 14 North 05
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 200.00 feet to a point marked by an iron pin to be
set along the southern side of Hector Street (50.00 feet wide) a common corner with Lot
13, thence along the southern side of Hector Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00
seconds East 180.00 feet to a point at the intersection with the norther]y side of Elm
Street, thence along the northerly side of Elm Street the following fougcourses (1) South -
05 degrees 11 minutes 00 seconds East 90.53 feet to a point, (2) South 84 degrees 49

‘minutes 38 seconds West 0.50 feet to a point, (3) along the arc of circle curving to the

right with a radius of 110.00 feet and an arc length 172.38 feet to0 a pomtgr ' South 84
degrees 53 minutes 31 seconds West 70.00 feet to the first mentioned point and place of
beginning,

CONTAINING 33,455 SF (0.7680 acres) of land more or less.

'BEING Parcel #05-00-05904-00-4.

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of
Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E.
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated March 8, 2004, last revised

030231.DPC
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October 26, 2005, and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book 25 page
276, as follows, to wit;

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide), and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166,36 feet to a common
corner with Lot 15, thence from said point of beginning leaving the northerly side of Elm
Street and along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West 100.00 feet to 2 common corner of Lots 15, 8 and 9, thence along a common line
with Lots 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 113.64 feet
to a common corner with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premises C, thence along
said line South 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00 feet to a point along the
northerly side of Elm Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along said line South 85
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 113.64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of
beginning.

CONTAINING 11,364 SF (0.2609 acres) of land more or less.

BEING Parcel #05-00-05900-00-8.

~
~

BEING as to part, the same premises which Edward A. Comer and Elaine K. Comer, his
wife by Deed dated 6/10/1999 and recorded 7/19/1999 in the County of Montgomery in
Deed Book 5279 page 1803, conveyed unto TR-Suburban, L. P a Pennsylvania limited
pmrsmp, in fee. -

03023LDPC
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EXHIBIT “C”

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the buildings and
improvements thereon erected, said lot being Lot 14, Situate in the Borough of
Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
bounded and described according to a plan titled Record Plan - 401, 425 & 440 E.
Hector Street by Momenee and Associates, Inc., dated-March 8, 2004, last revised
October 26, 2005, and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book 25 page
276, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point, said point being located the following course and distance from
an iron pin to be set at the intersection of the easterly side of Cherry Street, (50.00 feet
wide}, and the northerly side of Elm Street, (50.00 feet wide), (1) along the northerly side
of Elm Street North 85 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 166.36 feet to a common
comer with Lot 15, thence from said point of beginning leaving the northerly side of Elm
Street and along a common line with Lot 15 North 05 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West 100.00 feet 10 a common corner of Lots 13, 8 and 9, thence along a common line
with Lots 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 North 85 degrees 00 minutes' 00 seconds East 113.64 feet
to a common comer with Lot 13 and along a common line with Premises C, thence along
said line South 03 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00 feet to a point along the

~. northerly side of Elm Street marked by a spike to be set, thence along said line South 85
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 113.64 feet to the first mentioned point and place of
beginning. ©

A

| CONTAINING 11.364 SF (0.2609 acres) of land more or less.

"BEING Parcel #05-00-05900-00-8.

BEING as to part, the same premises which Edward A. Comer and Elaine K. Comer, his
wife by Deed dated 6/10/1999 and recorded 7/19/1999 in the County of Montgomery in

- Deed Book 5279 page 1803, conveved unto TR-Suburban, L.P., a Pennsylvania limited
partiership, in fee.
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BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD OF CONSHOHOCKEN

IN RE: APPLICATION OF TR-SUBURBAN, LP.

REGARDING

424 EAST EIM STREET

DECISION OF THE BOARD

I History of the Case:

By application dated November 21, 2005, the Applicant is seeking zoning relief
from the Zoning Hearing Board (the "Board"), in the nature of a special exception (the "Special
Exception") from Section 7.3.B.1 to the Conshohocken Borough Zoning Ordinance of 2001
(together with all amendments thereto, the "Zoning Ordinance") for the change of a non-
conforming use of real property (the "Proposed Relief"), as said provision relates to real property
located at 424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken (the "Property"). The Property is presently zoned
Borough Residential -2 ("BR-2"). The Applicant is requesting that it be permitted to convert the
first floor of a building which is a non-conforming contractor office and warehouse area into a
fitness/wellness centér and related offices at the Property (the "Proposed Use").

The Zoning Ordinance permits a non-conforming use to be changed to another‘non-
conforming use "which is equally appropriate or more appropriate” and is "no more detrimental
than the existing non-conforming use, as a special exception by the Zoning Hearing Board." Id.
at Section 7.3.B.1.

A public hearing was held before the Board on the evening of January 9, 2006, at 7:00
pm, prevailing time, at the Borough Hall in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania. At the conclusion of
the hearing, the Board discussed the issue and rendered a decision. Due notice was given for the

public hearing.
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After the conclusion of the hearing, the Board found as follows:

11. Findings of Fact:

1. The Applicant is TR-Suburban, LP, of 424 East Elm Street, Conshohocken. The
Applicant is the owner of the Property. Said Applicant was represented by Car] Weiner, Esquire,
at the hearing.

2. The property involved is 424 East Elm Street in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania,
The Property is zoned BR-2 and is a non-conforming commercial office and warehouse in a
residential area.

3. The Applicant, through its counsel, testified that it wished to convert the first
floor from warehouse énd office space to a fitness studio/wellness center and office area.

4. Mike Rufo, representative of the Applicant testified that it intended to convert
area that had been office space and warehouse into a “wellness center” which would consist of a
Yoga and Pilates fitness studio area, as well as offices for a dietician and massage therapist
which would be affiliated with the wellness center. A nurse practitioner would also use the
office area.

5. A proposed change in non-conforming use requires Board approval that the
proposed change must be "equally appropriate or more appropriate” for, and no more detrimental
10, the neighborhood. See Zoning Ordinance Section 7.3.B.

6. The Board asked numerous questions of the Applicant regarding the hours of
operation, which the Applicant noted would be 6:30am until 10:00pm Monday through Saturday,
as well as the size of the proposed classes, which would be 25-27 at i)eak times when classes
were being taught. The Applicant also testified that no dumbbells or active workout equipment
would be at the site.

7. The Board also asked about the availability of parking at the site, as the Proposed

Use would appear to require a minimum of 55 parking spaces under the Zoning Ordinance. The

4019595 2



Applicant testified that the plans for the Proposed Use included providing 56 parking spaces over
two adjoining lots. The Applicant agreed to enter into a cross-easement with the adjoining
property (also presently owned by the Applicant) to preserve the right to use of the parking
spaces in perpetuity.

8. The Applicant's counsel argued that the Proposed Use would be no more intrusive
and equally appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood than the present use, and would likely
not cause any significant change or impact to the surrounding community.

9. No one testified for or against the Application.

10,  The Board finds that the matter was properly advertised pursuant to the Zoning
Ordinance and the Pennsylvania Municipal Planning Code ("MPC").

II.  Discussion:

The Applicant seeks the Special Exception in order to permit the Proposed Use pursuant
to Section 7.3.B to allow the change in non-conforming use of the first floor of the building at
the Property from office and warehouse to wellness center and related offices. See Zoning
Ordinance Sections 7.3.B.

Section 7.3.B of the Zoning Ordinance permits a non-conforming use to be changed to
another non-conforming use as a special exception by the Zoning Hearing Board when such non-
conforming use is "cqually appropriate or more appropriate to the district in which the property
is located, and is no more detrimental than the existing non-conforming use." Id. Non-
conforming uses are an anomaly in zoning law, as they permit a property owner rights that all
others in the neighborhood are not permitted. This requires the Board to carefully and
deliberately balance the competing interests of a property owner whose use rights pre-dates
changes in the Zoning Ordinance with the interests of the rest of the community. Any change in
non-conforming use must be equally as appropriate or more appropriate to the surrounding

neighborhood in order to gain approval. See Zoning Ordinance at 7.3.B.

4019595 3



The Board has reviewed the Proposed Relief carefully in connection with the
requirements of Sections 7.3.B as well as the MPC standards for granting the Proposed Relief.
See MPC, at 53 P.S. §10910.2. The Board has been convinced that the Proposed Use, though
still non-conforming, is equally appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood as the presently
permitted use. Further, the Board is also persuaded by the testimony offered from the Applicant
that the Proposed Relief will not cause a major increase in the number of cars seeking on-street
parking, as it is generally small classes or one on one sessions, with parking (provided a cross
easement is in place) that exceeds the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. As aresult, the
Board is willing to approve the Proposed Relief subject to the requirement that the Applicant
enter into a cross easement which permanently grants access to the parking adjacent to the
Property so that at no point there are less than 56 parking spaces available for use by the
Proposed Use (the “Condition™). Such Condition is required to be in place prior to the opening
of the Proposed Use, and must remain in place at all times in order for the Proposed Use to
continue at the site.

Therefore, the Board finds the Application meets the requirements of Zoning Ordinance
Section 7.3.B that the Proposed Use is no less appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood.
See id. As a result, the Board, upon thorough and deliberate review of the materials submitted
and testimony offered, has determined that the Proposed Relief is proper, and hereby grants a the
Special Exception pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 7.3.B subject to the Condition.

V. Conclusions of Law:

1. The matter was properly presented before the Board.
2. The matter was properly advertised and the hearing both timely and appropriately

convened in accordance with the provisions of both the Zoning Ordinance and the MPC.
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3. The Zoning Ordinance and the MPC both give the Board the necessary discretion
to determine whether or not to grant the Proposed Relief as well as to qualify such grant of

Proposed Relief subject to the Condition.

4019565 5



ORDER
The Board grants the Applicant's request for the Proposed Relief from Zoning Ordinance
Sections 7.3.B to accommodate a change in non-conforming use for the first floor of the
building. Such relief is granted subject to both the Condition and to the Applicant maintaining
the Proposed Use in conformity with the information proﬁdeci to the Board and all other

regulations of the Borough.’

CONSHOHOCKEN ZONING HEARING BOARD

%ﬁfa’/ YloiToncdtt
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:. /'

i,

! Board member Vivian Angelucci was not present at the Hearing and did not vote on this matter.
4019595 6



BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Robert Stokley, Member

Anita Barton, Member

Ojﬁce (thhe BOI’OU((][) Manager James Griffin, Member

Jane Flanagan, Member
Karen Tutino, Member

Zoning Administration

Yaniv Aronson, Mayor

Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

ZONING NOTICE
July 19th, 2021, ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING TO OCCUR VIA REMOTE MEANS

ZONING HEARING Z-2021-13

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will conduct a public hearing
on July 19th, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. prevailing time via remote means. The public is encouraged to participate as
set forth below.

This meeting will be held using a Go-To-Meeting Platform. To the extent possible, members of
Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board and Borough staff/professionals will participate via both video and
audio. (INSTRUCTIONS ON SECOND PAGE)

At this time, the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will hear testimony and accept evidence on the
following request.

PETITIONER: Millennium Waterfront Assoc., II, LP
2701 Renaissance Blvd. - 4t Fl. - King of Prussia, PA 19406

PREMISES INVOLVED: 200 Block Washington St, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Specially Planned District 2

OWNER OF RECORD: Same as Above

The applicant is seeking an extension of relief originally granted by the Zoning Hearing Board in 2014 and
2015 from §27-1509.2; -1504.D.5; -1705; -1503; -1505.B.2; and -1504.F.2 in connection with a proposed
commercial development.

Persons who wish to become parties to the application must notify the Borough of their intent to ask for
party status at least five (5) days prior to the scheduled hearing by emailing the attached entry of
appearance form to zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Said persons must be available to participate in the
zoning hearing on the scheduled date and time. It is noted that submitting the attached entry of appearance
form does not guarantee that you will be granted party status. The Zoning Hearing Board decides who
may participate in the hearing before it as a party, subject to Section 908(3) of the Municipalities Planning
Code (MPC). The MPC permits party status to any person “affected” by the application. Having taxpayer
status alone is not enough to claim party status; however, a person whose property or business abuts the
property that is the subject of the appeal is affected and should qualify as a party. Ultimately, the ZHB
makes the party status determination after reviewing the request.

Thank you,
Zoning Hearing Board

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Robert Stokley, Member

Anita Barton, Member

Ojﬁce (thhe BOI’OUgb Manager James Griffin, Member

Jane Flanagan, Member
Karen Tutino, Member
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Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

ZONING HEARING REMOTE SESSION ACCESS INSTRUCTIONS
The public is encouraged to participate as follows:

Audio Feed Participation: You may dial-in to access the audio feed of the meeting. All participants (whether
listening or providing comments) must use this method of audio participation, even those using Go-To-
Meeting to access the video feed. To access audio, please use the below number and access code/ password
information.

We ask that you please always keep your phones on mute, unless giving a public comment as set forth in
the Public Comment section below.

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https:/ / global.gotomeeting.com/join/ 972846509

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679

Access Code: 972-846-509

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https:/ / global.gotomeeting.com/install /972846509

If you have already downloaded the Go-To-Meeting application, the link will redirect you to the
application itself. Please follow the instructions.

It is recommended that you download the application in advance of the meeting time. If you attempt to
sign in prior to the start of the meeting, the Go-To-Meeting application will inform you that the meeting
has not started. Please close the application and log back in at the time of the meeting (7:00 PM).

Public Comment: There will be a designated time on the agenda for public comment. Those with public
comment shall state their name and address. Prior to the start of the meeting, you may submit written
comments by e-mailing them to Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Similarly, during the meeting, you may
submit written comments by e-mailing them to Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.

Public comments submitted in this manner will be read by a member of Borough Administration during
the public comment period. Because the actual time of the public comment period is determined by the
pace of the meeting, please submit all comments as soon as possible, whether before or during the meeting.
Written comments shall include the submitting person’s name, address, and property in question.

The Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board thanks you in advance for your cooperation during the remote
meeting. If you encounter problems participating during the meeting, or have questions regarding the
above prior to the meeting, please contact the Borough at zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov



http://www.conshohockenpa.gov/
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/972846509
tel:+18668994679,,972846509
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/972846509
mailto:Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov
mailto:Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov
mailto:zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President
Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN R Sy, e
O_ﬁ(ice qf the Borough Manager James Griffin, Member

Jane Flanagan, Member
Karen Tutino, Member

Zoning Administration ]
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Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

The Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
Entry of Appearance as a Party

I/We

Request to be granted party status in Application Z-2021-13.

Applicant: 200 Blk Wash. St. - Millennium Waterfront Assoc. - Zoning Extension

Please print name:

Please print address:

Please print email:

Please Sign Below:

Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than July 14t 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. - Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:
zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD OF CONSHOHOCKEN
IN RE: APPLICATION OF
MILLENNIUM WATERFRONT ASSOCIATES, LP
REGARDING
200 BLOCK OF WASHINGTON STREET
APPLICATION Z-2014-04; Z-2015-04
DECISION OF THE BOARD

I. HISTORY

On or about November 26, 2018, Millennium Waterfront Associates, LLP (hereinafter
“Applicant”) filed the within request for an extension of zoning relief granted in 2014 and 2015
from the terms of 27-1509.2- Building Bulk, 27-1504.D.5- Orientation of a Garage, 27-1705- Flood
Proofing of Amenities in the Flood Way, 27-1503- Height, 27-1505.B.2- Minimum Building Setback
from a Private or Internal Driveway and 27-1504.F.2- Impervious Coverage of the Conshohocken
Borough Zoning Ordinance of 2001 (together with all amendments thereto, the ‘“Zoning
Ordinance”) for a property located at the 200 Block of Washington Street, Conshohocken,
Pennsylvania (hereinafter called “Subject Property”). Applicant’s request for extension was
submitted prior to the expiration of said relief. Said relief was set to expire on January 30, 2019.
This hearing was continued numerous times based upon agreements of the parties and the COVID-
19 pandemic. After notice was duly given and advertised, a hearing was held on said request using a
Webex platform, pursuant to state law, on June 15, 2020 and continued to July 20, 2020. At the
hearing on July 20, 2020, the following Exhibits were introduced and admitted:

P-9 — Letter dated 6/7/2020

P-10 — Letter dated 7/20/2020

P-11 — Site Plan

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Subject Property is located at the 200 Block of Washington Street,

Conshohocken, Pennsylvania.



2. The Subject Property is owned by Millennium Waterfront Associates, LP.

3. The Applicant is represented by Edmund J. Campbell, Jr., Esquire.

4. Morgan Properties, who owns Millennium II and Millennium III, requested and was
granted party status and was represented by Attorney Matt McHugh, Esquire.

5. The Applicant requests an extension of previously granted zoning relief granted in
2014 and 2015 with regard to the proposed development of the Subject Property.

6. A continuance was granted from the June 15, 2020 Zoning Hearing Board meeting
to July 20, 2020. Applicant was asked to provide sketch plans and a synopsis of the relief requested;
Applicant provided the documents prior to the July 20, 2020 meeting.

7. The Subject Property contains existing buildings called Millennium II and
Millennium I1I.

8. At the time the initial relief was granted by the Zoning Hearing Board, Applicant’s
proposed development, referred to as Millennium IV, proposed to be connected to the two existing
buildings.

9. Since the Applicant no longer controls Millennium II and Millennium III,
Applicant’s proposed development will no longer be connected to those existing buildings.

10. Attorney Campbell described Applicant’s request as an extension of the 2014 and
2015 zoning relief excluding the relief granted under Section 1509.2, which previously allowed the
building to be 540 ft. in length.

II. DISCUSSION

Section 27-613 of the Zoning Ordinance states:

“Unless otherwise specified by the Board, a special exception or variance shall expire if the
applicant fails to obtain any and all permits within six months of the date of authorization
thereof.”



In reviewing Section 613, the Zoning Hearing Board asserts that while zoning relief expires
within six months, the Board also has the power to grant extensions of previously granted relief if
said requests are submitted prior to the expiration of the six month, or subsequent extensions.

The Protestants disagree with this assessment and cite three (3) cases, Chetwynd Associates .
Township of Radnor, 21 Pa.Cmwlth. 493 (1975), Lucia v. Zoning Hearing Board of the Township of Upper St.
Clair, 63 Pa.Cmwlth. 272 (1981), and Ommivest v. Stewartstown Borough Zoning Hearing Board, 163
Pa.Cmwlth. 415 (1994). The Board has reviewed these cases, but does not believe they are
analogous to the request before the Board as explained below. In Chetwynd Associates, the applicant
did not move to extend the six (6) month permitting deadline and the original approval expired in its
entirety. In Lucia, the applicant again did not make a timely request for extension and was instead
challenging the expiration of the conditional use permit on the grounds that the applicable code
section had a written notice of expiration requirement. Finally, in Ommnivest, the Commonwealth
Court determined it was not an abuse of discretion to deny a second application following the
granting of a variance which expired after six (6) months with no attempt to obtain an extension of
relief by the applicant.

The situation before the Board regarding Applicant’s request differs from the fact patterns
of the provided case law. Applicant submitted a request for extension prior to the expiration of the
granted zoning relief, whereas in the provided case law, requests were made after the relief expired.
While a hearing was not held on Applicant’s request until July 2020, the hearing was continued due
to agreements of the parties and the COVID-19 pandemic.

III. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

From the facts presented and pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance, it is the judgment of the
Board that the Applicant shall be granted the requested extension of the previous granted relief for

one (1) year.



ORDER
AND NOW, this 31st day of August 2020, the request of Millennium Waterfront
Associates, LP, seeking an extension of relief previously granted in 2014 and 2015, from Section 27-
27-1504.D.5, 27-1705, 27-1503, 27-1505.B.2, and 27-1504.F.2 of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby
GRANTED the relief is extended for one (1) year.
The Applicant is directed to apply to the Borough Zoning Officer to obtain any appropriate
permits.

CONSHOHOCKEN ZONING HEARING BOARD

Date Personally Delivered:
Richard D. Barton

Or Date emailed: Mark S. Danek
9/3/20

Gregory Scharff

In accordance with :
1) Governor Wolf’s March 6, 2020, proclamation of a disaster emergency under 35 Pa.C.S.
§7301(c); and
2) Governor Wolf’s Stay at Home Order of March 23, 2020; and

I, Alexander Glassman, the Solicitor of the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board, hereby certify
that each member of said Board has read and approved this written opinion, which accurately
reflects the actions and vote by said Board at its July 20, 2020, hearing in this matter. Said Board
members have consented to their signatures to be affixed to this Decision as above.

Alexander M. Glassman

Alexander M. Glassman, Esquire



CAMPBELL ROCCO

LAW LLC
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Edmund J. Campbetl
Direct Dial: (610) 992-5885
Email; ecampbell@campbeliroccoiaw.com

May 21, 2021

VIA U.S. FIRST CLASS MAIL

Borough of Conshohocken
400 Fayette Street

Suite 200

Conshohocken, PA 19428
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades

RE: Millennium Waterfront Associates, L.P
7-2014-04
Z-2015-04

Dear Ms. Myrsiades,

Millennium Waterfront Associates II, LP (“MWA”) is the owner of certain units of the
Millennium Condominium (“Millennium™), and the successor to Washington Street Associates
IV, L.P. Please accept the enclosed Zoning Application as a request on behalf of MWA to

extend the above referenced zoning approvals.

Thank you in advance for your time and attention to his matter.

/ Edrnnd J, Campbatt-r.

EJC/har
ce: Richard Heany (via e-mail)
{00352102:1} 2701 RENAISSANCE BOULEVARD * FOURTIH FLOOR « KING OF PRUSSI.’\, PA 19406

PIIONE AND FAX: (610) 337-5585



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
J%] Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Zoning Application

Applicatiorrzﬂ“%{:}\“\ﬁ
Date Submitted: - < ":}\

N

Application is hereby made for:
D Special Exception Variance

DAppeal of the decision of the zoning officer

Date Received: M5'¢

[:kondi’cional Use approval Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance

Other Request Extension of Zoning Relief

+ §27-1509.2 — Varianca for building bulk

§27-1504.D.5 - Varance for afientation of e parking garage

Section of the Zoning Ordinance from which relief is requested:

§27-1795 - Variance for flooadp g ol ilies it the floodway

+ §27-1503 - Varfance lor bidfding helght

+ §27-1505.B.2 - Vardance for minimum selback from intermal roadways

» §27-1504 F.2 — Variance for impervious coverage

Addpress of the property, which is the subject of the application:

200 Biock of Washington Street Conshohocken, PA 19428

Millennivm Waterfront Associates i LP et al c/fo Edmund J. Campbell, Jr. Esquire

Applicant’s Name:

Address: 2701 Renaissance Boulevard, Fourth Floor, King of Prussia, PA 18406

610.337.5585

Phone Number (daytime):
E-mail Address: ecampbell@campbeliroccolaw.com

Applicant is {check one): Legal Owner‘“;/i: Equitable OwnerD; Tenant

See attached site map.

Property Owner:
Address: 2701 Renaissance Boulevard, Fourth Floor, King of Prussia, PA 19406

Phone Number: ©10-337.5585

E-mail Address: ecampbeli@campbeliroccolaw.com

See attached map. SP-2

Lot Dimensions: Zoning District:




8. Has there been previous zoning relief requested in connection with this Property?
Yes \/ : N()I:l If yes, please describe.

See attached Zoning Hearing Board decision.

9. Please describe the present use of the property including any existing improvements
and the dimensions of any structures on the property.

Commaergcial Condominium

10.  Please describe the propesed use of the property.

Office buildings with parking structure

11.  Please describe proposal and improvements to the property in detail.

See attached Addendum |,



12.  Please describe the reasons the Applicant believes that the requested relief should be
granted.

See attached Addendum II.

13.  If a Variance is being requested, please describe the following: See attached Addenda.

a. The unique characteristics of the property:

b. How the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restricts development of the property:

¢. How the proposal is consistent with the character of the surrounding

neighborhood.

d. Why the requested relief is the minimum required to reasonably use the

property; and why the proposal could not be less than what is proposed.

14.  The following section should be completed if the applicant is contesting the
determination of the zoning officer.
a. Please indicate the section of the zoning ordinance that is the subject of the
zoning officer’s decision (attach any written correspondence relating to the
determination).



b. Please explain in detail the reasons why you disagree with the zoning officer’s
determination.

15.  If the Applicant is requesting any other type of relief, please complete the following
section.

a. Type of relief that is being requested by the applicant, - 57152 - v foruiang s
Extension of relief granted in PZ-2014-04 and 2015-04 + §27-1504.00.5 ~ Variance for orientation of the parking garage
+ §27-1705 - Variance lor Roodproofing of amenities In the Auodway
+§27-1503 -~ Variance for building height
+ §27-1505.8.2 - Varianee for minimum setback from interna{roadways

» §27-1504.F 2 - Variance for impervious coverage

b. Please indicate the section of the Zoning Ordinance related to the relief being
requested.

See above.

c. Please describe in detail the reasons why the requested relief should be granted.

See Addendum |l

16.  If the applicant is being represented by an attorney, please provide the following
information.

At'torney’s Name: Edmund J. Campbell, Jr. Esquire

b. Address: 2701 Renaissance Boulevard, Fourth Floor, King of Prussia, PA 15406

c. Phone Number: 610.337.5585

d. E-mail Address: ecampheli@campbellroccolaw.com




I/ we hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge, all of the above statements contained in
this Zonjng Application afid any papers ot plans submitted with this application to the
Boroygh offCaomghoho are true and correct.

Appligge /7

Millennium Waterfront Associates |l LP et al

Legal Owner

May 2y, 2021

Date/”

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

ol d
As subscribed and sworn to before me this Z / day of

ay 2027

Commonwsealth of Pennsylvania - Notary Seal

Harry A. Reichner, Notary Public
Philadelphia County

My commission expires November 13, 2022
Commission number 1194882

Mamber, Pennsylvania Association of Nolaries

400 Fayette Street, Suitec 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 | www.conshohockenpa.org



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Decision
(For Borough Use Only)
Application Granted L[] Application Denied [
MOTION:
CONDITIONS:

BY ORDER OF THE ZONING HEARING BOARD

Yes No

o 0o oo g
0o o oo .

DATE OF ORDER:

400 Fayette Strect, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 |Phone: (610) 828-1092 [Fax: {610) §28- 0920 pwww.conshohockenpa.org



ADDENDUM I

See attached.



MAYOR
Yartiv Arcnson

BOROUGH COUNCIL
Coleen Leonard, President
Tina Sokotowski, Vice-President

Robert Stokley, Senior Memt
BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN N A
James Griffin, Member
Office of the Borough Manager g;;;:‘f;ija;s;:: pember

Stephanie Cecco
Borough Manager

July 21, 2020

Edmund ]. Campbell, Jr, Esq.
Campbell Rocco Law, LLC

2701 Renaissance Blvd,, 4th Floor
King of Prussia, PA 19406

Re: PZ-2014-04 and 2015-04: 200 Block of Washington Street Conshohocken, PA 19428
Dear Mr. Campbeli,

The Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board at its July 20, 2020 meeting approved an extension of the zoning
relief originally granted in 2014 and 2015 for the referenced project. The following relief was extended for
one (1) year through July 20, 2021:

e §27-1509.2 - Variance for building bulk

e §27-1504.D.5 - Variance for orientation of the parking garage

s §27-1705 - Variance for floodproofing of amenities in the floodway

e §27-1503 - Variance for building height

e §27-1505.B.2 - Variance for minimum setback from internal roadways
o §27-1504.F.2 - Variance for impervious coverage

Zoning relief will expire should any required permits not be obtained within the outlined time period.
Compliance with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations is still required along with all
representations and conditions of the original relief granted.

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact the undersigned.

Sincerely,

NN
Eric P. Johnson, PE

Zoning Officer
PENNONI ASSOCIATES INC,

EPJ/

cc: Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager
Ray Sokolowski, Executive Director of Operations
Michael Peters, Esq., Borough Solicitor
Alex Glassman, Esqg., Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor
Matt McHugh, Esq.
Zoning Hearing Board

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610} 828- 0920] wwv,conshohockenpa.gov



MAYOR

Yaniv Aronsen

ROROUGH COUNCII,
Colleen Leonard, President
Jane Flanagan, Vice President
Robert Stokley, Senior Member

Anita B , Memb
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Tina Sokolowski, Member
Offkce of the Borough Manager Karea Tutino, Member

Stephanie Cecco
Boraugh Manager

ZONING NOTICE

ZONING EXTENSION HEARING PZ-2014-04; Z2-2015-04

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will conduct a public
hearing on Thursday. January 17, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. prevailing time at the Conshohocken Borough
Hall, 400 Fayette Street, Conshohocken, PA. At this time, the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
will hear testimony and aceept evidence on the following request for an extension of zoning relief:

PETITIONER: Millennium Waterfront Associates, LP
¢/o O’Neill Property Group
2701 Renaissance Blvd., 4" Floor
King of Prussia, PA 19406

PREMISES INVOLVED: 200 Block of Washington Street, Behind
225 and 227 Washington Street
Specially Planned 2 Zoning District

OWNER OF RECORD: Same as Petitioner

The Petitioner is requesting an extension of variances granted in 2014 and 2015 from the following
sections of the Conshohocken Zoning Ordinance: 27-1509 B — Building Bulk, 27-1504 D. 5 —
Orientation of a Garage, 27-1705 ~ Flood Proofing of Amenities in the Flood Way, 27-1503 — Height,
27-1505 B. 2 — Minimum Building Setback from a Private or Internal Driveway, and 27-1504 F, 2 —
Impervious Coverage,

The Petitioner proposes to construct an office building, a parking garage, and public amenities along
the Schuylkill River.

Interested parties are invited to participate in the hearing. Anyone requiring special accommaodations to
attend this hearing should contact Conshohocken Borough Administration Office at 610-828-1092 as
soon as possible to make arrangements.

Borough of Conshohocken
Zoning Hearing Board

400 Fayette Street, Suvite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 www.conshohockenpa.gov



CAMPBELL ' ) ROCCO

LAW LLC

fon oy
Edmuad J. Cemphell
Direct Dial; (610) 952.5085
Bmail: ecampbell@canspbeliroceolav.com
November 26, 2018

VIA ELECTRONIC AND FIRST CLASS MAIL

Chtistine Stetler

I West First Avenue
Suite 200

Conshohocken, PA 19428

RE: Millennium Waterfiont Associates, L.P,
7-2014-04
Z-2015-04

Dear Ms. Stetler,
Millennium Waterfront Assooiates, L.P. (“MWA”) is the owner of cottain units of the
Millennium Condominium (“Millennium®), and the successor to Washington Street Associates

IV, L.P. Please accept this letter as a request on behalf of MWA to extend the above
refexenced zoning approvals through December 31, 2019.

‘Thank you in advance for your time and altention to his matter,

dmimd ], Campbell, Jr,

EIClaw

oc; Richard Heany

(00254033:1) 2101 RENAISSANCH BOULGVARD » FOURTH FLOOR » KING OF PRUSSIA, PA 19406
PHONE AND FAX: (610} 337-5585
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Colleen Leonard, President
Jane Flanagan, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN R oo et
James Gelilin, Member

Tina Sokolowski, Memtber
Karen Tutlng, Member

MEMORANDUM
Stephande Cecco
Borough Mamager
Date: December 12, 2018
To: 5. Cecco, B, Rogers, Zoning Hearing Board, Zordng Board Solicitor
From: C. Stetler
Re; 200 Block of Washington Street, Millennium Block A, Millenniwm IV
Request for Extension of Zoning Relief Granted in 2014 and 2015
Request Summary

History of the Site and Current Request:

Zoning relief remains in effect for six (6) months following the Zoning Hearing Board's approval. Petitioners are
vequired to draw permits for their specific project within that time. However, complex projects such as that
proposed on the 200 Block of Washington Street (Millennium IV) often take longer to go through the approval
process and secute project financing. For that reason, Petitioners often request an extension of time to draw
construckion permits for a project.

With regard to the 200 Block of Washington Street, zoning relief was granted in 2014 and 2015, A one (1) year
extension of the relief granted was approved January 30, 2018, This approval will expite it January 2019. A
second extension of relief granted through December 31, 2019 has been requested.

In 2016, an amendment to the height requirement in the Specially Planned - 1 and 2 Zoning Districts was
approved. The amendment permitted a helght in those districts of 230 feet with Conditional Use approval by
Conghohocken Borough Council. In June, 2017, the Developer of the site requested Conditional Use approval for
a height of up to 230 feet. Hearings on the Conditional Use apyplication have been continued since its submission
throtgh October, 15, 2018, at which time the application was withdrawn.

Because zoning relief for the project has not been completed, the project has not proceeded through the Land
Development process. The overall project has not been approved by Borough Council, and therefore no permits
have be secured.

At the present time, it is not known if the Developer will submit a new application for Conditional Use approval
of a height increase for the office building and garage. It should be noted; that garages are not exerpt from the
height requirements of the Speclally Planned - 2 Zoning District, Also, there is now indication if the size of the
building will remain at 617,000 square feet, which is the remaining Floor Area Ratio allowable for Millennium
Block A,
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1.

Pollowing is a description of relief granted in 2014 and 2015 for the proposed project,
Z-2014-04: 200 Washington Street Block A, Decision May 5, 2014
Proposal: The Developer proposed a 300,000 square foot office building with a five (5) story parking garage, and

public amenities including an amphitheater, public garden and improved public access. It should be noted that
the design of the project was a direct result of the needs of the single tenant being sought to occupy the building,

Relief Requested and Granted:

§27-1509.2 Building Bull: Relief was requested to increase the building bulk of the new proposed office building
from 250 feet to 384 feet, and increasing the non-conforming building bulk of 227 Washington Street through
connection to the proposed building, making the building bulk 543.8 feet. Variances were approved on condition
that the connector between the existing building at 227 Washington Street and the new office building be used for
the transient movement of employees only, and not for additional office space or gathering areas. Relief was
approved for the butlding bull of the proposed garage of 274.8 feet

§27-1504 D, 5: Interpretation and in the alternate a variance was requested regarding the proposed orientalion of
the parling garage parallel to the Schuylkill River. The Ordinance does not permit visible parking structures
parallel to the river or between a principal building and the river, Despife arguments that there was intervening
land between the proposed parking gavage and the actual river bank, the Zoning Board granted a variance to
orienting the parking garage parallel to the river, on condition that the structure be concealed in some way other
than wire mesh so that it does not appear lo be a parking structure when viewed from the river side of the
building in the opinion of the Borough's Design Review Committee,

§27-1705: Utilization of the Flood Plain Conservation Districk: Relief was requested from conditional use
requitements for development of amenities in the floodway. All proposed buildings related to the project were
located in the floodway fringe, and no relief was requested from flood proofing requirements. FHowever grading
and amenities to be constructed in conjunction with the project were located in the floodway. Relief was granted
for the following activities in the floodway:

a, Anamphitheater with a plaza, walkway and paved parking areas;
b. Paved walkways, sidewalks, parking arens, plazas, courtyards and meeting areas; and

c. Grading, re-grading, disturbance of earth, rexnoval and depusit of topsoil and construction of retaining
walls,

. §27-1503 Height: Building height is limited to eighty-five (85) feet, and may be increased to 250 feet by conditional

use. The project does not meet the requirements for conditional use approval and therefore a variance was
requested. Relief was granted for a building height not to exceed ninety (30) feet. The need for a variance was due
to slope at the site and the fact that the elevation of the building had not been finalized at that time,

Z-2015-04: 200 Block of Washington Street Block A, Decision September 29, 2015

Praposal; The Developer proposed a 420,000 square foot office building, a gavage of twelve (12} to thirteen (13)

stories. Amenities to be constructed remained the same. It should be noted that the changes to the project were
the result of requests from the single tenant proposed to occupy the building. Also of note was the Borough of

Conshohocken's support for the relief being requested,

Relief Requested and Granted;

§27-1509 2 Building Bulk: The proposed building bulk was 400 lineal feet, which was sixleen (16} feet longer
than the 384 lineal fee approved in 2014, There was no discussion regarding any changes in the bulk of the
garage, which was granted relief in 2014. Note: Garages are not exempt from building bulk requirements.




§27-1503 Height: The proposed height of the building was 135 feet, which was a significant increase (45 feet)
over the five (5) foot increase granted in 2014, Garage height also was increased, and was considered to be
roughly the same as the proposed office building. The variance was granted.

§27-1504 D. 5 Interpretation of the Orientation of the Garage Parallel to the Schuykill River: The parking garage
associated with the project continued to be oriented parallel to the river, There was no change in consideration
of the garage’s orientation or change in the prior approval or condition of approval.

§27-1505 B,2 Minimum Building Setback from a Private or Internal Drive: The distance of the parking garage
from the drive leading to the garage is less than twenty-five (25) feet. The variance was granted.

§37-1504 B. 2, Impervious Coverage: The Developer proposed eighty percent (80%) impervious coverage on the
lot, where seventy percent {70%) is permitted. The variance was granted.

2018 variances approved were granted without conditions.
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Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board

Tuesday, January 30, 2018 ~7:00 p.m,
Conshohocken Borough Hall ~400 Fayette Stteet
Conshohockep, PA 19428

- Pxtension of 2014 and 2015 Zoning Relief Granted for the 200 Block of
Washington Street - Millennium Bloek A

Present: Richard Barton, Chaisman ~ Zonitig Heating Boatd, Board Members: Gregory B,
Scharff, Janis B, Vacea, PE, Marlc S, Danek Hsq,, Russell Cardamone; Zoning Board Solicitors
. Michael P. Clarke, Esq., Alexander Glassman, Esq.; Editund J, Camphell, Jr., Bsg. — Attorney
for the Applicant; Christine M. Stetler, Zoning Officer,

The meeting was called to order by Mr, Richard Barton, Chairman of the Conshohooken Zoning

Hoaring Board. Mr. Barton explained that there was a request to extend the zoning relief granted -

12014 and 2015 fora proposed project on the 200 Block of Washington Street inown as
Millennium Block A, o _

Mr. Edmund I, Camplell, Jr., Attorney for the property owners, described the zoning relief
granted in both 2014 and 2015 which included: building bufk, bullding height, orientation of the
proposed garage, development in the floodway fiinge, development of public amenities in the
floodway, and grading, Conditions related to thie relief pranted were that the garage be
“wsleinned” on the exterior to reduce the appearanse of a parage, that the proposed design be
teviewed and approved by the Borough’s Design Review Commiittee; and thaf the conncctioh
- between the proposed builditig and Millennium I (227 Washington Street) be used for
pedestrian traffic only and not for additional office or meetihg space.

M. Campbell explained that the Developer is seeking to atteact a single tenant for the proposed

project whiclt is a Fortune 50 company. He was not at liberty to identify thie tenant being sought.
The propesed tenant still is evaluating its needs and has narrowed the list of potential sites for its
headquarters. Th‘e selection of a site by the tenant has defayed the implementation of the projeot.
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The public in attendance at the meeting were given the opportanity to ask questions or make
statements regarding the extension request. There were no questions or statements from the
public. '

Russell Cardamone commented thaf this bcveloper hias consistently returned to the Zoning
Hearing Board requesting additional relief to accommodate the proposed project,

Question was raised by the Boatd as to what the gavage would look like. Mr. Campbell
explained that, at present, there is no final design for the garage,

Mz Barton asked when the original relief for the projéct expired. Relief expired as of July 1,
2016.

An extension of relief previously grant was requested until December 3 1, 2018,

MOTION:  THAT THE REQUEST FOR THE EXT ENSION OF RELIEF GRANTED IN
2014 AND 2015 BE GRANTED THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2018. (V! acca/Danelc)

Vacca < yes

Scharff " yes
Danek yes
Cardamone no

Barton " yes

. —————



BEFORE THI ZONING HEARING BOARD OF CONSHOHOCKEN

IN RE: APPLICATION OF
WASHINGTON STREET ASSOCIATES, IV, L.P,

REGARDING

200 BLOCK of WASHINGTON STREET- MILLENIUM BLOCK A

DECISION OF THE-BOARD'

1 History of the Case:

By application aﬁd addendum dated Feb:uéry 26, 2014 and admitted as Exhibit P-
2, (collectively, the *Application™), Washington Street Associates, IV, LP. (the
“Apl;licant“) is seeking zoning relief from the Zoning Hearing Board (the “Board”}, in
the nature of variances (each a “Variance” and collectively, the “Variances™) from the
following sections of the Conshohocken Borough Zoning Ordinance of 2001 (together
with all amendments thereto, the “Zoning Ordinance”): (i) the § 27-1509.2 requirement
that buildings be no more than 250 feet in length or 350 feet in length, provided certain
conditions are satisfied; (ii) the § 27-1504.D.5 requirement that parking structures not be
fronting parallel to the Schuylkill River or be located between the primary structure and
the Schuylkill River; (iif) the § 27-1705 requirement restricting the permissible uses of
property located in the floodway; and (iv) the § 27-1503 requirement that buildings be no
taller than 85 feet in height.! The Variances relate to the Applicant’s land development
plan (the “Project”) for property located on the 200 block of Washington Street,

Conshohocken (collectively, the “Property”). The Applicant is requesting that it be

1 The Applicant originaily also requested relief under Section 27-1511.8 with respect to parking arens;
however, the Borough determined that Section 27-1511.8 applies onfy to residential uses and would be
inapplicable in this case,
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permitted to construct a 300,000 square foot office building in two (2) connected
structures, an associated parking structure and several outdoor amenities (collectively, the
“Proposed Use™).

The Zon{ng Ordinance permits the Board to grant a variance when failure to do so
would “inflict unnecessary hardship” upon an applicant, See id. at § 27-611.1.A.

A public hearing was held before the Board on the evening of Apsil 7, 2014, at
7:30 p.m. prevailing time at the Borough Hall in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania. The initial
hearing was continued, with the continuation heard on May 5, 2014 at 7:30 p.m.
prevailing time at the Borough Hall in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania. At the final
conclusion of the continuation, the Board discussed the remaining issues and rendered a
decision, Due notice was given for the p‘ublic hearing.

After the final conclusion of the hearing, the Board found as follows:
1L Findings of Fact:

1. The Applicant is Washington Street Associates, IV, L.P,, and the
Applicant is also the owner of the Property. The Applicant was represented by Edmond
J. Campbell, Jr., Bsquire (“Campbell”) at the hearing, and its principal witnesses were
Brian O'Neill (“O’Neill”) and Michael Engel, the engineer on the Project (“Engel”).

2. The property involved is the 200 block of Washington Streat
Conghohocken, Pennsylvania. The Property is presently zoned Specially Planned
District-2 (“SP-2").

3. At the initial hearing, the Applicant provided a computerized digital
renderilng of the Project and O*Neill described each of the different models to the Board.

As illustrated by the computerized digital renderings and the testimony of O’Neill, the
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Applicant described the Project as the next sequence in its waterfront development, and
‘indicated that some of its design choices were based upon the needs of a targeted tenant
(the “Tenant™).

4, O’Neiirl stated that if the Tenant were to choose this location for its offices,
it would bring 1,000 jobs to Conshohocken. The Tenant envisioned a space with fewer
floors and more employees on each floor to encourage collaborative work. The Tenant
also sPeciﬁcélly requested a large congregational space to host sﬁceches to all of its
employees, O’Neill indicated that in response to this request, the Applicant was
proposing an outdoor amphitheater that would provide seating for all employees during
these speeches, and would also be open to the public in the evenings. In addition to the
planned amphitheater, the Applicant also proposed to add a public garden and increased
public access to the existing frail system along the riverfront.

5, O’Ncilllnexrt d.escribed the pr.oposed .ofﬁcé buildings themselves,
designated as B-1 and B-2, respectively, on the site plan admitted as Exhibit P-3 (and
detailed in Findings of Fact #s 9 and 10, below), as being constructed of all glass,
including an employee “life center” on the top floor which includes amenities such as an
outdoor garden, gym, a coffef; shop and meeting rooms. B-1 and B-2 are connected via &
glass “connector” and the parking structure is also connected fo the existing M-3
building, as identified on Exhibit P-3, via a second élass “connector” (sach, a
“Conﬁe.ctor," and collectively, the “Connectors™).

6. Campbell next asked O’Neill to confirm that the Proposed Use is suitable
for the area, O’Neill indicated that the Proposed Use was the original plan submitted for

the Property, dating back to 1996 or 1997. Campbell asked O'Neill whether the
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Proposed Use would change or detract from the use of the neighboring property., O’Neill
stated that it would not detract but safeguard the neighboring uses.

7. ‘The Board then posed the following questions to O"Neill:

a) The Chairman of the Board, Richard Barton (the “Chairman”
asked whether the Connectors were structural parts of the buildings. O’Neill responded
that the Connectors would be structural in that people could walk back and forth ﬂuough
the Connectors. O”Neill also indicated that the Connectors would be climate-controlled.

b) Vivian Angelucei (“Angelucci”) next asked whether the
éomectors would just be used as walkways, O’Neill indicated that they were meantto
be winter gardens, such that they may have tables and chairs, but that a tenant could use
the space for seating or a conference room. |

c) Russ Cardamone (“Cardamone”) next asked whether the gray area
depicted on Bxhibit P-3 , would be part of the; proposed buildings. Campbell indicated
that Engel would testify as to the specific dimensions of the buildings.

8. The Chairman than asked for questions from the andience, There were no
questions.

9, At the request of Campbell, Engel,. using a red pen, outlined the
dimensions of the buildings on Exhibit P-3, Engel also cross-hatched the glass Connector
that connects B-1 and B-2 to indicate where it would be located. Exhibit P-3 shows B-1
aﬁd B-2 connected via the proposed glass Connector as well as a second glass Connector
conneoting B-2 and M-3, the existing building,

10.  Engel further téstiﬁed regarding the specific dimensions of M-3. He

indicated that M-3 is approximately 360 feet long, which includes 335 feet in building
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bulk and a bump out, which adds twenty-five (25) additional feet. The proposed
Connector would add an additional 35 feet. B-2, from the glass Connector to the
Schuylkill River (the “River”), Engel indicated, is 120 feet. The Connector between B-2
and M-3 is an additional fifty (50) feet in length. Engel testified that the proposed B-1
would be 213 feet in length. Bngel concluded the dimensional discussion by indicating
that if the proposed B-1 and B-2 were constructed with the glass Connectors, the total
length would be 520 feet. B-1 through B-2 constitutes 389.4 feet, approximately. Engel
added these calculations to Exhibit P-3, |

11.  Asaresult of these calculations, Campbell indicated that the Applicant
was seeking a variance from Section 1509.2 of the Code relating to building bulk.
Section 1509.2 limits building bulk in the 8P-2 district fo 250 feet, and by meeting
certain conditions, 350 feet. Both B-1 and B-2, however, would exceed 350 feet in
length, The conditions required to permit 350 feet in building length include: (1) a
change in elevations every fifty (50) feet, (2) five percent (5%) of open space added for
every fifty (50) feet of increased building length, and (3) no visible parking structure that
is Jfﬁmting parallel to the River and is located between a primary structure and the River.

a) As for the first condition fo exceed 250 feet in building length, Engel

testified that the fagade on the existing M-3 will not change as the building already exists.

He did indicate, howevet, that all new construction from the end of M-3 to the end of B-2
would include changes in the atchitectural fagade in excess of every fifty (50) feet,
including a slight arc to the building frontage. |

b) The second requirement to exceed 250 feet in building length is that

five percent (5%) open space be added for each additional fifty (50) feet in building
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length. Engel indicated that there wonld be two (2) open space components of the
Proposed Use. The open space would include the 100 foot strip of open space along the
River that is owned by the Borough, as well as the proposed amphitheater which would
also be available to the public. When the actual land development plans are prepared,
Engel indicated, he would be able to quantify the amount of additional open space, but he
was confident that it exceeds the requisite five percent (3%).
) With respect to the conditions regarding the parking structure,

Engel stated that the proposed parking structure would not be located between any
buildings on the Property and the River. Ca.mpbéﬁ asked Enge! whether the terms
“fronting,” “paraliel;” or “visible” were defined in the Code. Engel indicated that they
were not. Campbell also asked Engel to address the undulating natwe of the River, and
Engel indicated that the River has au arc and a structure could only be paraile] to the
River if the stracture matched the exact arc of the River. The parking structure, Engel
stated, does not front the River because an adjacent property owner has land located
between the location of the proposed parking structure and the River, and the 100 foot
strip of tand owned by the Borough would also be between the parking structure and the
River, Engel stated that in his opinion, the conditjons for the extension of building length
fo 350 feet were met.

12, Campbell next asked Engel to testify with respect to uses in the floodway.
Engel confirmed that the Property is Jocated in the floodplain of the River. Engel defined
the floodplain as the combination of the floodway and the floodway fiinge. He indicated
that all of the proposed buildings would be located in the ﬂood;vay fringe and that some

amenities would be located in the floodway. Engel stated that development of the
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Property is limited in that the Property is bordered by the River and the railroad tracks.
Due to the fact that the Property is located within the floodplain, all habitable space must
be located at least eighteen (18) inches above the flood height, and therefore, Engel
indicated, parking was the most logical use of the first floor of the structures on the site.
Engel also testified that the construction in the floodplain would be consistent with the
standards set by the Army Corps of Engineers.

13.  Campbell indicated he had additional questions for Engel regarding
parking, Campbell asked about the number of parking decks in the proposed parking
structure. Engel stated there would be five (5) parking decks above the surface parking
level. Engel indicated that each parking level would be about twelve (12) feet high.
Engel algo stated that it was too early in the planning process to indicate the exact numbet
of parking spaces fo be provided, but he anticipates about 900 parking spaces in the
structure.

14, Campbell raised the point that in addition to the conditions imposed by
Section 27-1509.C of the Code with respect to parking sttucture;s, the Applicant is also
sceking relief from restrictions on parking structures with respect to construction in the
floodway nnder Section 27-1705 of the Code,  Section 27-1705 identifies certain uses
permissible in the floodway by conditional use. However, Campbell stated that on the
advice of the Borongh, conditional use in the floodway required the prior approval of the
Pennsylvania bcpartment of Environmental Protection (“DEP”) as well as the Borough
Engineet. Engel testified, however, that DEP approval was contingent upon municipal
approval becanse the key storm water permit needed in order to get approval from the

Borough would be a permit from the DEP. Due to the conflicting requirements, the
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Applicant, Campbell summarized, was requesting the Variance from the conditional use
requirements of Section 27-1705. Campbell also reviewed the requested uses in the
floodway with Engel, including: an amphitheater, plaza, walkway, paved parking area,
trash and utility facilities, sewer facilities, storm water facilities, sidewalks, courtyards
and meeting areas, grading and regarding of land, disturbance of earth, removal of
topsoil, construction of retaining walls, deposit of topsoil, parking facilities and
structures, utility transmission lines, fencing during construction,

15.  Campbell next asked Engel to address the requested height variance. The
maximum height permitted under Section 27-1503 is eighty-five (85) feet. The Applicant
requested a Variance in the amount of five (5) fest becanse the height of B-1 and B-2 had
not yet been determined dus to the slope on the site.

16.  Campbell concluded Engel’s testimony by posing questions similar to
those posed to O'Neill. Engel indicated that the Property was suitable for the Proposed
Use and that it was a permissible use. Engel afso confirmed that public facilitics such as

“water and sewer are available to the site. Engel also stated that the Applicant had agreed
to finance a portion of tLe Borough's global traffic study, a-summary of which was
admitted as Exhibit P-6. The global traffic study anticipates additional office space on
the Property of about 225,000 square feet, and indicates that the proposed Project was
consistent with the global fraffic study. ‘

17.  The Chairman then asked Zoning Officer Christine Stetler (“Stetler”)
when the Project would be before the Planhing Commission, Stetler indicated that there
has been no submission to the Planning Commission, so May or Jube would be earliest

possible timing before the Planning Commission. The Chairman also posed a technical
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question to Engel asking Engel to delineate the floodway boundary on Exhibit P-3, and
Engel confirmed that none of the proposed buildings would be constructed in the
floodway. The Chainman then opened the hearing up to questions from the remainder of
the Board:

a) Cardamone asked whether any structute could be built between the
proposed parking structure and the River, Engel responded that an existing parking lot
was located along the River on the adjacent property owner’s land and that there were
woaods between the two properties. He indicated that buildings would not be built in the
fioodway. Cardamone also asked Engel to confirm that the Applicant’s position was that
ﬁle proposed parking structure was not parallel to the River. Engel confirmed and
indicated that it was separated from the River bji a mature stand of trees, which served as
a natural buffer, Engel also confirmed that parking on the first level of B and B2 would
permit flood waters to flow through the acea. Cardamone also asked about parking for
M2 and M3. Engel indicated that some existing parking for these buildings would be
removed, but that exact numbers had not been finalized.

b Angelucci asked about the height of the buildings. O’Neill
indicated that they would be less than ninety-five (95) feet. The Chairman indicated that
the request in Exhibit P-2 was for the Variance to permit height to ninety (30) feot,
O’Neill indicated that 90 feet would be sufficient to accommodate the Proposed Use.

¢ Crogory Scbarff (“Scharff”) asked about the scale of the proposed
buildings, with respect to the existing neighboring Londonbury complex. ’Neill

confirmed that the projected height of B-1 and B-2 would be equal to the height of
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Londonbury. Scharff also asked about the height of the proposed parking structure,
which Engel stated would be sixty (60) feet.

| d) Yanis Vacca (“Vacca”) asked to confirm the cumulative length of
. B-1, B-2 and the Connector, which Campbell indicated would be 520 feef and that the
distance from B-1 Connector to B-2 would be 384 feet, Camfabeﬂ also confinmed that
the request for relief is with respect to the length of both buildings on both sides, stating
that the Applicant recognized that if it were to connect B-2 and the Connecor to M-3,
there would be a single building going the length of 520 feet and that the proposed B-1 to
B-2 Connector would be 34 feet in excess of the permissible building bulk. Vacca aiso
raised a procedural question as to whether the Applicant was agking the Board to grant a
variance ffom the Code’s requirement that the Applicant obtain conditional use approval
for the planned construction in the floodway. Campbell indicated that it was the
Applicant’s position that it met the standards of Section 27-1509 for the expansion of
building bulk, but that the Applicant was requesting the Variance due to the hardship
associated with the Property. Campbell reminded the Board that the Code does not
define “visible,” “fronting” or “parallel.” O’Neill added that the proposed parking
structure could not be considered fronting because of the neighboring landowner’s
property, as illustrated by an additional plan of the property, which was marked as -
Exhibit P-7, The Applicant aiso used a Google aerial photo, which was admitted as
Rxhibit P-8, fo illustrate the location of the property line. Stetler confirmed that the
wooded area between the neighbot’s ptoperty and the Property was a remnant of the
Schuylkill Canal and that it constituted preserved opon space. Vacca stated that in her

opinion, the intent of the Code was to avoid having a parking structure visible along the
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River. O’Neill stated that the Applicant was not trying to split hairs, but to adequately
address the requests of the Tenant for the space. O"Neill also commented on the

proposed length of the buildings with reference to the historie factory structures in
Conshohocken that were interconnected via walkways and connectors, which the Project
was designed to imitate. Vacea asked whether it would be possible to rotate the parking
structure ninety degrec-s (90°). Campbell indicated that the rotation would place the
parking structure closer to Washington Street. Vacca also suggested an L-shape, but
O'Neill indicated an L-shape would prevent the grid design of the Project.

e) The Chairman next commented that the B-1 and B-2 Connector
structure would result in 384 feet in building length. He stated the issue becomes that
these buildings, unlike M-2 and M-3 are closer to the River. M-2 and M-3 are 360 feet in
Jength, but Stetler stated that these buildings were gonstructed in 2000, prior to the
current building bulk requirements. Stetler confirmed, however, that building bulk relief
would be necessary in the present case because the request was to expand on what was
originally permitted. The Chairman continued this discussion with reference to the
requested relief from conditional use. The Chairman expressed concern regarding
floodplain issues and overstepping the role of Borough Council. He also stated the Board
would need expert review by the Borough Engineer on technical information.
Specifically, the Chairman cited page 3 of the Applicant’s addendur to the Application,
including items 1 through 10. Campbell indicated that items 1 through 10 include
buildings and reiterated that the Applicant’s plans do not include buildings in the
floodway. The Chairman suggested items in the floodway that require conditional use

approval should have conditional use approval with the benefit of review by the Borough
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Engineer. Engel responded indicating the contradiction that the DEP is requiring zoning -

approval. (’Neill indicated that this issue bas caused a dispute, Nasatir stated thathe
was not aware of this issue and offered to discuss the issue with the Borough Solicitor.
The Chaitman indicated that at a minimum, he would like the Borough Engineer to weigh
in on the improvements in the floodway.

1) Stetler asked whether the public aceess ways to the River would be
recorded so that the Borough is protected in terms of access to the River. Campbell
indicated that the Applicant was agreeable,

18.  The Chairman opened the hearing up to questions from the audience. No
questions were asked. Statler commented that the floor area ratio and impervious
coverage would need to be evaluated with respect to other buildings situated on
Millennium Block A, Campbell indicated that the Applicant had obtained preliminary
review on that topic. The Chairman also asked for statements from the audience. There
were no public statements.
| 19.  The Chairman indic.ated his preference to continue the hearing to aliow the
Borough Bngineer to weigh in on the technicalities of the proposal, Cardamone also
requested that the Applicant provide a plan with the building dimensions af the next
hearing as well as a2 Google map photo showing the trees separating the Property and the
River. O’Neill agreed to provide both. The Chairman also requested that the Borough
Engineer be available at the next hearing, The Board voted to continue the hearing,

20.  The hearing was continued on May 5, 2014, The Applicant submitted

correspondence from both Remington, Vernick and Beach Engineers ("RVB”), the

Borough Engineer, and Engel’s engineering firm, Right Angle Engineering (“RAE”),
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with respect to the floodway issue. Plans for review by the Borough Engineer were
submitted to RVE under cover letter dated April 23, 2014, the plans being admitted as
Continuation Exhibit P-7 and the accompatying cover letter as Continuation Exhibit P-8.
A response letter from RVB regarding the floodplain use review dated April 29, 2014
was admitted as Continuation Exhibit P-8A. The RAFE response letter dated May 3, 2014
accompanying revised plans from RAE was admitted as Continuation Exhibit P-9. The
revised plans submitted with the May 3, 2014 letter, which include the buildin g
dimensions, were separately admitted as Continuation Exhibit P-12. An additional
review letter dated as of May 5, 2014 from RVB was admitted as Confinuation Exhibit P-
10, Campbell also submitted a Google map image of the site, with the proposed
devélopment superimposed, which was admittéd as Continuation Exhibit P-11. Per the
request of the Board, James Watson (“Watson”) of RVB was also present to respond to
questioning.

21, Campbell opened the Applicant’s presentation by reviewing Continuation
Exhibit P-11. Campbell indicated that the Google image showed that the parking
structure was not cleatly visible from the other side of the Schuylkill River through the
foliage. O’Neill also commented that his team had developed a “skin,” including colors
and LED lighting, for the parking structure so that it does not have to look like a parking-
structufc. The Chairman asked about the landscaped area between the development and
the River visibie on Continuation Exhibit P-11. O’Neill indicated that the landscaped
property is not part of the Property and may actually have been dedicated to the Borough

by the neighboring property owner. Campbell added that the fact that the landscaped
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aren is between the Property and the River means that the parking structure does not front
the River.

22.  Insupport of this notion, Campbell cited the language of Section 1504.D.5
with respect to “No lot shail be developed with a parking structure fronting parallel to the
Schuylkill River, nor shall a patking structure be [ocated on any lot area between the
primary structure and the Schuylkill River.” The Chairmen asked the Applicant to claxify
with respect to the “primary structure.” O’Neill indicatcd that the primary structure in
this case was the proposed office buildings, Campbell also cited Section 1509.2.C,
reciting “The lot shall not be developed with a visible parking structure fronting parallel
to the Schuylkill River, nor shall a stand-alone parking structure be located in any lot area
between the primary structute and the Schuylkill River,” Campbell indicated that the
Applicant believed the Project complied with Section 1509.2,C because the lot is
separated from the River by the neighboring property and the structure would be
camouflaged. Stetler commented that the camouflage should be a condition to any relief
granted with respect to the parking structure. Cardamone commented his belief that the
parking structure would still be fronting and parallel to the River. Angelucci voicéd
agreement with Cardaméne’s comments. O’Neill responded by comparing the Property
to 2 beach house in that a beach house lacated a block from the beach would not be
considered beach front. Vacca asked how many stories were intended for the parking
structure. O'Neill indicated there would be five (5) stories, and that the structure would
be camouflaged with wire mesh and LED lighting. Vacca voiced her concern that the
LED lighting would make the structure more visible, O’Neill indicated that the lights

hj.gb_light the screen, not the garage and resulf in a luminescent glow on the screen,
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Vacca asked whether the LED screen would be on at all times. O'Neill indicated that
during the day, light would reflect from the screen disguising the parking structure and
then at night, the lights would help disguise the interior lights of the parking structure,

23 The Chairman requested questions from the public on the parking
structure, and there were no questions, O'Neill provided an image of the LED lighting
from the internet. The image wés admitted as Continuation Exhibit P-13. Vacca asked if
the planned wire mesh system would be similar to the Murano patking sfructure in
downtown Philadelphia. O’Neill indicated the proposed would be similar, but that
technology had improved and described it as a metal wall with holes in it which is lit up
at night so that the parking structure profile does not show from the parking structure
lights. O’Neill also provided a picture of the utility building at the University of
Pennsylvania, which was admitted as Continuation Bxhibit P-14, to show the metal
screening which is similarly lit up at night. O’Neill indicated his intention to use more
color than used in the University of Pennsylvahia project.

24.  Campbell stated that the Applicant was also seeking relief from the
building bulk requirements. Referring to Continuation Exhibit P-12, Campbell indicated
that the distance from the Washington Street side of M-3 all the way to the front of B-2
would be approximately 520 feet. M-3, itself, is 334.3 feet and the Connector between
M-3 and B-2 would result in 62.1 feet, while the Connector to the front of B-2 would be
138.4 feet, for a total of 543.8 feet. The Chairman asked specificaily about the function
of the 62.1 feet Connector beﬁecn M-3.and B-2. O’Neil described the area as a
connection between the two (2) office buildings in similar style to the historic factories in

Conshohocken. Campbell added that the ground floors of B-1, B-2 and M-3 would be
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parking, so there would be connectivity there. O'Neill confirmed that the Connector
would be a true structural element and would permit someone to walk the full 543.8 feef,
and that it would be designed as a winter garden with a glass exterior. Campbell also
referenced Continuation Exhibit P-12 to highlight the subtle arc on the front facade of the
ﬂuilding, which _had been designed to echo the proposed amphitheater,

25.  The Chairman opened the discussion up to questions from the Board and
Stetler:

a) Cardamone asked whether a pedestrian bridge had been
considered, rather than the Connector w}'lich would include meeting and office space.
O’Neill indicated that the reason a bridge would not work is that the Tenant needs the
ability to collaborate, but that the Applicant would be willing to narrow the Connector so
that it was move like a bridge than additional meeting space.

b) ‘Vacca asked whether the existing Londonbury complex would
block the building bulk view of the Property from the Schuylkill Exprc;.ssway. O’'Neill
indicat.é,d that only Londonbury would be visible from the Expressway, He added that
the Applicant’s intent was to replicate the historic buildings in Conshohocken. Vacca
also asked about the fagade of M-3. O’Neill indicated that the existing fagade is red
brick. O’Neill confirmed that B-1 and B-2 would not be red brick, but that there would
be red brick in the courtyard of the new buildings,

c) The Chairman asked whether relief would also be necessary for
building bulk with respect to the proposed parking structure. Campbell indicated that the
tength of the parking structure was proposed to be 274.8 feet, which would require a

variance, O'Neill indicated the size of the parking structure was directly related to the
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Proposed Use, and that the parking structure includes thirty to fifty (30-50) spaces for the
public trail system on the Property.

d) Stetler asked whether the public parking would accommodate the
parking being eliminated between the two Millennium buitdings. Campbell indicated
" that some parking v.vould be lost with the Project, but that parking would still conform to
the Code. O’Neill indicated that the Tenant requested ﬁsitor parking at each enfrance.
Stetler also asked about the existing public access to the River between the Millennium
buildings. Campbell indicated that the public access between M-2 and M-3 is somewhat
limited due to the slope there. Campbell stated public access points exist from
Washington Street along Millennium 2 to & sidewalk that goes down to the River, as well
as a sidewalk along Ash Street and a sidewalk along Poplar, O’Neill added that there
would be a bridge and an archway between the parking garage and the buildings that
would be visible from Washingion Street.

96,  The Chairman requested questions from the public with respect to the
requested building bulk relief. There ﬁere no questions.

27.  Next, Campbell highlighted the boundary lines of the floodplain and the
floodway on Continuation Exhibit P-12. Campbell stated that since the original hearing,
the relief requested for construction in the floodway had MWed from ten (10)
categories of use to two (2). Pointing to the comments on Continuation Exhibit P-10,
Campbell asked if Watson could testify with respect to his review. Watson stated that the
Borough Engineer’s comments were adeguately addressed in the revised plans received.
in response to its letter dated April 29, 2014 (Continuation Exhibit P-8A). Watson stated

that some requested items would be available at the time of the National Polhutant
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Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) application. Campbel! clarified that some of the
changes requested by the Engineer could not be completed until complete site
engineering had taken place. The Board had no questions for Watson. Campbell
reiterated that the original request for construction in the floodway had changed,
specifically that no portion of the parling structure is proposed in the floodway, but
strictly in the floodplain, Campbell confirmed that the relief being requested for
construction in the floodway was lisnited to grading and the disturbance of earth relating
to the walkway a.t'ld one half of one parking space along Poplar Street. The Chairman
asked and Campbelf confirmed that the amphitheater, plaza, paved watkways, sidewalks
and parking areas, grading and regarding of land were still being proposed in the |
floodway.

28,  The Chairman asked for questions from the public regarding construction
in the floodway:

a) Yane Garbacz (“Garbacz”), 149 Sutcliffe Lane, asked how much of
the floodway would be paved, Campbeil indicated that a small sidewalk is proposed in
the public plaza,

b) Stetler also commented, asking whether the prading and regarding
would raise the fiood elevation. Campbell stated that it would not. Stetler indicated the
Borough's preference to have Flood Elevation Certifications on file at the Borough, and
not just with the Borough Engineer, Stetler also asked for hiydrology reporting which

. showed the Project, as proposed, would comply with the FEMA flood insurance program.

Campbell agreed.
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. 29.  Campbell briefly addressed the Applicant's requested retief with respect to
height. He stated that the request for relief was due to the fact that the precise
architecture of B-1 and B-2 was not yet complete, and that the slopes on the Property
may impact the final height of the proposed buildings. There were no questions from the
public or the Board regarding the height relief request.

30,  The Chairman asked for statements from the public:

a) Garbacz voiced concerns over traffic congestion and
em:lronmental risks. She stressed the importancé of the Floodplain Conservation District
to the region, and the fact that the Borough does not have ancmergéncy management
plan in place to relocate flood victims. She also cited contaminated soil along the
brownfield sites of the Conshohocken riverfront, Carbacy stated that the requested relief
was to please an incoming Tenant, but at the expense of the residents of Conshohocken.
She also referenced the capacity of the Conshohocken Waste Water Treatment Plant,

b) There were no other statements from the public and O'Neill
indicated he wished to respond. O'Neill stated that the Conshohocken sewer facility is
operating at fifty percent (50%) of capacity cuuenﬁy, Secondly., he indicated that the
properties the Applicant purchased had zero access to the River and the Applicant
introduced the 100 foot strip fo create public access. Lastly, O’Neill stated that the
Property has five (5) points of entry o the riverfront.

31, The Chairman asked for questions from the Board:
a) Cardamone asked what the elevations would look like, specifically
with respect to the Connector on the rear side of the proposed buildings, and asked

whether the rear Connector could be revised in conformity with the front Connector, as
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more of arbridge than a meeting space. O'Neill indicated that the rear Connector would
actually be smaller in size. ONeill agreed that the Connector could be just a connection
space, although he indicated it would need to be fourteen (14) feet wide.

b) Vacca asked whether the riverside of the parking structure could be
opaque, not with the wire mesh, but opaque 5o as it is not visible as a parking stmbﬁ:re.
O’Neill indicated this could be done. Vacca indicated her preference that an opaque
parking structure would be more jn line with the Code in that the ordinance prohibits a
parking structure parallel to the River. The Chairman suggested that the Borough Design
Review Committee (“DRC") review the plans to make the parking structure opaque and
that any relief granted be contingent upon DRC approval, which js ultimately subject to
the approval of Borough Council. Stetler also commented that the Project will be
required to go before the DRC because it is to be located on the Waterfmnt. The
Chairman asked if the parking structure could be rotated such that it would be narrower
along the River. O’Neill indicated that there are tenants in buildings M-2 and M-3, and
they would be blocked if the parking structure was rotated. He also added that the
rotation would encroach on existing parking.

| 32,  Stephen Forster (“Porster”), a consultant for the Applicant, presented an
image showing the rear of the proposed building with the architectural center which was
admitted as Continuation Exhibit P-15. A second image, admitted as Continuation
Exhibit P-16, showed the same building with view from the riverside.
33, © The Board finds that the matfer was propetly advertised pursuant to the

Zoning Ordinance and the Permsylvania Municipal Planning Code (“MPC”).

20
4810650



1. Discussion

As detailed above, the Proposed Relief that the Applicant wishes to obtain is
comprised of the Variances in order to permit the development of the Project, all in
accordance with the plans submitted by the Applicant and the testimony offered at the
hearing, The Proposed Relief would (i) permit the Project to include buildings in excess
of 350 feet in length; tii) construct a visible parking structure fronting parallel to the
Schuylkill River; (iii) utilize portions of the Property in the floodway without first
obtaining conditional use approval; and (iv) construet buildings in excess of the eighty-
five (85) feet height limit. The Applicant believes that the requested Variances constitute
the nﬁ:ﬁmal‘relief necessary to complete the Project.

Section 27-611 of the Zoning Ordinance permits the Board to grant & variance
when the “Zoning Ordinance inflicts unnecessary hardship upon the Applicant.” See id.
at 27-611(1)A). Unnecessaty hardship is to be determined to be present when the Board
determines, as applicable, that:

a) there are uniqut*; physical circumstances or conditions to the propetty;

b) there is no possibility that the property can be developed in strict

conformity with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and thus the Variance is

necessary to enable reasonable use of the property;

c) the unnecessary hardship has not been create;d by the Applicant,

d) the granting of the Variance, if authorized, would not alter the ¢ssential

character of the neighborhood; and
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| €) the graoting of the Variance, if authorized will represent the minimum
variance to afford the relief and represent the least modification possible to the
regulation in issue.
Id. at § 27-611. See also MPC, at 53 P.S. §10910.2.
Some of the requested Variances, including from Section 27-1503, in patticular,
are of a dimensional nature. In such situations, the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania has
found, “the owner is asking only for a reasonable adjustment of the zoning regulations in

order to utilize the property in a manner consistent with the applicable regulations.” Seg

Hertzberg v. Zoning Board of Adjustment of City of Pittsburgh, 721 A.2d 43, 47 (Pa.
1998), Thus, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court has stated, the level “of proof required to
establish unnecessary hardship is indeed lesser.” See id. at 48.

The Board has reviewed the Proposed Relief carefully in connection with the
requirements of Section 27-611 as well as the MPC standards for granting the Proposed
Relief. See MPC, at 53 P.8. §10910.2.

The Board has noted the heavy volume of testimony and exhibits entered into
evidence on this matter.

With respect to the Variance requested under Section 27-1509.2 in connection
with building bulk, the Board considered the use of the proposed Connector space
between buildings M-3 and B-2 and of the Connector between buildings B-1 and B-2,
With respect to the new construction buildings, B-1 and B-2, the proposal would result in
a total building bulk of 384 feet or thirty-four (34) feet in excess of the 350 permissible
feet in building length. The Board considered the thirty-four (34) feet to be a de minimus

variance, and unanimously agreed to grant the Variance. With respect to the larger
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Connector between the existing building, M-3 and the new building, B-2, the Board

expressed the intent that the Connector be as narrow as possible and used solely as a

walkway. The Board unanimously agreed to grant the Variance with respect to the
proposed Connector between buildings M-3 and B-2, on the condition that the area of the
space in that Connector only be used for the transient movement of employees, with no
office space or gathering areas (the “Building Butk Condition”).

The Applicant is also seeking relief related to building bulk with respect to the
proposed parking structure. The proposed parking structure would have a length 0 274.9
feet, which exceeds the 250 foot limit of Section 27-1509.2. The Board, with Cardamone
opposing, agreed to grant the Variance to permit the patking structure to exceed the 250
foot maximum up to a 275 foot length,

With respect to the parking structure, the Applicant also sought a Variance under
Section 1504.D.5 and Section 27-1509.2.C in connection with the prohibition on the
erection of a visible parking structure that is fronting and parallel to the River. The
Board agreed, with Cardamone opposing, fo grant the Variance to permit the parking
structure to be visible, located parallel to and fronting the Schuylkill River, on the
condition that the structure be concealed by some method other than wire mesh such that
the parking structure does not appear to be a parking structure when viewed from the
riverside, in the opinion of the Borough Design Review Commission, which is ultimately
subject to the approval of Borough Council (the “DRC Condition,” and collectively,
together with the Building Bulk Condition, the *Conditions™).

The Board also considered the Applicant’s request for relief with respect to uses

in the floodway. The proposed uses in the floodway include the proposed amphitheater,
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plaza, the paved parking area, paved walkways and other meeting areas, prading and
vegarding of land, disturbance of earth, removal or deposit of topsoil and the construction
of retaining walls, as identified as items 1, 6 and 7 in Exhibit P-2. The Board
‘unanimously agreed to grant the Variance to permit the following uses in the floodway:
(1) an amphitheater,l plaza, walloway, paved parking areas; (6) paved walkways,
sidewalks, parking areas, plaz_as, courtyards, meeting ateas; and (7) grading and
regarding o‘f Jand, disturbance of earth, removal and or deposit of topsoil, construction of
retaining walls,

The Board also considered the Applicant’s request for relief from the building
height requirements of Section 27-1503. The Board noted that the Applicant has
requested an allowance of an additional five (5) feet in building height to accommodate
the slope in the Property, but that no structure would exceed ninety (90) feet in height,
The majority of the Board believes that granting the requestcﬁ Variance is both prudent
and appropriate in relieving an undue hardship upon the Applicant, and further believes
that the dimensional relief requested is a “reasonable adjustment of the zoning regulations
in order to utilize the property in an manner consistent with the applicable regulations” as
required under the Hertzberg decision. See Hertzberg, 721 A.2d at 47, 48. The Board,
with Cardamone oppos;ing, agreed to grant the Variance.

IV. Conclusions of Law

1. The matter was properly presonted before the Board:
2. The matter was properly advertised and the hearings both timely and
appropriately convened in accordance with the provisions of both the Zoning Ordinance

and the MPC.
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3 The Zoning Ordinance and the MPC both give the Board the necessary
discretion to determine whether or not fo grant the Proposed Relief, as well as to subject

same to the Conditions.
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. ORDER
The Board grants the Applicant’s request for the Proposed Relief from the
following Sections of the Zoning Ordinance: 27-1509.2, subject to the Building Bulk
Condition; 27-1504.D subject to the DRC Condition; 27-1705 limited to toms 1,6 and 7
of Bxhibit P-2, respectively; and 27-1503. Such relief is granted subject o the Applicant
maintaining the Proposed Use in conformity with the information provided to the Board

as well as all other regulations of the Borough.
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BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD OF CONSHOHOCKEN

IN RE: APPLICATION OF WASHINGTON STREET ASSOCIATES IV, I.P. AND
MILLENNIUM WATERFRONT ASSOCIATES, L.E.

REGARDING PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE

200 BLOCK OF WASHINGTON STREET- MILLENNIUM BLOCK A

DECISION OF THE BOARD

I HISTORY

On or about June 8§, 2015; Washington Street Associates IV, L.P. and Millennium
‘Waterfront Associates, L.P., (hereinafier called “Appellants™), filed the within Appeal for
five variances and/or interpretations of the terms of Sections 27-1509.2, 27-1504(D), 27-
1503, 27-1505(B)(2) and 27-1504(F) of the Conshohocken Borough Zoning Ordinance of
2001 (together with all amendments thereto, the “Zoning Ordinance”), seeking permission to
construct a 420,000 square foot office building which is 400 lineal feet, 135 feet high, having
impervious coverage of 80% and baving internal setbacks between the building and curb of
less than 25 feet at the property located at the 200 Block of Washington Street,
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania (hereinafier called “Subject Property™). The applicant a]so-
further proposes arientation of a parking structure fronting parallel to the Schuylkill River,

After notice was duly given and adveﬁised, two hearing were held on said Appeal at
Borough Hall oﬁ July 6, 2015 and September 29, 2015.]

At the hearing, the foﬂomdﬁg Exhibits were infroduced and adwmitted:

P-1 — Public Notice of the Case,

P-2 - Zoning Application,

A-1— Zoning Application and Addendum.

! The July 6, 2015 hearing was continued untll Angust 3, 2015, At the Angust 3, 2015 hearing the Appellants
requested a continuance, which was granted, There was no testimony hieard at this date,
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A-2- Letter of Amendment to Zoning Application.
A-3- Resufne for Dale T. Stesko R.A.

A-4- Resume for Michael Minervihi, PE.

- A-5- Executed Deed for Units E,F.(,H and J,

IL

A-6- Overall Site Plan,

A-~7- Millennium Corporate Center Front Elevations.

A-8- Millennium Corporate Center Rear Elevations,
A-9- Prototypes of Parking Garage Exterior.

Applicants’ Supplemental Exhibits

. A-1- Resume for Thomas E. Hall, AIA,

A-2- Pixar Photo Study.

A-3- Black and White Profiles of Proposed Building,

A-4- Roof Top Images.

A~5- Garage Exterior Image.

FINDINGS OF FACT

L. The'Subject Property is located at the 200 Block of Washington Street and is

owned by Washington Street Associates IV, L.P.

2. The Subject Property is located in the Specialty Planned Two Zoning District

(“SP-Z”).

3. The Appellants have a business address of 2701 Renaissance Boulevard, 4™ Floor,

King of Prussia, PA 19406,

4. The Subject Property previously filed for variances by Application and addendum

on February 26, 2014.
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5. The previously requested variances were granted by the Zoning Hearing Board
after hearings took place on April 7, 2014 and May 5, 2014. _

6. The Appellants filed this application essentially requesting to ﬁmend the
previously grantt;,d relief. |

7. The Appellants were represented by Edmond J, Campbell, Jr., Esquire.

8. Mike Savona, Esquire, solicitor to the Borough of Conshohocken (hereinafter
“Borough”), represented the Borough at the September 29, 2015 hearihg date. At said hearing,
Mr. Sﬁvdna stated that Borough Council supports the proposed application.

9 Mz, Campbell stated that the Appellants have a potential tenant for the Subject
Property who is requiring additional modifications of the Subject Property, which is why the
Appellants filed a new application even though it was granted relief last year.

10.  The Subject‘Proparty, if the proposed relief is granted, would be leased to a single
tenant who is looking to consolidate their operations in a single building in Conshohocken.

11,  The zoning code permits development of FAR at a ratio of 1.5 Block A is about
750,000 square feet. Pursuant to the ratio, the zonirg code would allow development of
1,125,000 square feet. There is currently between 500,000 and 550,000 square feet on the site,
which leaves approximately 650,000 square feet left that can be potentially built 1-1pon.

12.  The Appellants cannot develop the allowable 650,000 square feet without the
requested variances, Even if the variances are granted, the Appellants are only seeking to build
420,000 square feet, so the site is not being developed to the fullest as allowed by the FAR ratio,

13,  Because the Subject Property is located adjacent to the river, that presents
cconomic challenges to developing the site since it needs to be elevated out of the floodplain,

which is a unique c_:haracteristic of the Subject Property.
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14, -The propose;i plan would have about 75% to 76% impervioué coverage while the
Zoning Ordinance allows 70% by right. |

15.  The proposed plan included an internal driveway that would provide access to the
proposed parking structure. Because the internal driveway would come within the setbacks
within the Zoning Ordinance, the Appellants are seeking relief to allow this internal driveway.

16. At the hearing on July 6, 2015, Mz, Campbell called Mr. Dale Stesko to testify.

The Board accepted Mr. Stesko as an expert in architecture. Mr. Stesko testified to the following:
| a. He is an architect who is licensed in Pennsylvania.

b. He is primarily employed by O’Neill Properties but also does work for Valley Forge
Planning. ‘

¢. The development would be approximately five acres. To the north and south the
boundaries would be Millennium 1T and 1II on the Washington Street side. The
Schuylkill river is the boundary opposite Washington Street. The western boundary
would be Ash Street,

d. The site is in the flood plain,

e. The applicant is requesting variances for building height, building bulk, impervious
coverage and setbacks from internal drives. Hoﬁcvcr, the Applicant is not changing
the footprint of the building from what was approved by the Board last year.

f. The office building would have eight levels plus a penthouse.

g If the variance for the parking garage height was granted to allow a garage which -
would be 135 feet high, that would equate to 12 or 13 floors and would provide
approximately 1,500 cars, This would accommodate the parking need for the 420,000

squate foot office building on the site.
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It is not possible to develop another 600,000 square feet of office or residential use on
the site within the 85-foot height limitation that's provided in the code,

Because of the surroundings, the only way to capture the available FAR is to go
higher, which would also require more parking,

The Applicant would be willing to design the parking garage in order to mask the
facade that faces the river.

As a professional architect, he cannot come up with any design that would allow a

roadway fo get vehicles into a building for the purposes of parking unless it actually

- meets the building. As such, the Applicant is requesting relief for the internal

1L

17.

18.

19.

driveways,

The Subject Property is suitable for the proposed office development.

. The Subject Property would be in the best interest of the public welfare and the

Borough.

There is adequate sewer and water to serve the property.

The variances are the minimum needed to accomplish the proposed development,
After a few questions from the Board Members, mostly related to how this

applicatioh is different from the previous application that was granted relief, and why

the Applicant is asking for more telief, Mr. Campbell asked to continue the hearing.

This request was granted,

The next hearing when testimony was heard oceurred on September 29, 2015.

Mr. Campbell called Mr. Brian O'Neill to testify. Mr. O"Neill testified as follows:

a. New office buildings are being designed fo have a series of central spaces

designed to attract collaboration amongst employees.
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The proposed lobby would extend all the way to the back of the building where
there is a pmpos'ed amphitheater. There would also be a restaurant in the lof)by as
a part of the proposed active internal streetscape.

The roof of the building will be about 50,000 square feet and would include
spaces that would be utilized by the potential tenant.

City Tap House restanrant is a potential tenant who may utilize a portion of the
roof space. This would be in addition to the restaurant in the lobby.

When compared to all of the building in the Borough, the proposed office
building wo;ﬂd not be the largest building in the Borough. Additionally, the
proposed Equis building is taller than the Applicant’s proposed building.

400 Four Falls, Five Tower Bridge and the Marriott are all taller in height than the
proposed office building.

This application was filed due to the specific requests of a specific tenant who

would be utilizing the entire office building.

The way the parking garage is designed, if needed, the proposed garage could

have a floor added in very little time.

He has owned and developed property in the Borough for over 30 years.

The proposed building would be roughly 33% larger than the relief that was
granted by the Board previously. |

The proposed tenant .is requesting enough parking for five spaces per thouéand
square feet. At a maximum, the total amount of cars would be -2,100.

The proposed tenant currently occupies close to 400,000 square feet at their

current location.



20, Mr, Campbell then called Mr. Hall to testify. Mr. Hall testified as follows;
&. e is an architect licensed in Pennsylvania and 11 other states.
b. His firm particularly focuses on designing office buildings and had designed
" millions of square feet since 1988,

c. He designed the exhibits which show all of the buildings heights in the Borough,
and to a reasonable degree of architectural certainty, using information provided
by Qoogls Maps, the exhibits accurately reflect the building sizes in the Borough.

d. The requirement for garages, due to ventilation reasons, is to be 50% open.

21. No members of the public spoke out against the Application.

oI, DISCUSSION

Section 27-1509.2 states, “In the SP-2 District, a maximum building profile, as seen fiom
end-to—e[;d from any side or elevation, and measured perpendicular to such side or elevation,
shall not exceed 250 hinear feet in tot;l horizontal length on any floor or floors. Council may
permit an increase in the maximum building profile to 350 linear feet by conditional use
approval, subject to the follow'l;ng specific conditions:

A. There shall be adequate architectural con&ols in the form of breaks in the facade, so no more
than 50 feet of the building is a consistent facade;

B. For every additional 50 feet of building length, there shall be an addifional 5% of open space
provi_de.d on the lot or parcel; and '

C. The lot shall nét be developed with a visible patking structure fronting parallel to the
Schuylkill River, nor shall a stand-alone parking structure be located on any lot area between the
primary structure and tim Schuylkill River.”

Section 27-1504(D) states “Riverfront Access and Open Space in SP-2 District,
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(1) Purpose: the intent of the riverfront access and open space provision is to provide year-round
opp;orumities for outdoor recreation within this district, provide visual relief within the built
environment and facilitate circulation for pedestrians to and throughout these districts.

(2) Area: a minimum of 15% of each lot within this district shall be provided and maintained as
open space. Slopes al;mg roadways and the riverbank may be included as part of the required
open space if such areas are landscaped and designed to fulfill the intent of this Section. Open
spéce shail be restricted from further subdivision and development by a restriction in a deed
and/or by a conservation easement.

(3) So long as the landowner is immune from liability pursuant to the Recreational Use of Land
and Water Act, 68 P.S. 477-1 et seq.:

(a) For every development within the SP-2 District, there shall be twenty-four-hour daily
emergency (i.¢:, fire and police) and dawn to dusk public access between Washington Street and
the .rivcrf}o.nt trail. Required pubiic access must be provided via an easement or pubﬁé right-of-
way, recorded on the land development plans.

(b) There shall also be twenty-four-hour daily public access for walking, fishing, and sitting at

the ri;.rerfront area between the extension of Ash Street and the eastern boundary of the SP

Di;u'icts at the riverfront via a walkable swrface installed at the top of the riverbank as
developed. |

(c) There shall be public access Monday through Friday from 6:00 p.m. until dusk and weekends
and holidays from dawn until dusk for walking, fishing, and sitting in a designated riverfront
strip from Fayette Street to the eastern boundary of the SP. Districts at the riverfront via a

walkable surface installed at the top of the riverbank as developed.
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(4) Transfer of open space between lots within the SP-2 District shall be permitted by the
Borbugh Council with condifional use approval subject to the following specific standards:

() Lots for which the transfer is ptoposed must be contignous.

(b) All lots must be part of a common, unified and single land development application.

(c) The aggregate of all open space area must be equal to 15% of the total aggregate lot area of
those lots contained in the common, unified and éingle land development application.

(d) For lots with frontage on the Schuylkill River, the open space must beé provided along the
riverfront area.

(e) Open space must be preserved in perpetuity through a conservation easement or transferred
in fee simple to the Borough, as may be required by the Borough.

(5) No lot shall be developed with a parking structure fronting parallel to the Schuylkill River,
nor shall a parking structure be located on any lot area between the primary structure and the
Schuylkill River.”

Section 27-1503 states, ©..,

1. The highest elevation of any building shall be 85 feet. For buildings with flat roofs, building
. height is measured from g‘rad.e' to the top of the building wall, excluding parapets of not more
than eight feet. For buildings with pitched roofs, building height is measured from grade to the
midpoint of the slope. The height excludes aerials, communication towers, or the like, as well as
elevators, machine rooms, cooling towers, and their enclosing walls.

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Part, building height may be increased to 250 feet
by conditional use, provided that the following conditions are met:

A. The location of the proposed building is within close proximity to the Fayette Street Bridge,

as depicted on the map of the Fayette Street Bridge Development Area;
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B. The maximum impervious surface coverage on the lot shall be not more than 60%;

C. A minimum of 15% of the lot shall be devoted to green space, excluding all impervious
areas;

D. Not moré than 5% of the required ﬁarking shall be permitted in surfac‘e parking areas on the
lot; |

E. The design of the proposed buildhg must be submitted to the Borough Design Review
Committee for review and approval prior to conditional nse approval; |

F. :I'he plan must include riverfront access deeded to the Borough in perpetuity providing
unrestricted public access to the riverfront areas in perpetuity;

G. For properties situated.on the riverfront, the plan must meet the provisions of § 27-1610; and
H. Maximum floor area ratio of 2.5 for all uses, excluding parking garages, may be permitted.”

Section 27-1505(B)(2) states, *The minimum building setback shall be 15 feet from

ultimate roadway right-of-way, and 25 feet from the curbline of any private or internal drive.”

Section 27-1504(F) states, “Impervious Coverage.

(1) In the SP-1 District, not more than 70% of the area of any lot in the district shall be covered
by impervious surface. |

(2) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Part, in the SP-2 District, not more than 70% of
the area of any lot in the district shall be covered by impervious surface.”

In a request for a variance, the Board is guided by Section 27-611 of the Ordinance and
Section 910.2 of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code {hereinafier called “MPC™), An
applicant for a variance has the burden of establishing that a literal enforcement of the provisions
of the Ordinance will result in an unnecessary hardship as that term is defined by law, 'mclﬁding

court decisions, and that the allowance of the variance will not be contrary to the public interest,
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Section 27-611 of the Ordinance and Section 910.2 of the MPC permit the Board to grant a
vartance where it is atleged that the provisions of the Ordinance inflict wnnecessary hardship
upon the Appellant and when the Board can make certain preseribed findings where relevant in a
given case.

The requested variances and/or interpretations are of a dimensional nature. In such
situations, the Supreme Cowt of Pennsylvania has found, “the owner is asking only for a
reasonable adjustment of the zoning regulatioﬁé it order to utilize the property in a manner
consistent with the applicable regulations.” See Hertzberg v. Zoning Board of Adjustment of

City of Pittsburgh, 721 A.2d 43, 47 (Pa. 1998). Thus, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court has

stated, the level “of proof required to establish unnecessary hardship is indeed lesser.” See id. at
48,

As the testif:rﬁmy and evidence presented to the Board in this case has shown, the Project
attempts fo accommodate both a positive use of the Property with minimal refief being requested.

As a resudt of all the z{bove, the Application meets the requirements of “unnecessary
hardship” required under the MPC. See id. The majority of the Board, upon thorough and
deliberate review of the materials submitted and testimony offered, has detenmined that the
proposed Variances are approptiate in consideration of the nnique characteristics of the Property.

The requested variance will not adversely affect the public interest.

JV.  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

From the facts presented, it is the judgment of the Board that Appellants have proven an

unnecessary hardship unique or peculiar to the property and that the variance is not contrary to

the public interest. Accordingly, the Board is able to make the following relevant findings under

Section 910.2 of the MPC;
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1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including
irregularities, narrowness or shallowness of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or
other physical conditions peculiat to the pl'opf.;,rty, and that the wnnecessary hardship is due to
such condition, and not the circumstances or conditions generally created by the provisions of
the Ordinan_ca in the neighborhood or district in which the property is located;

2. That becaunse of such physical circumstances or conditions there is no possibility
that the property can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the Ordinance and
that the authorization for a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the
Subject Property;

3. Thaf the variance will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood or
district in which the Subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently irapair the
appropriate use or development of the adjacent property, or be defrimental to the public welfare;

4, That the unnecessary hardship has not been preated by the Appellants; and,

5. That the vari-a\nce will represent the minimum variance that will afford relief and

will represent the least modification possible under Section 27-611,
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ORDER

AND NOW, this o9/ day of gi@ E@,QOIS the Appeal Washmgton Street Associates

IV, L.P. and Millennium Waterfront Associates, L.P., seekmg variances from Sections 27-
1509.2, 27-1504(D), 27-1503, 27-1505(B)(2) and 27-1504(F), to construct a 420,000 square foot
office building which is 400 lineal feei, 135 feet high, having impervious coverage of 80% and
having internal setbacks between the building and curb of less than 25 feet in addition to the

constructing a parking structure which would front parallel to the Schuylkill River is

GRANTED.

The Appellants are directed to apply to the Borough Zoning Officer/Building Inspector to

obtain any appropriate permits.

CONSHOHOCKEN ZONING HEARING BOARD

B stor

Richard Barton, Chaivman -

Mark Danek

/Gtcgo%jw S::hzu'ff/ vy

RIC/
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ADDENDUM 11

See attached.



1.

Pollowing is a description of refief granted in 2014 and 2015 for the proposed project,

Z-2014-04: 200 Washington Street Block A. Decision May 5, 2014

Proposal: The Developer proposed a 300,000 square foot office building with a five (5) story parking garage, and
public amenities including an amphitheater, public garden and improved public access. It should be noted that
the design of the project was a direct result of the needs of the single tenant being sought to occupy the building,

Relief Requested and Granted:

§27-1509.2 Building Bulk: Relief was requested to increase the building bulk of the new proposed office building
from 250 feet to 384 feet, and increasing the non-conforming butlding bulk of 227 Washington Streef through
connection to the proposed building, making the building bulk 543 8 feet. Variances were approved on condition
that the connector between the existing building at 227 Washingtor Street and the new office building be used for
the transient movement of employees only, and not for additional office space or gathering areas. Relief was
approved for the building bulk of the proposed garage of 2748 feel

§27-1504 D, 5: Interpretation and in the alternate a variance was requested regarding the proposed orientation of
the parking garage parallel to the Schuylkill River. The Ordinance does not permit visible parking structures
parallel to the river or between a principal building and the river, Desplte arguments that there was intervening
fand between the proposed parking garage and the actual river bank, the Zoning Board granted a variance to
orienting the parldng garage parallel to the river, on condition that the stricture be concealed in some way other
than wire mesh so that it does not appear fo be a parking structure when viewed from the river side of the
building in the opinion of the Borough's Design Review Commiittee,

§27.1705: Utilization of the Flood Plain Conservation District: Relief was requested from conditional use
requirements for development of amenities in the floodway. All proposed buiklings related to the project were
located in the floodway fringe, and no relief was requested from flood proofing requirements, However grading
and amenites to be constructed in conjunction with the project were located in the floodway. Relief was granted
for the following activities in the floodway:

a. Anamphitheater with a plaza, walkway and paved parking areas;

b. Paved walkways, sidewalks, parking areas, plazas, courtyards and meeting areas; and

c. Grading, re-grading, disturbance of earth, removal and deposit of topseil and construction of retaining
walls,

§27-1503 Height: Building height is limited to eighty-five (85) feet, and may be increased to 250 feet by conditional
use. The project does not meet the requirements for conditional use approval and therefore a variance was
requested. Relief was granted for a building height not to exceed ninety (90) feet. The need for a variance was due
to slope at the site and the fact that the elevation of the building had not been finalized at that time.

Z-2015-04; 200 Block of Washington Street Block A, Decision Septerabet 28, 2015

Proposal The Developer propoged a 420,000 square foot office building, a garage of twelve (12) to thirteen (13)
stories. Amenities to be constructed remained the same. It should be noted that the changes to the project were
the result of requests from the single tenant proposed to occupy the building. Also of note was the Borough of
Conshohocken’s support for the relief being requested.

Relief Requested and Granted:
§27-1509 2 Building Bullc The praoposed building bulk was 400 lineal feet, which was sixteer: (16) feet longer

than the 384 lineal fee approved in 2014, There was no discussion regarding any changes in the bulk of the
garage, which was granted relief in 2014, Note: Garages are not exempt from building bulk requirements,




3,

§27-1503 Height: The preposed height of the building was 1385 feet, which was a significant increase (45 feet)
over the five (5) foot increase granted in 2014. Garage height also was increased, and was considered to be
roughly the same as the proposed office building. The variance was granted.

§27-1504 D. 5 Interpretation of the Orientation of the Garage Parallel to the Schuykill River: The parking garage
associated with the project continued to be oriented paralle] fo the river. There was no change in consideration

of the garage’s orfentation or change in the prior approval or condition of approval.

§27-1505 B.2 Minimum Building Setback from a Private or Internal Drive: The distance of the parking garage
from the drive leading to the garage is less than twenty-five (25) feet. The variance was granted.

§37-1504 ¥, 2, Impervions Coverage: The Developer proposed eighty percent (80%) impervious coverage on the
Tot, where seventy percent (70%) is permitted. The variance was granted.

2015 variances approved were granted without conditions.




SITE MAP

See attached.
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MAYOR

Yaniv Aronson

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Colleen Leonard, President

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

Robert Stokley, Senior Memb.
BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Anita Barton, Member
James Griffin, Member
Office of the Borough Manager Jane :ﬁﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ prember

Stephanie Cecco
Borough Manager

July 21, 2020

Edmund J. Campbell, Jr., Esq.
Campbell Rocco Law, LLC

2701 Renaissance Blvd., 4th Floor
King of Prussia, PA 19406

Re: PZ-2014-04 and 2015-04: 200 Block of Washington Street Conshohocken, PA 19428
Dear Mr. Campbell,

The Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board at its July 20, 2020 meeting approved an extension of the zoning
relief originally granted in 2014 and 2015 for the referenced project. The following relief was extended for
one (1) year through July 20, 2021:

§27-1509.2 - Variance for building bulk

§27-1504.D.5 - Variance for orientation of the parking garage
§27-1705 - Variance for floodproofing of amenities in the floodway
§27-1503 - Variance for building height

§27-1505.B.2 - Variance for minimum setback from internal roadways
§27-1504.F.2 - Variance for impervious coverage

Zoning relief will expire should any required permits not be obtained within the outlined time period.
Compliance with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations is still required along with all
representations and conditions of the original relief granted.

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact the undersigned.

Sincerely,

Eric P. Johnson, PE

Zoning Officer
PENNONI ASSOCIATES INC.

EPJ/

cc: Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager
Ray Sokolowski, Executive Director of Operations
Michael Peters, Esq., Borough Solicitor
Alex Glassman, Esq., Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor
Matt McHugh, Esq.
Zoning Hearing Board

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov



MAYOR
Yaniv Aronson

BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President

Jane Flanagan, Vice-President

Robert Stokley, Senior Memb
BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Anita Barton, Member |
James Griffin, Member
ffic of the Borough Manager
Stephanie Cecco
MEMORANDUM Borough Manager

Date:

To:

From:

Re:

July 9, 2021
Stephanie Cecco, Brittany Rogers
Eric P. Johnson, P.E.

200 Block Washington Street Extension Request - Zoning Determination

History of the Site:

The subject property is bounded by Washington Street to the north, the Schuylkill River waterfront to
the south, Poplar Street to the east, and Ash Street to the west. The property is located in the SP-2 -
Specially Planned Zoning District Two and is located in the Floodplain Conservation District and
Floodway and Zone AE Special Flood Hazard Area as defined by the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM).

In connection with a proposed development of a commercial office building, parking garage, and site
amenities, the applicant was granted the following relief by the Zoning Hearing Board in 2014 (Z-2014-
04) and in 2015 (Z-2015-04):

§27-1509.2 - Variance for building bulk

§27-1504.D.5 - Variance for orientation of the parking garage
§27-1705 - Variance for floodproofing of amenities in the floodway
§27-1503 - Variance for building height

§27-1505.B.2 - Variance for minimum setback from internal roadways
§27-1504.F.2 - Variance for impervious coverage

The expiration date of the granted relief has been extended multiple times. The applicant was most
recently before the Zoning Hearing Board in July 2020 at which time the following relief was extended

until July 20, 2021:
e §27-1504.D.5 - Variance for orientation of the parking garage
e §27-1705 - Variance for floodproofing of amenities in the floodway
e §27-1503 - Variance for building height
e §27-1505.B.2 - Variance for minimum setback from internal roadways

§27-1504.F.2 - Variance for impervious coverage

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov



July 9, 2021 Page 2
Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager 200 Blk Washington St Determination

Current Request:

The applicant, Millennium Waterfront Associates LP, is requesting an extension of the previously
granted zoning relief for an additional twelve (12) months until July 20, 2022.

Zoning Determination:

Per §27-613 of the Zoning Ordinance, the zoning relief granted expires if the applicant does not obtain
any and all required permits within the specified timeframe. The zoning relief originally granted by the
Zoning Hearing Board in 2014 (Z-2014-04) and in 2015 (Z-2015-04) has been extended multiple times with
the most recent extension granted in July 2020. The applicant currently has no land development or
permit applications submitted to the Borough, and no indication has been made to the Borough that the
project is progressing towards obtaining all required approvals and permits. Therefore, it is
recommended that the Zoning Hearing Board deny the request for another extension of time on the
subject relief.



BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President
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Zoning Administration

Yaniv Aronson, Mayor

Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

ZONING NOTICE
August 16th, 2021, ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING TO OCCUR VIA REMOTE MEANS

ZONING HEARING Z-2021-15

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will conduct a public hearing
on August 16th, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. prevailing time via remote means. The public is encouraged to participate
as set forth below.

This meeting will be held using a Go-To-Meeting Platform. To the extent possible, members of
Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board and Borough staff/professionals will participate via both video and
audio. (INSTRUCTIONS ON SECOND PAGE)

At this time, the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will hear testimony and accept evidence on the
following request.

PETITIONER: Dryden Court Development, LLC. C/O David J. Brosso
1125 Robin Rd., Gladwyne, PA 19035

PREMISES INVOLVED: 450 Colwell Ln., Conshohocken, PA 19428
Limited Industrial District

OWNER OF RECORD: Dryden Court Development, LLC. C/O David ]. Brosso
1125 Robin Rd., Gladwyne, PA 19035

The applicant is seeking variances from Borough Code Sections §27-1903-B(3)(A) for a reduced front yard
setback and §27-1903-B(11) to permit a building height over 35 feet.

Persons who wish to become parties to the application must notify the Borough of their intent to ask for
party status at least five (5) days prior to the scheduled hearing by emailing the attached entry of
appearance form to zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Said persons must be available to participate in the
zoning hearing on the scheduled date and time. It is noted that submitting the attached entry of appearance
form does not guarantee that you will be granted party status. The Zoning Hearing Board decides who
may participate in the hearing before it as a party, subject to Section 908(3) of the Municipalities Planning
Code (MPC). The MPC permits party status to any person “affected” by the application. Having taxpayer
status alone is not enough to claim party status; however, a person whose property or business abuts the
property that is the subject of the appeal is affected and should qualify as a party. Ultimately, the ZHB
makes the party status determination after reviewing the request.

Thank you,
Zoning Hearing Board

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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BOROUGH COUNCIL
Colleen Leonard, President

Tina Sokolowski, Vice-President

BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN Robert Stokley, Member

Anita Barton, Member

Ojﬁce (thhe BOI’OUgb Manager James Griffin, Member

Jane Flanagan, Member
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Zoning Administration Vaniv A M
aniv rons()n, ayor

Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager

ZONING HEARING REMOTE SESSION ACCESS INSTRUCTIONS
The public is encouraged to participate as follows:

Audio Feed Participation: You may dial-in to access the audio feed of the meeting. All participants (whether
listening or providing comments) must use this method of audio participation, even those using Go-To-
Meeting to access the video feed. To access audio, please use the below number and access code/ password
information.

We ask that you please always keep your phones on mute, unless giving a public comment as set forth in
the Public Comment section below.

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https:/ / global.gotomeeting.com/join/ 972846509

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679

Access Code: 972-846-509

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https:/ / global.gotomeeting.com/install /972846509

If you have already downloaded the Go-To-Meeting application, the link will redirect you to the
application itself. Please follow the instructions.

It is recommended that you download the application in advance of the meeting time. If you attempt to
sign in prior to the start of the meeting, the Go-To-Meeting application will inform you that the meeting
has not started. Please close the application and log back in at the time of the meeting (7:00 PM).

Public Comment: There will be a designated time on the agenda for public comment. Those with public
comment shall state their name and address. Prior to the start of the meeting, you may submit written
comments by e-mailing them to Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. Similarly, during the meeting, you may
submit written comments by e-mailing them to Zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.

Public comments submitted in this manner will be read by a member of Borough Administration during
the public comment period. Because the actual time of the public comment period is determined by the
pace of the meeting, please submit all comments as soon as possible, whether before or during the meeting.
Written comments shall include the submitting person’s name, address, and property in question.

The Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board thanks you in advance for your cooperation during the remote
meeting. If you encounter problems participating during the meeting, or have questions regarding the
above prior to the meeting, please contact the Borough at zoning@conshohockenpa.gov.

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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The Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board
Entry of Appearance as a Party

I/We

Request to be granted party status in Application Z-2021-15.

Applicant: 450 Colwell Ln., Dryden Court Development, LLC. — Variance

Please print name:

Please print address:

Please print email:

Please Sign Below:

Please return form via mail or e-mail to the below:
(Entry must be received no later than August 11th, 2021)

MAIL:

Borough of Conshohocken
Attn: Bobbi Jo Myrsiades
400 Fayette St. - Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

E-MAIL:
zoning@conshohockenpa.gov

400 Fayette St., Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828-0920 | www.conshohockenpa.gov
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BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Zoning Application

Applicatiom?wzﬂfg':’ -
Application is hereby made for: Date Submitted:QZM_

Date Received: M
D Special Exception Variance

DAppeal of the decision of the zoning officer

l____!Conditional Use approval |:| Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance
D Other

Section of the Zoning Ordinance from which relief is requested:
27-1903-B(3)(A} - Front Yard and 27-1903-B(11) Building Height

Address of the property, which is the subject of the application:

450 Colwell Lane, Conshohocken, PA 19428

Applicant’ s Name: Dryden Court Development, LLC c/o David J. Brosso

Address: 1125 Robin Road, Gladwyne, PA 19035

Phone Number (daytime); 910-310-505

E-mail Address: “ipprop@gmail.com

Applicant is (check one): Legal Owner Equitable Owner[:]; Tenant[]

Property Owner: (Same as Applicant)

Address:

Phone Number:

E-mail Address:

380' x 238" = 2 acres

Lot Dimensions: Zoning District: H




10.

11.

Has there been previous zoning relief requested in connection with this Property?

Yes|v/| No| |If yes, please describe.,

Appilication for Conditional Use Approval to permit Multi-Family housing in the LI District is currently pending.

Please describe the present use of the property including any existing improvements
and the dimensions of any structures on the property.

The Property is improved with a 27,000 s.f. warehouse that is presently vacant. The warehouse was formerly
occupied by American Olean Tile. Access to the Property is from Colwell Lane,

Please describe the proposed use of the property.

Applicant proposes lo redevelop the property as a multi-family development consisting of 48 dwelling units
("Proposed Use"). The Proposed Use is depicted on a plan prepared by Joseph Estock, entitled "Dryden Court -
Sketch G", dated May 12, 2021, last revised May 18, 2021, The Proposed Use would provide access from both
Colwell Lane as well as 5th Avenue, The Proposed Use provides a transition from the adjacent townhomes to the
more industrial areas along Colwell Lane, Providing a new access to 5th Avenue further integrates the

development with the exisiing townhomes while providing superior access particularly in flooding events that may
reqauire the temnararv closure of Colwell Lane.

Please describe proposal and improvements to the property in detail.

Please see attached Plan. The Proposed Use consists of three multi-family buildings totalling 48 dwelling units.



12, Please describe the reasons the Applicant believes that the requested relief should be
granted.

Applicant proposes to provide a new/superior access to the property along 5th Avenue. This access improves
emergency services access and will allow egress to 5th Avenue for the Proposed Development as well as the
adjacent Rumsey Electric property during emergency situations, Additionally, the topography of the property
(slopes) requires particular attention to the design of the Propsoed Use. Further, in order fo iniegrate the
Proposed Use into the existing community, the Proposed Use must he shifted toward 5th Avenue.

13.  If a Variance is being requested, please describe the following:

a. The unique characteristics of the property: Topography and Floodplainfemergency access

b. How the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restricts development of the property:
The Zoning Ordinance restricts height to 35, In order to integrate the development into the existing

topography while providing access to 5th Avenue, Applicant requires relief to permit a bullding height of 40
faet. Additionally, the Zoning Ordinance requires a front yard of 30'. The property is a corner lot thus requiring

a front yard along both Colwell Lane and 5th Avenue. All development has historically fronted upon Colwell
Lane. The Proposed Use seeks to integrate the developement including pedestrian and vehicular access

along 5th Avenue. To do so, the Proposed Use must be shifted towards 5th Avenue,

c. How the proposal is consistent with the character of the surrounding

neighborhood,

The granting of the r@questé‘d“ relief will allow the project to integrate into the existing townhouses along 5th
Avenue while improving pedestrian and vehicular access.

d. Why the requested relief is the minimum required to reasonably use the

property; and why the proposal could not be less than what is proposed.

The proposed front yard of 5' represents the minimum necessary to safely and efficiently achieve the above
described pedestrian and vehicular access. Likewise, the requested deviation from the maximum building
height is the minimum necessary to implement the Proposed Use.

14.  The following section should be completed if the applicant is contesting the
determination of the zoning officer.
a. Please indicate the section of the zoning ordinance that is the subject of the
zoning officer’s decision (attach any written correspondence relating to the
determination).

n/a



b. Please explain in detail the reasons why you disagree with the zoning officer’s
determination.

n/a

15.  If the Applicant is requesting any other type of relief, please complete the following
section.

a. Type of relief that is being requested by the applicant.

b. Please indicate the section of the Zoning Ordinance related to the relief being
requested.

c. Please describe in detail the reasons why the requested relief should be granted.

16.  If the applicant is being represented by an attorney, please provide the following
information.

A Attorney’s Name: Craig Robert Lewis, Esquire

i i 422
b. Address: 910 Harvest Drive, Suite 200, Blue Bell, PA 19

¢. Phone Number; 510-941-2584

d. E-mail Address: fewis@kaplaw.com




1/ we hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge, all of the above statements contained in
this Zoning Application and any papers or plans submitted with this application to the

Borough of C oh{ileﬁ/ue and correct.
v

Applicant ’ C
\

L4

Legal Owner '

G/ p02

1

Date

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

As subscribed and sworn to before me this / ? day of
Tuune 2021, Q;u,,ﬁ hvicd 4 DBresse
A
!
W

g,

Notaty Public

Commonwealth of P J
Kimberiy Ze?e?? !ﬁl)g\t/;rn;af;uhé%?ry Seal
y M_om.gomeryCc:unty
y commission expires May 5, 2022
) Q?&”lisi%”“-mber 11851’{)3
Memiar, Pennsylvania Assacianon o7 Nefafies

(Seal)

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) $28-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920] www.conshohockenpa.org



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Decision
(For Borough Use Only)
Application Granted [ Application Denied [l
MOTION:
CONDITIONS:

BY ORDER OF THE ZONING HEARING BOARD

Yes No

O O o o 0o
O O O o0 0

DATE OF ORDER:

400 Fayette Street, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 828- 0920 www conshohockenpa.org



Kaplin|Stewart

Attorneys at Law

Craig R. Lewis

Direct Dial: (610) 941-2584
Direct Fax: (610) 684-2021
Email: rlewis@kaplaw.com
www.kaplaw.com

June 18, 2021

VIA EMAIL AND FEDERAL EXPRESS

Borough of Conshohocken

Attn: Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

RE: 450 Colwell Lane - Application to the Zoning Hearing Board
Dryden Court Development, LLC - Multi-family Development Stacked Condos
Our Reference No. 16140.009

Dear Ms. Cecco:

As I believe you know, I represent Dryden Court Development, LLC (*DCD”). As evidenced
by the Deed attached hereto, DCD is the legal owner of the property located at 450 Colwell
Lane, Conshohocken, PA (“Property”). In accordance with the Borough of Conshohocken
Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) and Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Map the
Property is located in the LI~ Limited Industrial Zoning District,

DCD proposes to develop the Property for modern, multi-family housing (“Proposed Use™). In
accordance with Section 1901-B of the Zoning Ordinance, the Proposed Use is a specifically
permitted use of Property by conditional use. On December 30, 2020, DCD submitted an
application seeking conditional use approval for the Proposed Use (“Conditional Use
Application”). The Borough’s Planning Commission recently recommended approval of the
Conditional Use Application and a hearing thereon is scheduled for Jul 21, 2021.

As was recently discussed with the Borough’s staff and the Planning Commission, the Proposed
Use requires minor dimensional relief from the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, in order to
provide improved integration of the Proposed Use with the surrounding properties, and to
improve emergency access and circulation, DCD requires relief from the applicable front yard
setback requirement. Additionally, in order to address the topography of the Property, the
Proposed Use requires relief from the applicable maximum building height requirement. As
will be address through testimony and exhibits, these requests for relief are necessitated by the
physical characteristics of the Property, will not be detrimental to the public heaith, safety and/or
welfare, and will improve emergency access to the Proposed Use.

Kaplin Stewart Offices in
Union Meeting Corporate Center Pennsylvania
910 Harvest Drive, P.O. Box 3037 New Jersey

Biue Bell, PA 19422-0765
610-260-6000 tel

7112338v1



Conshohocken Borough
June 18, 2021
Page 2

Therefore, on behalf of DCD I am enclosing herewith and application to the Borough’s Zoning
Hearing Board seeking relief from §§ 27-1903-B(3)(A) and 27-1903-B(11) of the Zoning
Ordinance (“Application”). The Application consists of the following materials:

« Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Application;

« Site Plan prepared by Joseph M. Estock, PE consisting of three (3) sheets; sheet
1 entitled “Sketch Plan G”, dated May 12, 2021, last revised May 18, 2021

e A check in the amount of $500.00 payable to the Borough of Conshohocken
representing the applicable Zoning Hearing Board Application Fee; and

¢ A check in the amount of $1,500.00 payable to the Borough of Conshohocken
representing the applicable Zoning Application Escrow Deposit.

As set forth in the Borough’s “Zoning Application Filing Procedures”, in addition to the above
referenced Deed, I am enclosing an original, signed and notarized Application. 1 am also
enclosing one hardcopy of the Application. Please retain the original for your own purposes.
Plcase timestamp and return the remaining copy for my records. An electronic copy of the
Application will also be delivered to the Borough contemporaneously herewith by electronic
transmission.

Please schedule the Application for consideration by the Borough’s Zoning Hearing Board at its
regularly scheduled July 19, 2021 meeting date. Kindly provide notice of the scheduling of the
hearing and provide copies of all reviews, correspondence and communications generated and/or
received regarding this matter.

If you require anything further or have and questions, please contact me at your convenience.

Best Regards,

N VA
7

Craig R. Lewis

Enclosures
cc (via e-mail w/ enclosures): DJB Properties, LLC

Michael E. Peters, Esqg.
Eric P. Johnson, PE, Zoning Officer

7112338vl



Prepared by:

Spruce Law Group, LLC

1622 Spruce Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Attn: Jason R, Sieminski, Esq.

After Recording, Return To:
Land Services USA, Tne.

1835 Market Street, Suite 420
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Attn: Richard Little

Parcel No,:  05-00-00103-00-9
Address: 450 Colwell Lane
Caonshohocken, PA

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

This Special Warranty Deed is made on December |5 2020, and is by and between D,
DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability company (hereinafter
called the “Grantor”), to DRYDEN COURT DEVELOPMENT LLC, a Pennsylvania limited
liability company, (hereinafter called the “Grantee™).

WITNESSETH, that the said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Three Million
Three Hundred and Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,310,000.00), lawful money of the
United States of America, and other good and valuable consideration, unto it well and truly paid
by the said Grantee, at or before the sealing and delivery hereof, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold, and conveyed, and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell, and convey unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, all of the following
described real estate, situated in the County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
known and described as follows: '

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HERETO

TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Grantor in the improvements,
hereditaments, easements and appurtenances thereunto belonging, or in anyway apperiaining, and
the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof, and all
the estate, right, title, interest, claim or demand whatsoever, either in law or equity, of, in and to
the above described premises (collectively, the “Property™),

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, unto Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, to and for the only proper use and behalf of Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, forever. And Grantor does covenant, promise and agree, to and with Grantee, its
successors and assigns, by these presents, that Grantor will WARRANT SPECIALLY against all
and every person or persons lawfully claiming the same or any part thereof by, through or under
Grantor, the Property hereby conveyed.



THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT SELL, CONVEY, TRANSFER, INCLUDE OR INSURE
THE TITLE TO THE COAL AND RIGHT OF SUPPORT UNDERNEATH THE
SURFACE LAND DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND THE OWNER OR
OWNERS OF SUCH COAL MAY HAVE THE COMPLETE LEGAL RIGHT TO
REMOVE ALL OF SUCH COAL AND, IN THAT CONNECTION, DAMAGE MAY
RESULT TO THE SURFACE OF THE LAND AND ANY HOUSE, BUILDING OR
OTHER STRUCTURE ON OR IN SUCH LAND. THE INCLUSION OF THIS NOTICE
DOES NOT ENLARGE, RESTRICT OR MODIFY ANY LEGAL RIGHTS OR ESTATES

OTHERWISE CREATED, TRANSFERRED, EXCEPTED OR RESERVED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT,

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOVF, the aforementioned Grantor has hereunto set such Grantor's
hand and seal the day and year first above mentioned.

GRANTOR:

D. DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LLC,
a Pennsylvania limited liability company

By:. ég{ e

Name: Edmund B. Moore, Jr.
Title: Managing Member

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GO
COUNTY OF {Man { 9 0

On this, the _LZ day of December, 2020, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State
and County, personally appeared Edmund B. Moore, Jr., who acknowledged himself to be the
Managing Member of D, Deodati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability
company, and that he as such officer, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument
in the name of the Grantor for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written.

Z;UL&)L, /ﬂ . PM/?U/"’\

A

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: -2 /-'}/ / PO2H

- Seal
Commonwealih of Pennsylvania - Notary
Terasa A, Penna, NotaryiPubHc
Montgormery County
My commlssion axplres February 21,2024
Commisslon number 1267688
“Moniher, Bannsyivanis Associalion of Notarles




Certificate of Address

The Tax Billing Address and Owner Mailing Address of the Grantee is:

[ 125 Robin Road
Gladwyne PA 19035

Q\Q

On Behalf oﬁhwe Grantee,
Dryden Court Development LLC




EXHIBIT “A”
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or plece of land, situate in the Borough of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and
Commonweaith of Pennsylvania, bounded and described according lo a Plan of Subdivision, made for George K.
Heebner, Inc., by Yerkes Associates, Inc., Consulling Engineers and Surveyors, 101 Charles Drive, Bryn Mawr,
PA, dated March 20, 1978 and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book A-31 Page 94, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point or: the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (50 feet wide) marking its intersection with the
Southwest side of the future extension of West 5 Avenue {80 feet wide); thence along the Southwest side of.
propesed extension of West 6% Avenue {80 feet wide) South 49 degrees 0 minutes East 390.48 feel to a point;
thence leaving said side of West 5% Avenue (proposed) and by other land now or late of George K. Heebner, Inc.
Parcel No. 2, the two following courses and distances: (1} South 41 degrees 0 minutes West 238 feet to a point;
and (2) North 49 degrees 0 minutes West 311.02 feet to a point on the Southeast side of Colweil Lane {80 feet
wide) aforementioned; thence along the same the three following courses and dislances: (1) Narth 4 degrees 39
minules East 12.40 feet to a point of curve; (2) on the arc of a circle curving to the right having a radius of 370 feet
the arc distance of 233,02 feet the chord of said curved line having a bearing of North 22 degrees 40 minutes 30
seconds East 22919 feet lo a peint; and (3) North 40 degreas 43 minutes East 10.45 feet to the place of
beginning.

CONTAINING 2 acres, be the same more or less.

BEING known as 450 Colweil Lane,

BEING Tax Parcel #05-00-00103-00-8,

BEING the same premises which D. Deodali & Sons, by Deed dated 2/19/2013 and recorded 3/5/2013 in the

Counly of Montgomery in Deed Book 5865 page 1668, conveyed unto . Deodati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a
Pennsylvania limited liability comypany, in fee.



Kaplin|Stewart

Atlorneys al Law

Craig R. Lewis

Direct Dial: (610) 941-2584
Direct Fax: (610) 684-2021
Email: rlewis@kaplaw.com
www.kaplaw.com

June 18, 2021

VIA EMAIL AND FEDERAL EXPRESS

Borough of Conshohocken

Attn: Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

RE: 450 Colwell Lane - Application to the Zoning Hearing Board
Dryden Court Development, LLC - Multi-family Development Stacked Condos
Our Reference No. 16140.009

Dear Ms. Cecco:

As I believe you know, I represent Dryden Court Development, LLC (“DCD”). As evidenced
by the Deed attached hereto, DCD is the legal owner of the property located at 450 Colwell
Lane, Conshohocken, PA (“Property”). In accordance with the Borough of Conshohocken
Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) and Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Map the
Property is located in the LI- Limited Industrial Zoning District.

DCD proposes to develop the Property for modern, multi-family housing (“Proposed Use”). In
accordance with Section 1901-B of the Zoning Ordinance, the Proposed Use is a specifically
permitted use of Property by conditional use. On December 30, 2020, DCD submitted an
application seeking conditional use approval for the Proposed Use (“Conditional Use
Application”). The Borough’s Planning Commission recently recommended approval of the
Conditional Use Application and a hearing thereon is scheduled for Jul 21, 2021.

As was recently discussed with the Borough’s staff and the Planning Commission, the Proposed
Use requires minor dimensional relief from the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, in order to
provide improved integration of the Proposed Use with the surrounding properties, and to
improve emergency access and circulation, DCD requires relief from the applicable front yard
setback requirement. Additionally, in order to address the topography of the Property, the
Proposed Use requires relief from the applicable maximum building height requirement. As
will be address through testimony and exhibits, these requests for relief are necessitated by the
physical characteristics of the Property, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety and/or
welfare, and will improve emergency access to the Proposed Use.

Kaplin Stewart Offices in
Union Meeting Corporate Center Pennsylvania
910 Harvest Drive, P.O. Box 3037 New Jersey
Blue Bell, PA 19422-0765

610-260-6000 tel

7112338v1



Conshohocken Borough
June 18, 2021
Page 2

Therefore, on behalf of DCD I am enclosing herewith and application to the Borough’s Zoning
Hearing Board seeking relief from §§ 27-1903-B(3)(A) and 27-1903-B(11) of the Zoning
Ordinance (“Application”). The Application consists of the following materials:

e Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Application;

e Site Plan prepared by Joseph M. Estock, PE consisting of three (3) sheets; sheet
1 entitled “Sketch Plan G”, dated May 12, 2021, last revised May 18, 2021

e A check in the amount of $500.00 payable to the Borough of Conshohocken
representing the applicable Zoning Hearing Board Application Fee; and

e A check in the amount of $1,500.00 payable to the Borough of Conshohocken
representing the applicable Zoning Application Escrow Deposit.

As set forth in the Borough’s “Zoning Application Filing Procedures”, in addition to the above
referenced Deed, I am enclosing an original, signed and notarized Application. I am also
enclosing one hardcopy of the Application. Please retain the original for your own purposes.
Please timestamp and return the remaining copy for my records. An electronic copy of the
Application will also be delivered to the Borough contemporaneously herewith by electronic
transmission.

Please schedule the Application for consideration by the Borough’s Zoning Hearing Board at its
regularly scheduled July 19, 2021 meeting date. Kindly provide notice of the scheduling of the
hearing and provide copies of all reviews, correspondence and communications generated and/or
received regarding this matter.

If you require anything further or have and questions, please contact me at your convenience.

Best Regards,

A |
r //(' L/f— ——."
4
Craig R. Lewis

Enclosures
cc (via e-mail w/ enclosures): DJB Properties, LLC

Michael E. Peters, Esq.
Eric P. Johnson, PE, Zoning Officer

7112338v1



Prepared by:
Spruce Law Group, LLC

1622 Spruce Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
Attn: Jason R. Sieminski, Esq.

After Recording, Return To:
Land Services USA, Inc.

1835 Market Street, Suite 420
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Attn: Richard Little

Parcel No.:  05-00-00103-00-9
Address: 450 Colwell Lane
Conshohocken, PA

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

This Special Warranty Deed is made on December I+ 2020, and is by and between D.
DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LL.C, a Pennsylvania limited liability company (hereinafter
called the “Grantor™), to DRYDEN COURT DEVELOPMENT LILC, a Pennsylvania limited
liability company, (hereinafter called the “Grantee”).

WITNESSETH, that the said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Three Million
Three Hundred and Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,310,000.00), lawful money of the
United States of America, and other good and valuable consideration, unto it well and truly paid
by the said Grantee, at or before the sealing and delivery hereof, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold, and conveyed, and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell, and convey unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, all of the following
described real estate, situated in the County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
known and described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HERETO

TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Grantor in the improvements,
hereditaments, easements and appurtenances thereunto belonging, or in anyway appertaining, and
the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof, and all
the estate, right, title, interest, claim or demand whatsoever, either in law or equity, of, in and to
the above described premises (collectively, the “Property™),

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, unto Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, to and for the only proper use and behalf of Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, forever, And Grantor does covenant, promise and agree, to and with Grantee, its
successors and assigns, by these presents, that Grantor will WARRANT SPECIALLY against all
and every person or persons lawfully claiming the same or any part thereof by, through or under
Grantor, the Property hereby conveyed.



THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT SELL, CONVEY, TRANSKFER, INCLUDE OR INSURE
THE TITLE TO THE COAL AND RIGHT OF SUPPORT UNDERNEATH THE
SURFACE LAND DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND THE OWNER OR
OWNERS OF SUCH COAL MAY HAVE THE COMPLETE LEGAL RIGHT TO
REMOVE ALL OF SUCH COAL AND, IN THAT CONNECTION, DAMAGE MAY
RESULT TO THE SURFACE OF THE LAND AND ANY HOUSE, BUILDING OR
OTHER STRUCTURE ON OR IN SUCH LAND. THE INCLUSION OF THIS NOTICE
DOES NOT ENLARGE, RESTRICT OR MODIFY ANY LEGAL RIGHTS OR ESTATES
OTHERWISE CREATED, TRANSFERRED, EXCEPTED OR RESERVED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS|



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the aforementioned Grantor has hereunto set such Grantor's
hand and seal the day and year first above mentioned.

GRANTOR:

D. DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LLC,
a Pennsylvania limited liability company

By: /j T~

Name: Edmund B. Moore, Jr.
Title: Managing Member

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF tgomean
Mantgomery

On this, the I_? day of December, 2020, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State
and County, personally appeared Edmund B. Moore, Jr., who acknowledged himself to be the
Managing Member of D. Deodati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability
company, and that he as such officer, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument
in the name of the Grantor for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: -2 /-':1/ / .»}z?;,ll-f

|
mmonwealth of Pennsgylvania - Notary Sea
e TerasaA. Penna, Notary Public
Meonigomaery County
My commission explres February 21, 2024
Commission number 1267598 .
Meampar, Pennsylvania Agsociation of Notaries




Certificate of Address

The Tax Billing Address and Owner Mailing Address of the Grantee is:

1125 Robin Road

On Behalf o;[:‘fhe Grantee,
Dryden Court Development LLC



EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of land, situate in the Borough of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and
Commonwealth of Pennsyivania, bounded and described according to a Plan of Subdivision, made for George K.
Heebner, Inc., by Yerkes Associates, inc., Consulting Engineers and Surveyors, 101 Chartes Drive, Bryn Mawr,
PA, dated March 20, 1978 and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book A-31 Page 94, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point on the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (60 feet wide) marking its intersection with the
Southwest side of the fulure extension of West 5° Avenue (80 feet wide); thence along the Southwest side of
proposed extension of West 5% Avenue {80 feet wide) South 49 degrees 0 minutes East 390.48 feet to a poini;
thence leaving said side of West 5 Avenue (proposed) and by other land now or late of George K. Heebner, inc.
Parcel No. 2, the two following courses and distances: (1) South 41 degrees 0 minutes West 238 feet to a point;
and {2} North 49 degrees 0 minutes West 311.02 feet to a point on the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (B0 feet
wide) aforementioned; thence along the same the three following courses and distances: (1) North 4 degrees 38
minutes East 12.40 feet to a point of curve; {(2) an the arc of a circle curving to the right having a radius of 370 feet
the arc distance of 233.02 feet the chord of said curved line having a bearing of North 22 degrees 40 minutes 30
seconds East 229 19 feet to a point; and (3) North 40 degrees 43 minutes East 10.45 feet to the place of
beginning.

CONTAINING 2 acres, be the same more or less.

BEING known as 450 Colwell Lane.

BEING Tax Parce! #05-00-00103-00-8.

BEING the same premises which D. Deodali & Sons, by Deed dated 2/19/20'13 and recorded 3/5/2013 in the

County of Montgomery in Deed Book 5865 page 1668, conveyed unto D. Decdati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a
Pennsylvania limited liability company, in fee.



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Zoning Application

Application:

Application is hereby made for: BateSubvitted:

Date Received:
D Special Exception Variance :

l:IAppeal of the decision of the zoning officer

l:IConditional Use approval D Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance
D Other

Section of the Zoning Ordinance from which relief is requested:
27-1903-B(3)(A) - Front Yard and 27-1903-B(11) Building Height

Address of the property, which is the subject of the application:

450 Colwell Lane, Conshohocken, PA 19428

Applicant’s Name: Dryden Court Development, LLC c/o David J. Brosso

Address: 1125 Robin Road, Gladwyne, PA 19035

Phone Number (daytime): 610-310-5055

E-mail Address: ¢ibprop@gmail.com

Applicant is (check one): Legal Owner Equitable OwnerI:l; TenanD

Property Ewnier: (Same as Applicant)

Address:

Phone Number:

E-mail Address:

Lot Dimensions: HSC e 200 =2 apes

Zoning District: .




10.

11.

Has there been previous zoning relief requested in connection with this Property?

Yes No :' If yes, please describe.

Application for Conditional Use Approval to permit Multi-Family housing in the LI District is currently pending.

Please describe the present use of the property including any existing improvements
and the dimensions of any structures on the property.

The Property is improved with a 27,000 s.f. warehouse that is presently vacant. The warehouse was formerly
occupied by American Olean Tile. Access to the Property is from Colwell Lane.

Please describe the proposed use of the property.

Applicant proposes to redevelop the property as a multi-family development consisting of 48 dwelling units
("Proposed Use"). The Proposed Use is depicted on a plan prepared by Joseph Estock, entitled "Dryden Court -
Sketch G", dated May 12, 2021, last revised May 18, 2021. The Proposed Use would provide access from both
Colwell Lane as well as 5th Avenue. The Proposed Use provides a transition from the adjacent townhomes to the
more industrial areas along Colwell Lane. Providing a new access to 5th Avenue further integrates the

development with the exisitng townhomes while providing superior access particularly in flooding events that may
reattire the temnorarv closure of Colwell Lane.

Please describe proposal and improvements to the property in detail.

Please see attached Plan. The Proposed Use consists of three multi-family buildings totalling 48 dwelling units.



12 Please describe the reasons the Applicant believes that the requested relief should be
granted.

Applicant proposes to provide a new/superior access to the property along b5th Avenue. This access improves
emergency services access and will allow egress to 5th Avenue for the Proposed Development as well as the
adjacent Rumsey Electric property during emergency situations. Additionally, the topography of the property
(slopes) requires particular attention to the design of the Propsoed Use. Further, in order to integrate the
Proposed Use into the existing community, the Proposed Use must be shifted toward 5th Avenue.

13.  If a Variance is being requested, please describe the following:

a. The unique characteristics of the property; | °P°draphy and Floodplainfemergency access

b. How the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restricts development of the property:
The Zoning Ordinance restricts height to 35'. In order to integrate the development into the existing

topography while providing access to 5th Avenue, Applicant requires relief to permit a building height of 40
feet. Additionally, the Zonihg Ordinance requires a front yard of 30". The property is a corner lot thus requiring

a front yard along both Colwell Lane and 5th Avenue. All development has historically fronted upon Colwell
Lane. The Proposed Use seeks to integrate the developement including pedestrian and vehicular access

along 5th Avenue. To do so, the Proposed Use must be shifted towards 5th Avenue.

c. How the proposal is consistent with the character of the surrounding

neighborhood.

The granting of the requested relief will allow the project to integrate into the existing townhouses along 5th
Avenue while improving pedestrian and vehicular access.

d. Why the requested relief is the minimum required to reasonably use the

property; and why the proposal could not be less than what is proposed.

The proposed front yard of 5' represents the minimum necessary to safely and efficiently achieve the above
described pedestrian and vehicular access. Likewise, the requested deviation from the maximum building
height is the minimum necessary to implement the Proposed Use.

14.  The following section should be completed if the applicant is contesting the
determination of the zoning officer.
a. Please indicate the section of the zoning ordinance that is the subject of the
zoning officer’s decision (attach any written correspondence relating to the
determination).

n/a



b. Please explain in detail the reasons why you disagree with the zoning officer’s
determination.

n/a

15.  If the Applicant is requesting any other type of relief, please complete the following
section.

a. Type of relief that is being requested by the applicant.

b. Please indicate the section of the Zoning Ordinance related to the relief being
requested.

c. Please describe in detail the reasons why the requested relief should be granted.

16.  If the applicant is being represented by an attorney, please provide the following
information.

) Attorney's Niaties: Craig Robert Lewis, Esquire

a
i i Bell, P
b. Address: 910 Harvest Drive, Suite 200, Blue Bell, PA 19422

Phone Number; °10-941-2584 B

E-majil Addrass: rlewis@kaplaw.com

@

2




I/we hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge, all of the above statements contained in
this Zoning Application and any papers or plans submitted with this application to the

Borough o M tkme and correct.
]
Apphcan;ﬁM/) (
174 \ v

Legal Owner Q //7 /%o?//

Date

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

As subscribed and sworn to before me this

//.
Oyre 2021, Ew) Towvid 4 Brossoe
U

Notary Public \

Comn mnwea th of Penns
y!vami I\' t
Kimberly ' Zera, Not; ary Pubcl)lca’y Sed]
7 Montgomery( ~ounty
yCcommms:on expires May 5, 2022
omm:sc:onrum 2
Member, Perinsyivaiia o e

sninsylvania Association af Neitafiog

(Seal)

400 Fayette Stre_eZSuite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone:(_Gl 0) 828-1092 | Fax: (610) 8ZST'EOFVTVW.CO‘IlS_h_Ol'l-(;Ci(e_r-ll::,Ol'g



BOROUGH OF CONSHOHOCKEN
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, PA 19428
Phone (610) 828-1092 Fax (610) 828-0920

Decision
(For Borough Use Only)
Application Granted [ Application Denied [
MOTION:
CONDITIONS:

BY ORDER OF THE ZONING HEARING BOARD

Yes No

O o o o o
0O o o o o

DATE OF ORDER:

400 Fayette Strect, Suite 200 | Conshohocken, PA 19428 | Phone: (610) 8281092 | Fax: (610) 828 0920 | www.conshohockenpa.org
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Deed



Prepared by:
Spruce Law Group, LLC

1622 Spruce Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
Attn: Jason R. Sieminski, Esq.

After Recording, Return To:
Land Services USA, Inc.

1835 Market Street, Suite 420
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Attn: Richard Little

Parcel No.:  05-00-00103-00-9
Address: 450 Colwell Lane
Conshohocken, PA

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

This Special Warranty Deed is made on December I+ 2020, and is by and between D.
DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LL.C, a Pennsylvania limited liability company (hereinafter
called the “Grantor™), to DRYDEN COURT DEVELOPMENT LILC, a Pennsylvania limited
liability company, (hereinafter called the “Grantee”).

WITNESSETH, that the said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Three Million
Three Hundred and Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,310,000.00), lawful money of the
United States of America, and other good and valuable consideration, unto it well and truly paid
by the said Grantee, at or before the sealing and delivery hereof, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold, and conveyed, and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell, and convey unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, all of the following
described real estate, situated in the County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
known and described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HERETO

TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Grantor in the improvements,
hereditaments, easements and appurtenances thereunto belonging, or in anyway appertaining, and
the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof, and all
the estate, right, title, interest, claim or demand whatsoever, either in law or equity, of, in and to
the above described premises (collectively, the “Property™),

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, unto Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, to and for the only proper use and behalf of Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, forever, And Grantor does covenant, promise and agree, to and with Grantee, its
successors and assigns, by these presents, that Grantor will WARRANT SPECIALLY against all
and every person or persons lawfully claiming the same or any part thereof by, through or under
Grantor, the Property hereby conveyed.



THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT SELL, CONVEY, TRANSKFER, INCLUDE OR INSURE
THE TITLE TO THE COAL AND RIGHT OF SUPPORT UNDERNEATH THE
SURFACE LAND DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND THE OWNER OR
OWNERS OF SUCH COAL MAY HAVE THE COMPLETE LEGAL RIGHT TO
REMOVE ALL OF SUCH COAL AND, IN THAT CONNECTION, DAMAGE MAY
RESULT TO THE SURFACE OF THE LAND AND ANY HOUSE, BUILDING OR
OTHER STRUCTURE ON OR IN SUCH LAND. THE INCLUSION OF THIS NOTICE
DOES NOT ENLARGE, RESTRICT OR MODIFY ANY LEGAL RIGHTS OR ESTATES
OTHERWISE CREATED, TRANSFERRED, EXCEPTED OR RESERVED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS|



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the aforementioned Grantor has hereunto set such Grantor's
hand and seal the day and year first above mentioned.

GRANTOR:

D. DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LLC,
a Pennsylvania limited liability company

By: /j T~

Name: Edmund B. Moore, Jr.
Title: Managing Member

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF tgomean
Mantgomery

On this, the I_? day of December, 2020, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State
and County, personally appeared Edmund B. Moore, Jr., who acknowledged himself to be the
Managing Member of D. Deodati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability
company, and that he as such officer, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument
in the name of the Grantor for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: -2 /-':1/ / .»}z?;,ll-f

|
mmonwealth of Pennsgylvania - Notary Sea
e TerasaA. Penna, Notary Public
Meonigomaery County
My commission explres February 21, 2024
Commission number 1267598 .
Meampar, Pennsylvania Agsociation of Notaries




Certificate of Address

The Tax Billing Address and Owner Mailing Address of the Grantee is:

1125 Robin Road

On Behalf o;[:‘fhe Grantee,
Dryden Court Development LLC



EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of land, situate in the Borough of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and
Commonwealth of Pennsyivania, bounded and described according to a Plan of Subdivision, made for George K.
Heebner, Inc., by Yerkes Associates, inc., Consulting Engineers and Surveyors, 101 Chartes Drive, Bryn Mawr,
PA, dated March 20, 1978 and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book A-31 Page 94, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point on the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (60 feet wide) marking its intersection with the
Southwest side of the fulure extension of West 5° Avenue (80 feet wide); thence along the Southwest side of
proposed extension of West 5% Avenue {80 feet wide) South 49 degrees 0 minutes East 390.48 feet to a poini;
thence leaving said side of West 5 Avenue (proposed) and by other land now or late of George K. Heebner, inc.
Parcel No. 2, the two following courses and distances: (1) South 41 degrees 0 minutes West 238 feet to a point;
and {2} North 49 degrees 0 minutes West 311.02 feet to a point on the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (B0 feet
wide) aforementioned; thence along the same the three following courses and distances: (1) North 4 degrees 38
minutes East 12.40 feet to a point of curve; {(2) an the arc of a circle curving to the right having a radius of 370 feet
the arc distance of 233.02 feet the chord of said curved line having a bearing of North 22 degrees 40 minutes 30
seconds East 229 19 feet to a point; and (3) North 40 degrees 43 minutes East 10.45 feet to the place of
beginning.

CONTAINING 2 acres, be the same more or less.

BEING known as 450 Colwell Lane.

BEING Tax Parce! #05-00-00103-00-8.

BEING the same premises which D. Deodali & Sons, by Deed dated 2/19/20'13 and recorded 3/5/2013 in the

County of Montgomery in Deed Book 5865 page 1668, conveyed unto D. Decdati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a
Pennsylvania limited liability company, in fee.



Kaplin|Stewart

Atlorneys al Law

Craig R. Lewis

Direct Dial: (610) 941-2584
Direct Fax: (610) 684-2021
Email: rlewis@kaplaw.com
www.kaplaw.com

June 18, 2021

VIA EMAIL AND FEDERAL EXPRESS

Borough of Conshohocken

Attn: Stephanie Cecco, Borough Manager
400 Fayette Street, Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

RE: 450 Colwell Lane - Application to the Zoning Hearing Board
Dryden Court Development, LLC - Multi-family Development Stacked Condos
Our Reference No. 16140.009

Dear Ms. Cecco:

As I believe you know, I represent Dryden Court Development, LLC (“DCD”). As evidenced
by the Deed attached hereto, DCD is the legal owner of the property located at 450 Colwell
Lane, Conshohocken, PA (“Property”). In accordance with the Borough of Conshohocken
Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) and Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Map the
Property is located in the LI- Limited Industrial Zoning District.

DCD proposes to develop the Property for modern, multi-family housing (“Proposed Use”). In
accordance with Section 1901-B of the Zoning Ordinance, the Proposed Use is a specifically
permitted use of Property by conditional use. On December 30, 2020, DCD submitted an
application seeking conditional use approval for the Proposed Use (“Conditional Use
Application”). The Borough’s Planning Commission recently recommended approval of the
Conditional Use Application and a hearing thereon is scheduled for Jul 21, 2021.

As was recently discussed with the Borough’s staff and the Planning Commission, the Proposed
Use requires minor dimensional relief from the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, in order to
provide improved integration of the Proposed Use with the surrounding properties, and to
improve emergency access and circulation, DCD requires relief from the applicable front yard
setback requirement. Additionally, in order to address the topography of the Property, the
Proposed Use requires relief from the applicable maximum building height requirement. As
will be address through testimony and exhibits, these requests for relief are necessitated by the
physical characteristics of the Property, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety and/or
welfare, and will improve emergency access to the Proposed Use.

Kaplin Stewart Offices in
Union Meeting Corporate Center Pennsylvania
910 Harvest Drive, P.O. Box 3037 New Jersey
Blue Bell, PA 19422-0765

610-260-6000 tel

7112338v1



Conshohocken Borough
June 18, 2021
Page 2

Therefore, on behalf of DCD I am enclosing herewith and application to the Borough’s Zoning
Hearing Board seeking relief from §§ 27-1903-B(3)(A) and 27-1903-B(11) of the Zoning
Ordinance (“Application”). The Application consists of the following materials:

e Borough of Conshohocken Zoning Application;

e Site Plan prepared by Joseph M. Estock, PE consisting of three (3) sheets; sheet
1 entitled “Sketch Plan G”, dated May 12, 2021, last revised May 18, 2021

e A check in the amount of $500.00 payable to the Borough of Conshohocken
representing the applicable Zoning Hearing Board Application Fee; and

e A check in the amount of $1,500.00 payable to the Borough of Conshohocken
representing the applicable Zoning Application Escrow Deposit.

As set forth in the Borough’s “Zoning Application Filing Procedures”, in addition to the above
referenced Deed, I am enclosing an original, signed and notarized Application. I am also
enclosing one hardcopy of the Application. Please retain the original for your own purposes.
Please timestamp and return the remaining copy for my records. An electronic copy of the
Application will also be delivered to the Borough contemporaneously herewith by electronic
transmission.

Please schedule the Application for consideration by the Borough’s Zoning Hearing Board at its
regularly scheduled July 19, 2021 meeting date. Kindly provide notice of the scheduling of the
hearing and provide copies of all reviews, correspondence and communications generated and/or
received regarding this matter.

If you require anything further or have and questions, please contact me at your convenience.

Best Regards,

A |
r //(' L/f— ——."
4
Craig R. Lewis

Enclosures
cc (via e-mail w/ enclosures): DJB Properties, LLC

Michael E. Peters, Esq.
Eric P. Johnson, PE, Zoning Officer

7112338v1



Prepared by:
Spruce Law Group, LLC

1622 Spruce Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
Attn: Jason R. Sieminski, Esq.

After Recording, Return To:
Land Services USA, Inc.

1835 Market Street, Suite 420
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Attn: Richard Little

Parcel No.:  05-00-00103-00-9
Address: 450 Colwell Lane
Conshohocken, PA

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

This Special Warranty Deed is made on December I+ 2020, and is by and between D.
DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LL.C, a Pennsylvania limited liability company (hereinafter
called the “Grantor™), to DRYDEN COURT DEVELOPMENT LILC, a Pennsylvania limited
liability company, (hereinafter called the “Grantee”).

WITNESSETH, that the said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Three Million
Three Hundred and Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,310,000.00), lawful money of the
United States of America, and other good and valuable consideration, unto it well and truly paid
by the said Grantee, at or before the sealing and delivery hereof, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold, and conveyed, and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell, and convey unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, all of the following
described real estate, situated in the County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
known and described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HERETO

TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Grantor in the improvements,
hereditaments, easements and appurtenances thereunto belonging, or in anyway appertaining, and
the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof, and all
the estate, right, title, interest, claim or demand whatsoever, either in law or equity, of, in and to
the above described premises (collectively, the “Property™),

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, unto Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, to and for the only proper use and behalf of Grantee, its representatives, successors
and assigns, forever, And Grantor does covenant, promise and agree, to and with Grantee, its
successors and assigns, by these presents, that Grantor will WARRANT SPECIALLY against all
and every person or persons lawfully claiming the same or any part thereof by, through or under
Grantor, the Property hereby conveyed.



THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT SELL, CONVEY, TRANSKFER, INCLUDE OR INSURE
THE TITLE TO THE COAL AND RIGHT OF SUPPORT UNDERNEATH THE
SURFACE LAND DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND THE OWNER OR
OWNERS OF SUCH COAL MAY HAVE THE COMPLETE LEGAL RIGHT TO
REMOVE ALL OF SUCH COAL AND, IN THAT CONNECTION, DAMAGE MAY
RESULT TO THE SURFACE OF THE LAND AND ANY HOUSE, BUILDING OR
OTHER STRUCTURE ON OR IN SUCH LAND. THE INCLUSION OF THIS NOTICE
DOES NOT ENLARGE, RESTRICT OR MODIFY ANY LEGAL RIGHTS OR ESTATES
OTHERWISE CREATED, TRANSFERRED, EXCEPTED OR RESERVED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS|



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the aforementioned Grantor has hereunto set such Grantor's
hand and seal the day and year first above mentioned.

GRANTOR:

D. DEODATI & SONS HOLDINGS, LLC,
a Pennsylvania limited liability company

By: /j T~

Name: Edmund B. Moore, Jr.
Title: Managing Member

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF tgomean
Mantgomery

On this, the I_? day of December, 2020, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State
and County, personally appeared Edmund B. Moore, Jr., who acknowledged himself to be the
Managing Member of D. Deodati & Sons Holdings, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability
company, and that he as such officer, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument
in the name of the Grantor for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: -2 /-':1/ / .»}z?;,ll-f

|
mmonwealth of Pennsgylvania - Notary Sea
e TerasaA. Penna, Notary Public
Meonigomaery County
My commission explres February 21, 2024
Commission number 1267598 .
Meampar, Pennsylvania Agsociation of Notaries




Certificate of Address

The Tax Billing Address and Owner Mailing Address of the Grantee is:

1125 Robin Road

On Behalf o;[:‘fhe Grantee,
Dryden Court Development LLC



EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of land, situate in the Borough of Conshohocken, County of Montgomery and
Commonwealth of Pennsyivania, bounded and described according to a Plan of Subdivision, made for George K.
Heebner, Inc., by Yerkes Associates, inc., Consulting Engineers and Surveyors, 101 Chartes Drive, Bryn Mawr,
PA, dated March 20, 1978 and recorded in Montgomery County in Plan Book A-31 Page 94, as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point on the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (60 feet wide) marking its intersection with the
Southwest side of the fulure extension of West 5° Avenue (80 feet wide); thence along the Southwest side of
proposed extension of West 5% Avenue {80 feet wide) South 49 degrees 0 minutes East 390.48 feet to a poini;
thence leaving said side of West 5 Avenue (proposed) and by other land now or late of George K. Heebner, inc.
Parcel No. 2, the two following courses and distances: (1) South 41 degrees 0 minutes West 238 feet to a point;
and {2} North 49 degrees 0 minutes West 311.02 feet to a point on the Southeast side of Colwell Lane (B0 feet
wide) aforementioned; thence along the same the three following courses and distances: (1) North 4 degrees 38
minutes East 12.40 feet to a point of curve; {(2) an the arc of a circle curving to the right having a radius of 370 feet
the arc distance of 233.02 feet the chord of said curved line having a bearing of North 22 degrees 40 minutes 30
seconds East 229 19 feet to a point; and (3) North 40 degrees 43 minutes East 10.45 feet to the place of
beginning.

CONTAINING 2 acres, be the same more or less.

BEING known as 450 Colwell Lane.